Public Document Pack

cv':ﬁm .
e i1y Flint
i i Contact Officer:
!i!!ﬂ!ﬁbﬂl re Nicola Gittins 01352 702345

nicola.gittins@flintshire.gov.uk

To: Clir Aaron Shotton (Leader)

Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell, Helen Brown, Derek Butler,
Christine Jones, Kevin Jones and Billy Mullin

15 June 2016
Dear Councillor
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Cabinet which will be held at 9.30 am on
Tuesday, 21st June, 2016 in the Clwyd Committee Room, County Hall, Mold CH7

6NA to consider the following items

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.

3  MINUTES (Pages 5 - 16)
Purpose: To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting.

TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING REPORTS

STRATEGIC REPORTS

4 PERFORMANCE REPORT 2015/16 (Pages 17 - 40)
Report of Chief Executive - Cabinet Member for Corporate Management

Purpose: To receive the 2015/16 Year End Improvement Plan
monitoring reports for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March
2016.



FOOD SERVICE PLAN FOR FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 2016-17
(Pages 41 - 106)

Report of Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) - Cabinet Member for
Waste Strategy, Public Protection and Leisure

Purpose: To seek approval for the Food Service Plan 2016-17.

PROJECT CLOSURE ON REVIEW OF CORPORATE ADMINISTRATION
(Pages 107 - 110)

Report of Chief Officer (Governance) - Cabinet Member for Corporate
Management

Purpose: To receive a closure report on the corporate administrative
review project.

OPERATIONAL REPORTS

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 12) (Pages 111 - 142)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance

Purpose: To provide the latest revenue budget monitoring information for
2015/16 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and expenditure as at month 12 and
projected forward to year-end based on the most up to date
information available.

BUSINESS RATES - WRITE OFF ABOVE £25,000 (Pages 143 - 146)

Report of Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) - Cabinet Member for
Corporate Management

Purpose: Approve the write off of a single business rate debt above
£25,000.

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE SCHOOL TRANSPORT TASK & FINISH
GROUP (Pages 147 - 150)

Report of Chief Officer (Education and Youth) - Cabinet Member for Education

Purpose: To consider the recommendations of the School Transport
Task & Finish Group.



10

11

12

13

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY MAINTENANCE STANDARDS (Pages 151 - 154)

Report of Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) - Deputy Leader of the
Council and Cabinet Member for Environment

Purpose: To endorse the approach to the maintenance of Flintshire’s
public footpaths and public bridleways.

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY PRIORITIES (Pages 155 - 162)

Report of Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) - Deputy Leader of the
Council and Cabinet Member for Environment

Purpose: To endorse a hierarchical approach to: processing definitive
map modification and public path orders; public rights of way
maintenance; and responding to complaints.

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS (Pages 163 - 164)
Report of the Chief Executive enclosed.

Purpose: To provide details of actions taken under delegated powers.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT
AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 -TO
CONSIDER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following item is considered to be exempt by virtue of Paragraph(s) 15 of
Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

It is not good employment practice or in the public interest for matters the
subject of consultation with employees effected and other unions to be
discussed in public at this stage of the process.

REVIEW OF CORPORATE ADMINISTRATIVE FUNCTIONS (Pages 195 -
200)

Report of Chief Officer (Governance) - Cabinet Member for Corporate
Management

Purpose: To provide details of the review of corporate administrative
function and the savings released so far.



14

The following item is considered to be exempt by virtue of Paragraph(s) 15 of
Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

It is not good employment practice or in the public interest for matters the
subject of consultation with employees effected and other unions to be
discussed in public at this stage of the process.

ESTABLISHMENT STRUCTURE IN GOVERNANCE (Pages 201 - 210)

Report of Chief Officer (Governance) - Cabinet Member for Corporate
Management

Purpose: To approve changes to the establishment structure in the
Governance portfolio.

Yours faithfully

P

T

Peter Evans
Democracy & Governance Manager



Agenda Iltem 3

CABINET
17th MAY 2016

Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet of Flintshire County Council held in the Clwyd
Committee Room, County Hall, Mold on Tuesday, 17t May 2016

PRESENT: Councillor Aaron Shotton (Chair)
Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell, Derek Butler, Christine Jones and
Kevin Jones

APOLOGIES:
Councillors: Helen Brown and Billy Mullin

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chief Executive, Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise), Chief Officer (Education
and Youth), Chief Officer (Streetscene & Transportation), Chief Officer (Organisational
Change), Chief Officer (Organisational Change), Chief Officer (Social Services),
Corporate Finance Manager, Deputy Monitoring Officer and Team Manager -
Committee Services

OTHER MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE:
Councillor Dave Mackie

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

On agenda item number 11 — Report back from the Education and Youth
Overview and Scrutiny Call In Meeting — Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain, and
agenda item number 12 — Report back from the Education and Youth Overview and
Scrutiny Call In Meeting — Ysgol Llanfynydd, the Deputy Monitoring Officer explained
that any Members who were School Governors in the County had a personal interest
only as long as the matter did not relate directly to schools where they were Governors.
Councillors Butler, Christine Jones, Kevin Jones and Shotton declared personal
interests accordingly.

Councillor Attridge declared a personal and prejudicial interest in agenda item
number 6 — Strategic Housing and Regeneration Programme (SHARP), The Walks,
Flint — Affordable Housing Development and agenda item number 7 — Strategic
Housing and Regeneration Programme (SHARP), The Walks, Flint — Council Housing
Development as he was Chair of NEW Homes Board.

Councillor Shotton declared a personal and prejudicial interest in agenda item
number 15 — Establishment Structure in Governance as he had a family member who
was employed in that section.

MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 19t April 2016 had been circulated with the
agenda. Councillor Bithell explained that he was not a School Governor and did not
declare an interest in agenda item numbers 8 and 9.

Page 5



RESOLVED:

That, subject to the above, the minutes be approved as a correct record.

ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY MODELS - LEISURE AND LIBRARIES

Councillor Shotton welcomed workforce representatives and service managers

to the meeting who were in attendance to present their views on the Leisure and
Libraries Business Plan.

The workforce representatives Paula Jones, Dafydd Young and Jay Davies

presented their views which covered the following:

As a workforce they were supportive of the proposed Alternative Delivery Model
(ADM)

They had confidence in the ADM

They believed they had the skills to enhance the services

The workforce was positive and enthusiastic about the future

They wanted to provide a stronger service for the future

They would work in collaboration with senior managers on opportunities
Desire to develop themselves as individuals and break down any barriers
Intended to lead by example and safeguard services for the public

They recognised the challenges ahead and were ready to embrace the changes

The management representatives Paul Jones, Sian Willams and Kate Leonard
presented their views which covered the following:

There was an increased sense of ownership by the workforce

It made financial sense in the coming years to meet the aims of the Medium
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)

Based on assets, the ADM would be eligible for up to 80% business rate relief
which would make huge inroads into identifying the required efficiencies.
Efficiencies would be met and a trade surplus would be generated by making
changes on how the service operated

A good and enthusiastic workforce who were placed in a strong position for
ADM

Employee engagement had taken place with approximately 200 staff who
generated good ideas for the service. Managers had been heartened by the
number of employees who had approached them with ideas of how the service
could be shaped

Employees took great pride in the service and were looking forward to the future
Opportunities to build on the co-located library at Deeside Leisure Centre which
was a good showcase of what could be offered

Councillor Kevin Jones said he had met with the staff on a number of occasions

and welcomed the way in which they had embraced the challenge.

Councillor Shotton explained that Cabinet Members had wanted to be confident

and assured that the services could be protected in the current financial climate which

Page 6



had been demonstrated by those present. The purpose in inviting the workforce and
management representatives to address Cabinet was to hear their views on something
that was unique and he welcomed all of the comments made.

Councillor Attridge expressed his thanks to those present saying he was
heartened by what he had heard.

Councillor Bithell said he was pleased by the enthusiasm showed by the staff
which would help to secure jobs and valuable services.

Councillor Butler commented on other local authorities who had closed leisure
facilities because of austerity and praised this as a way forward.

The Chief Executive thanked the workforce group and service managers for
their attendance. There was still a considerable amount of work to be done including
the establishment of a Transition Board which would receive a high degree of support
from himself, Councillor Shotton and other senior officers.

RESOLVED:

That the presentations be received.

CARE SECTOR

Councillor Christine Jones introduced the report on the care sector which
examined the changes taking place in Wales and England, and the challenges being
faced in Flintshire.

The care sector across Wales and England was fragile with both domiciliary and
residential care experiencing difficulties sustaining their business models.

There were significant pressures on local authority budgets which was acute in
Flintshire. The Council had agreed to an additional investment to meet the increases
in independent provider care fees as part of setting the annual budget. As a temporary
solution the shortfall for 2016/17 of £646k had been funded from reserves for this
financial year only. The budget pressure remained unresolved for 2017/18 onwards
and had been built into the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) as a recurring
pressure. This was due to the introduction of the National Living Wage (NLW) on 1st
April 2016 which required all employees over the age of 25 to be paid a minimum of
£7.20 per hour.

The pressures on the system were causing businesses to fail across the UK
resulting in insufficient available bed and domiciliary care packages to meet the needs
of residents.

Flintshire’s older population was predicted to rise by 23% over the next four
years with the number of older people with significant health and social care needs
predicted to rise by 22% during the same period. During that period there was a clear
and ever present risk that the care sector would be unable to sustain itself if no action
was taken.

Page 7



The Chief Officer (Social Services) said the Council recognised the need to
adopt a comprehensive strategy to address the significant threat with the aims of the
strategy being outlined in the report. There was also a need for national reform to the
funding of the social care sector in Wales through open urgent discussion with WG.
By expressing the concerns for the sector and offering workable solutions, such as the
removal of the £60 weekly maximum charge for non-residential services, it was hoped
some spare resource capacity would be created. Flintshire was also seeking to ensure
that Health colleagues appreciated the importance of the role they played in sustaining
the care sector and hoped to work collaboratively with Betsi Cadwaladr University
Health Board (BCUHB) to bridge the ‘gap’ through shaped resources.

Councillor Shotton commented on the views expressed at the Social and Health
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on what was becoming a crisis in
social care. It was important to note the outcomes of the Independent Care Review
that a reduction in provision was not an option, concluding that lobbying of WG would
continue, which was supported by other Cabinet Members.

The Chief Executive stressed that social care was the biggest single service
funding pressure for the Council. A discussion was ongoing on charging caps which
would be discussed at the North Wales Regional Leadership Board later that week
with the topic being a substantive item on future agendas.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the report be accepted and the immediate and longer-term challenges
faced in Flintshire be recognised;

(b)  Thatthe need for national reform in the funding of the social care sector in Wales
be supported, and the position to engage with a new Welsh Government to
develop solutions as a matter of urgency be endorsed;

(c) That the Residential Care Review be accepted and the recommendations within
the report be endorsed; and

(d)  That Flintshire’s intention to engage with the Welsh Government to share real
concerns about the sustainability of the care sector be endorsed and that a case
for additional funding for the sector be presented.

APPROVAL OF LENDING TO NEW HOMES TO FUND A DEVELOPMENT OF 62
AFFORDABLE NEW HOMES IN FLINT

The Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) introduced the report on the
approval of lending to NEW Homes to fund a development of 62 affordable new homes
in Flint.

The proposed re-development of The Walks would bring to the town a
significantly improved housing offer, utilising traditional construction methodology
which would provide thermally efficient, well planned and secure properties for the
current and future residents of Flint.

Page 8



The overall vision for marketing The Walks would be to create a united
marketing strategy that reinforced the partnership between the Council and NEW
Homes. The marketing of The Walks would encompass developing a single brand that
was easily recognised by local people.

Flintshire County Council had commissioned an independent valuation for The
Walks from the District Valuer. The open market value of the proportion of the site to
be developed by NEW Homes was £771k. There were projected abnormal site costs
of £584k and when deducted from the valuation, left a net sale price to NEW Homes
of c£187k. This was the same process which was utilised for land disposed of recently
to Pennaf Housing Group and Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board for the
development sites in Flint. An application for consent to transfer the land to NEW
Homes had been made to Welsh Government (WG) with a formal response expected.

A number of funding solutions had been identified to finance the development.
The NEW Homes Board met on 26™ April 2016 and agreed in principle to proceed with
The Walks development with the preferred funding provider being Flintshire County
Council. Details of the options available, including an appraisal of each, were outlined
in the report.

The Local Government Act 2003 provided the Council with the powers to lend
finance to NEW Homes and if agreed, could provide the Council with a new revenue
stream alongside enabling NEW Homes to help the Council meet the identified need
for more affordable properties in the County.

It was recommended that delegated authority be given to the Council’s Section
151 Officer in conjunction with the Monitoring Officer to agree the terms of a loan and
the rate of interest to be charged to NEW Homes, following receipt of external specialist
advice.

In response to a question from Councillor Kevin Jones, the Chief Officer
explained that the Council could either lend at commercial interest rates, and therefore
provide no State Aid to NEW Homes, or it could consider lending at interest rates lower
than commercial rates which would constitute State Aid. Lending at lower than
commercial rates was lawful provided that the purpose of the loan qualified for a State
Aid exemption and certain criteria were not breached. The Council had received legal
advice indicating that the provision of homes for rent qualified for a lawful State Aid
exemption.

Members welcomed the report on an enterprising scheme to meet the housing
demand in the County.

Councillor Kevin Jones asked for an update on the application to suspend Right
to Buy properties. The Chief Officer explained that the application had been submitted
ahead of the WG elections and she expected it to be signed off following the
appointment of the relevant Minister.

Page 9



RESOLVED:

(@) That it be noted that NEW Homes wishes to develop 62 affordable properties
on The Walks at Flint at a build cost of £7.397M following the board agreeing to
seek approval from the Council to provide capital finance to fund the
development;

(b)  That responsibility be delegated to the Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring

Officer for a:-
e approval of the terms of the loan as described in paragraph 1.50 of the
report

e and approval of the terms of the loan agreement and any associated
documents following satisfactory due diligence

(c) That the inclusion of the NEW Homes Walks development costs in its Council’s
Fund capital programme in 2016/17 to be funded by prudential borrowing be
approved;

(d)  That the changes to necessary strategies and policies including: Treasury
Management Strategy, Prudential Indicators, Minimum Revenue Provision
Policy and Accounting Policies be recommended to Council;

(e) Thatthe HRA land at The Walks be disposed to NEW Homes (subject to Welsh
Government consent) for c£187k, subject to final valuation of abnormal costs;
and

() That it be noted that NEW Homes will develop a joint Marketing and Estate
Management Strategy (including a Local Lettings Policy) with the Council for
The Walks.

Councillor Attridge left the meeting during consideration of the item.

SHARP — THE WALKS, FLINT COUNCIL HOUSING DEVEOPMENT

The Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) introduced the report on SHARP
— The Walks, Flint Council Housing Development which sought agreement to develop
The Walks, Flint as part of the Council’s Strategic Housing and Regeneration
Programme (SHARP).

Following approval of the previous item for 62 affordable homes in Flint, this
report sought approval for 30 council houses on the same development which would
provide an overall development of 92 residential properties.

The 30 Council properties would be managed within the Housing Revenue
Account (HRA), whilst the 62 affordable properties would be managed by NEW
Homes. A joint Local Lettings Plan would be developed to ensure good management
of the stock for the sensitive allocation of properties to local Flint residents. Joint
working arrangements would also be developed around tenancy management and

Page 10



repairs services to all residents living on the scheme moving forward, regardless of
who their landlord would be.

Alongside completion of the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) for its
existing stock, the Council had been successful in securing an additional allocation of
borrowing headroom for a Housing Revenue Account (HRA) new build programme
(£14,757m) and the HRA was likely to generate further revenue and borrowing
headroom during the life of the programme. It was recommended to utilise prudential
borrowing to fund the development.

Members also welcomed the report on an enterprising scheme to meet the
housing demand in the County.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the development of 30 new Council homes on The Walks, Flint House
School for a total cost of £3.95M be approved; and

(b)  That the development of joint Marketing and Estate Management Strategies
(including Local Lettings Policy) with NEW Homes for The Walks be approved.

Councillor Attridge left the meeting during consideration of the item.

PHASE 3 OF THE COUNCIL’S VEHICLE FLEET PROVISION AND MANAGEMENT
REVIEW

Councillor Attridge introduced the report on phase 3 of the Council’s vehicle
fleet provision and management review. The report provided details of the outcome of
the tender exercise that had been undertaken to source a partner organisation to
provide and manage the County’s fleet of vehicles.

The Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) outlined the financial and
service benefits of the tender submission, full details of which were contained in the
report, emphasising the request of the workforce to remain in the employment of the
Council with them carrying out the maintenance activities on behalf of the contractor.
He added that the contract price included all of the costs associated with bringing
Flintshire County Council’s fleet to Euro 6 standard.

Councillor Attridge asked that an additional recommendation be added “That
regular reports be brought back to Cabinet over the life of the contract to keep Cabinet
informed, with the frequency to be decided” which was agreed.

The Chief Executive thanked all of those involved for their work on this review
which Flintshire was a leading performer in this field.

Councillor Kevin Jones said bringing the fleet to Euro 6 standard was an
excellent example of obtaining value for money for the authority.

Page 11



RESOLVED:

(@)  That the implementation of Phase 3 of the Fleet Review and the award of a 7
year contract with a single external supplier for the supply, management and
maintenance of all the Council’s fleet, whilst retaining the in-house workshop
staff who will carry out the maintenance activities on behalf of the contractor be
approved; and

(b)  That regular reports be brought back to Cabinet over the lift of the contract to
keep Cabinet informed, with the frequency to be decided.

ENVIRONMENTAL ENFORCEMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Councillor Attridge introduced the report on environment enforcement
arrangements with the report seeking agreement, with a private partner, to undertake
environmental enforcement duties in the County on a 12 month pilot trial basis.

In order to provide additional resources to deliver the zero tolerance approach
introduced by the Council to littering and dog fouling enforcement, it was proposed to
enter into an agreement with a private partner with a proven track record in the
enforcement of environmental crime. The arrangement would initially be for a 12
month pilot trial which would allow a full evaluation of the success of the arrangement,
before a longer term contract and commitment could be organised.

The Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) explained that, whilst on
duty, the Enforcement Officers from the partnering organisation would wear the same
uniform as the Councils Enforcement Officers and each would carry a shoulder
mounted CCTV camera to record all public contact.

Members welcomed the report which would address the continuing problems
with littering and dog fouling.

RESOLVED:
That approval be granted to enter into a formal agreement with a private partner to
undertake environmental enforcement duties in the County on a 12 month pilot trial

basis.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 11)

The Corporate Finance Manager introduced the Revenue Budget Monitoring
2015/16 (Month 11) report which provided details on the latest revenue budget
monitoring position for 2015/16 for the Council Fund and the Housing Revenue
Account and reported that no specific issues had been raised when considered at the
recent Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting. The position
was based on actual income and expenditure as at Month 11 and projected to the year-
end. The projected year-end position was as follows:

Page 12



10.

Council Fund

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £1.574m lower than budget
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2016 of £5.210m

Housing Revenue Account

¢ Netin year expenditure forecast to be £0.093m lower than budget
e Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2016 of £1.330m

The previous allocation for investment in organisational change was now fully
committed therefore it was recommended that £0.750 was set aside to meet future
investment costs for future organisational change. If approved this would reduce the
balance on the contingency reserve to £4.460m.

The report provided details on the programme of efficiencies, inflation, un-
earmaked reserves and earmarked reserves.

The report also outlined details on a number of risk areas as follows:
e Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI)
e Recycling

e Out of County Placements

Various requests to carry forward funding into 2016/17 had been made, details
of which were contained in appendix 3 to the report.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the overall report and the projected Council Fund Contingency Sum as at
31st March 2016 be noted;

(b)  That the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue Account be
noted; and

(c) That the carry forward requests be agreed.

REPORT BACK FROM THE EDUCATION AND YOUTH OVERVIEW AND

SCRUTINY CALL IN MEETING — YSGOL MAES EDWIN, FLINT MOUNTAIN

The Member Engagement Manager introduced the report which provided
details of the call in meeting that was arranged for School Modernisation — School
Standards and Reorganisation Act 2013 — Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain.

Having considered the decision, the Committee chose Option 4, to refer the

issue to Council. The Council considered the issue at a special meeting on Tuesday
10t May 2016 and recommended that the original Cabinet decision should stand.

Page 13



11.

12.

RESOLVED:

(@)  Thatthe decision of the Education and Youth Overview and Scrutiny Committee
call in meeting with regard to Record No 3255 School Modernisation — School
Standards and Reorganisation Act 2013 — Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain,
be noted;

(b)  That the decision of the Council at the special meeting held on 10t May 2016
be noted; and

(c) That Cabinet notes that the decision has been implemented.

REPORT BACK FROM THE EDUCATION AND YOUTH OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE CALL IN MEETING — YSGOL LLANFYNYDD

The Member Engagement Manager introduced the report which provided
details of the call in meeting that was arranged for School Modernisation — School
Standards and Reorganisation Act 2013 — Ysgol Llanfynydd.

Having considered the decision, the Committee chose Option 1, that it was
satisfied with the explanation which it had received. Therefore the original Cabinet
decision could be implemented immediately.

RESOLVED:

(@)  Thatthe decision of the Education and Youth Overview and Scrutiny Committee
call in meeting with regard to Record No 3254 School Modernisation — School
Standards and Reorganisation Act 2013 — Ysgol Llanfynydd be noted; and

(b)  That it be noted that the decision makers had been informed that the original
Cabinet decision could be implemented with immediate effect.

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS

An information item on the actions taken under delegated powers was
submitted. The actions were as set out below:-

Organisational Change

e Land at Flint Retail Park
The extinguishment of an easement in the Councils’ favour has been negotiated
in return for the payment of a premium by the land owner.

e Land to the Rear of the Civic Amenity Site, Prince William Avenue,
Sandycroft
The subject land comprises a rectangular parcel of land and waste material to
the rear of the new Civic Amenity site extending to approximately 3,600 square
metres. A location plan is attached to the delegated powers report.

Page 14



13.

14.

e Community Asset Transfer of Bagillt War Memorial
The transfer of Bagillt War Memorial including the land shown edged red on the
plan attached to the delegated powers report.

e Community Asset Transfer of Connah’s Quay Allotments, South Site
The transfer of the community allotments on the south site in Connah’s Quay
as shown on the plan attached to the delegated powers report.

e Community Asset Transfer of Gwernymynydd Village Centre
The transfer of Gwernymynydd Village Centre community building including the
land shown edged red on the plan attached to the delegated powers report.

e Community Asset Transfer of Gwespyr Play Area
The transfer of Gwespyr Play Area as detailed on the plan attached to the
delegated powers report shown edged red on the plan attached to the delegated
powers report to Gwespyr Village Hall Committee.

e Community Asset Transfer of Trelogan Community Centre
The transfer of Trelogan Community Centre building including the land shown
edged red on the plan attached to the delegated powers report to the Trelogan
Community Association.

e Sale of Land at the Willows Hawarden Road, Hope for the Construction of
a Pharmacy
The subject comprises a small parcel of land extending to 477 square metres
approximately to facilitate the construction of a new Pharmacy building.

e Sale of Land at Evans Way, Rowleys Park, Shotton
The subject comprises a cleared site extending to approximately 0.9 acres.

RESOLVED:
That the actions taken under delegated powers be noted.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 — TO CONSIDER
THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED:

That the press and public be excluded for the remainder of the meeting for the following
items by virtue of exempt information under paragraph 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY MODELS - LEISURE AND LIBRARIES

The Chief Officer (Organisational Change) introduced the report on Alternative
Delivery Models, Leisure and Libraries which provided final proposals including service
business and transition plans for an ADM for Leisure and Libraries through the
formation of an Employee Led Mutual.

Page 15



15.

16.

Members thanked lan Bancroft and Neal Cockerton for their work on the
flagship scheme which was a unique model in Wales for Libraries and Leisure.

RESOLVED:

(@) Thatit be agreed that Leisure and Libraries establish an Employee Led Mutual
and that this be subject to a number of conditions as follows:

e That final implementation plans are developed prior to full establishment
of the organisation and which are assessed as being able to deliver the
objectives and savings as outlined in the proposal;

e That a workforce vote is held and that this demonstrates support for the
proposal;

e That the target date for full establishment of this organisation is 15t April
2017,

e That a senior management structure is put in place for the new
organisation that has the necessary leadership skills and abilities and
that this is in place at least 6 months prior to the full establishment date;

e That prior to full establishment a plan on the full extent of potential
integration and links between leisure, libraries and connects services is
developed and agreed; and

e That the Council establishes a transitional board to manage the period
up to full establishment and that this board should have as a minimum
membership from the Council the Leader, Chief Executive, the Cabinet
Portfolio Holders, the Chief Officer (Organisational Change) and Finance
and Human Resources representatives

(b)  That full Implementation Plans be brought back to Cabinet prior to authority
being provided to enter into legal agreements for completion of the Alternative
Delivery Model.

ESTABLISHMENT STRUCTURE IN GOVERNANCE

The Chief Executive introduced the report which proposed changes in Legal
and Democratic Services.

RESOLVED:

That the report be deferred to Cabinet in June 2016.

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There was one member of the press in attendance.

(The meeting commenced at 9.30am and ended at 11.35am)



Agenda Item 4

r Sir y Fflint
-y .
Flintshire

| CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday 21 June 2016
Report Subject Performance Report 2015/16
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management
Report Author Chief Executive
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This is the first of two reports relating to the Council’s performance during 2015/16.
This first report provides an analysis of our progress towards the national indicators
that are set for us by Welsh Government. The second report to follow in July will
provide a detailed analysis of our performance, risks and actions against the priority
commitments in last year’s Improvement Plan 2015/16.

Improvements against last year’s trends and achievement of targets is visible for
most service areas represented by national data sets. Data has yet to be externally
validated; however, initial indications are positive.

The Annual Performance Report will be produced in September for Cabinet and
County Council approval. All national data will have been validated by this time and
the Council’s comparative performance position in Wales will be known.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To note the interim progress and achievements against the national
performance indicators.

Page 17



REPORT DETAILS

Analysis of National Indicator trends and achievement of targets.

The two groups of national performance indicators set nationally are
collected and reported upon by each local authority; these include the
National Strategic Indicators (set by Welsh Ministers) and the Public
Accountability Measures. Data against these is submitted in May to the
Local Government Data Unit for validation and a final set is published in
September alongside comparative positions of other councils.

1.02

The appendix attached provides trend analysis from last year and progress
against target for the majority of the indicators. Where a trend analysis is
not shown indicates that the indicator may have changed over time and is
not comparable. Similarly, where a target RAG status is not shown it is
because it is not appropriate to set a target, but trends are monitored
instead.

Analysis of trend performance (2015/16 against previous years) is shown
with an arrow: to indicate upward trend %

to indicate downward trend ‘

: to indicate stability / no change 0

Analysis of progress of performance against target is shown using the RAG
(Red, Amber Green) status. This is defined as follows: -

e RED equates to a position of under-performance against target.

e AMBER equates to a mid-position where targets have been
missed by a set variable amount.

e GREEN equates to a position of positive performance against
target.

1.03

Our own internal analysis of these two sets of data show that (in rounded
percentages):

e 55.9% (24) of indicators show improved performance

e 11.6% (5) of indicators have stayed the same — already at 100%

e 32.5% (14) of indicators have worsened performance — most by only
a small margin.

e 51% (21) of indicators met or exceeded target (Green)

e 44% (18) of indicators missed target by a marginable amount
(Amber)

e 5% (2) of indicators under-performed against target

1.04

Good performance has been noted in the following areas where both trend
has improved and target met or exceeded:

e Display Energy Certificates within local authority buildings

Page 18




Empty private sector dwellings returned to occupation
Food establishments compliant with food hygiene standards

Pupils leaving education, training or work based learning with an
approved qualification

Pupils receiving a Teacher Assessment in Welsh

Learners achieving Core Subject Indicator at Levels 2 and 3

Roads in overall good condition
Fly tipping incidents cleared within 5 days
Municipal waste sent to landfill

Physical activity participants in local authority sport and leisure
centres

Older people helped to live at home

Adult referrals where risk was managed (100%)

People aged 65+ supported in care homes

Initial assessments by qualified social workers

Young carers assessments (100%)

Young people formerly looked after (i) in contact with the authority
(100%) (ii) in suitable accommodation

Children with pathway plans in place (100%)

Children’s timeliness of reviews

Indicators where trend has not shown an improvement and/or targets have
been missed significantly (i.e. RED) include the following.

Average point score for pupils aged 15 (trend)

GCSE grade A* - C in English or Welsh first language and
mathematics (trend and target)

Special Educational Needs final statements issued (trend)

Primary school attendance (trend)

Adults with care plan reviews (trend)

Rate of delayed transfers of care (trend)

Carers offered assessments (trend)

Stability in school of children looked after (trend)

Looked after children, external qualifications point score (trend and
target)

Affordable housing units provided as % of all housing units provided
(trend)

Days to deliver Disabled Facilities Grants (target)
Library visits (trend)

Highway cleanliness (trend)
Adults over 60 holding concessionary bus pass (trend)

As can be seen, the majority of the above indicators are showing a reduction
in trend performance (most marginal), whereas only a few (3) have

Page 19




significantly missed their targets.

Narrative is provided in the appendix against each indicator to explain the
performance over the year.

1.05

Consistently good performance has been recognised in the draft Annual
Improvement Report for 2014/15 produced by the Auditor General for
Wales. The current draft refers to:

“The Council’s performance relative to other councils in Wales improved
significantly. The proportion of indicators where performance was better
than the national average improved from 51 per cent in 2013-14 to 62 per
cent in 2014-15 and a higher proportion of national indicators were in the
top half — 60 per cent in 2014-15 compared to 54 per cent in 2013-14.

Data from the National Survey for Wales reinforces this view of relative
performance. The Council was one of only three councils in Wales where
public perceptions about the quality of services did not deteriorate between
2013-14 and 2014-15. This moved the Council up from seventh out of 22 to
second in 2014-15, for that specific aspect of the survey.”

The final Annual Improvement Report will be reported to Cabinet and other
relevant Committees in July.

1.04

A review of the set of National Strategic Indicators (NSls) and Public
Accountability Measures (PAMs) during 2016/17 is being co-ordinated by
the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA). This is to explore
options for a new performance framework for the new municipal term set
within the context of the new National Wellbeing indicators.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

Resources to produce the progress and trend analysis reports has reduced
significantly through the use of the CAMMS system.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

Overview and Scrutiny Committees have been involved in quarterly
performance progress reports.

The Audit Committee receives twice yearly Improvement Plan risk reports.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

Risks are one of the key elements in the Improvement plan and are reported
upon quarterly.

Other performance or project risks aligned to service and business plan
priorities are also captured.

Page 20




4.02 | Consistency of approach for data validation continues to be a risk when
comparing across other authorities. Our trend performance however can be
strongly relied on showing year on year progress using our consistent
approaches for data collection and validation.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1: Performance Progress Report 2015/16 Part 1: National
Strategic Indicators and Public Accountability Measures.

6.00 |LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None.

Contact Officer: Karen Armstrong, Corporate Business and
Communications Executive Officer

Telephone: 01352 702740

E-mail: Karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | National Strateqgic Indicators (NSls): statutory indicators set by Welsh
Ministers

7.02 | Public _Accountability Measures: local authority owned measures
designed to contribute to public accountability

7.03 | Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA): represents the interests

of local government and promotes local democracy in Wales. It represents
the 22 local authorities in Wales and the 3 fire and rescue authorities; 3
national park authorities are associate members.

The WLGA's primary purposes are to promote better local government and
its reputation and to support authorities in the development of policies and
priorities which will improve public services and democracy.

Page 21



mailto:Karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Organisation Empowerment System

Performance Progress Report 2015/16

Part 1: National Strategic Indicators (NSI) and Public
Accountability Measures (PAM)

Flintshire County Council

ez abed

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

4

Print Date: 15-Jun-2016

www.cammsgroup.com




. Performance
. Previous Year . Performance
KPI Title Indicator Target
Actual RAG
Trend

CAM/037 The percentage change in the average Display Energy Certificate 2 2.7 ' 2
(DEC) score within local authority public buildings over 1,000 square metres

Lead Officer: Will Pierce - Energy Manager

Reporting Officer: -

Aspirational Target: 3.00

Progress Comment: This data is reported a year in arrears; this year’s data will be available December 2016. The most current data shows an increase on the previous year’s position.
It should be noted that this is an estimate yet to be confirmed by Local Government Data Unit.

Last Updated:

. Performance
Previous Year Performance

KPI Title Actual Indicator Target

Actual Trend RAG

DU/002i The percentage of all pupils (including those in local authority care), in
gny local authority maintained school, aged 15 as at the preceding 31 August
that leave compulsory education, training or work based learning without an
approved external qualification.

Lead Officer: Claire Homard - Principal Education Officer Primary

Reporting Officer: Liz Barron - Business Planning & Project Co-ordinator

Aspirational Target: 0.00

Progress Comment: The LA aims to have no young people leaving full time education, training or work based learning without an approved external qualification. However, there
were 2 pupils last year (incl those in LA care) who left without approved external qualification.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
Previous Year Performance

KPI Title Actual Indicator Target

A | RA
ctua Trend S

EDU/002ii The percentage of all pupils, in any local authority maintained school, 0 0
aged 15 as at the preceding 31 August that leave compulsory education,
training or work based learning without an approved external qualification

Lead Officer: Jeanette Rock - Principal Education Officer Inclusion

www.cammsgroup.com - .




Reporting Officer: Liz Barron - Business Planning & Project Co-ordinator

Aspirational Target: 0.00

Progress Comment: The LA aims to have no young people in Local Authority Care leaving full time education, training or work based learning without an approved external
qualification.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
Previous Year Performance

KPI Title Indicator Target
Actual
Trend

EDU/006(ii) The percentage of pupils assessed, in schools maintained by the 4.61 5.48 ' N/A
local authority, receiving a Teacher Assessment in Welsh (first language) at the
end of Key Stage 3

RAG

Lead Officer: Claire Homard - Principal Education Officer Primary

Reporting Officer: Liz Barron - Business Planning & Project Co-ordinator

Aspirational Target:

Progress Comment: These are statistically small cohorts which will vary year on year and why there is no target set; however improvements have been made since the previous year.

Jhst Updated: 14-Jun-2016
@

-

. Performance
Previous Year Performance

KPI Title Actual Indicator Target
Actual
Trend

EDU/011 The average point score for pupils aged 15 at the preceding 31 August, 547.52 541.86 ‘ 558.6
in schools maintained by the local authority

RAG

Lead Officer: Claire Homard - Principal Education Officer Primary

Reporting Officer: Liz Barron - Business Planning & Project Co-ordinator

Aspirational Target: 557.50

Progress Comment: GWE (the Regional School Improvement Unit) has introduced a different target setting methodology with a focus on targets being 'more realistic'. The trend
position shows a slight downturn compared to the previous year.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
Previous Year Performance

RAG

KPI Title Actual Indicator Target

Actual
cEis Trend

EDU/015(a) The percentage of final statements of special education need issued 87.67 89.74 ‘ 90

AMBER

www.cammsgroup.com - .




within 26 weeks, including exceptions

Lead Officer: Claire Homard - Principal Education Officer Primary
Reporting Officer: Liz Barron - Business Planning & Project Co-ordinator

Aspirational Target: 90.00
Progress Comment: Exceptions from other agencies are beyond the control of the LA which explains why the target has not been met. The Service consistently chases any outstanding

reports and where possible prioritizes the most urgent statements.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

Performance
Performance

Previous Year .
‘I’\Ic:ual Actual Indicator Target RAG
Trend

KPI Title

EDU/015(b) The percentage of final statements of special education need issued
within 26 weeks, excluding exceptions

GREEN

Lead Officer: Jeanette Rock - Principal Education Officer Inclusion
Reporting Officer: Liz Barron - Business Planning & Project Co-ordinator

TW@spirational Target: 100.00
g’rogress Comment: Staffing absence resulted in 1 late report that could not have an approved exception applied to it.

D
\bpst Updated: 14-Jun-2016

e J ﬁRV\

Performance
Performance

Actual Actual Indicator RAG
Trend

Previous Year

KPI Title

EDU/016a Percentage of pupil attendance in primary schools 94.80 94.72 ‘ 94.9

Lead Officer: Claire Homard - Principal Education Officer Primary
Reporting Officer: Liz Barron - Business Planning & Project Co-ordinator
Aspirational Target: 95.00

Progress Comment:

Performance
Performance

Previous Year .
Actual Indicator RAG

KPI Title Actual
Trend

EDU/016b Percentage of pupil attendance in secondary schools. 93.86 94.24 ' 94.3

Lead Officer: Claire Homard - Principal Education Officer Primary

www.cammsgroup.com - .



Reporting Officer: Liz Barron - Business Planning & Project Co-ordinator
Aspirational Target: 95.00
Progress Comment:

Performance

. Previous Year . Performance
KPI Title Actual Indicator Target
Actual RAG
Trend
IP2.1.2M10 (SCA/001) — The rate of delayed transfers of care for social care 2.13 3.4 ‘ 2
reasons. AMBER

Lead Officer: Janet Bellis - Localities Manager
Reporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services
Aspirational Target: 2.00

Progress Comment: All delays are notified by Health to Locality Services monthly or more frequently, so that steps can be taken to ensure timely discharge. A significant number of
delays this year were due to people waiting for mental health placements.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
KPI Title Previous Year Indicator Performance
Actual RAG

Trend

p2.2.1M11 (SCA/019) The percentage of adult protection referrals where the
risk was managed.

Lead Officer: Jane M Davies - Senior Manager, Safeguarding & Commissioning
Reporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services
Aspirational Target: 100.00

Progress Comment: In all cases the level of risk was managed.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

Previous Year FEICTHEES Performance
KPI Title Actual Indicator

Actual RAG
Trend
IP4.1.2M23 (EDU/003) The percentage of learners achieving the Core Subject 86.12 87.91 ' 87
Indicator at Key Stage 2.

Lead Officer: Claire Homard - Principal Education Officer Primary
Reporting Officer: Liz Barron - Business Planning & Project Co-ordinator
Aspirational Target: 89.10

www.cammsgroup.com - .




Progress Comment: GWE has introduced a different target setting methodology with a focus on targets being 'more realistic'. Improvements on previous year can be seen.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
. Previous Year . Performance
KPI Title Actual Indicator
Actual RAG
Trend

IP4.1.2M24 (EDU/004) The percentage of learners achieving the Core Subject 84.28 87.11 ' 86.5
Indicator at Key Stage 3.

Lead Officer: Claire Homard - Principal Education Officer Primary

Reporting Officer: Liz Barron - Business Planning & Project Co-ordinator

Aspirational Target: 89.30

Progress Comment: GWE has introduced a different target setting methodology with a focus on targets being 'more realistic'.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
Previous Year Performance

KPI Titl Indi
itle o ndicator RAG
Trend

pP4.1.2M26 (EDU/017) The percentage of pupils aged 15 at the preceding 31 ‘
August, in schools maintained by the local authority who achieved the Level 2

threshold including a GCSE grade A*-C in English or Welsh first language and
mathematics

Lead Officer: Claire Homard - Principal Education Officer Primary

Reporting Officer: Liz Barron - Business Planning & Project Co-ordinator

Aspirational Target: 65.10

Progress Comment: GWE has introduced a different target setting methodology with a focus on targets being 'more realistic'. A slight downturn in performance shows from the
previous year.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

Previous Year PRUDSIEL Performance

KPI Title Actual Indicator Target
Actual RAG
Trend

IP7.1.1M02 (THS/012) - The percentage of principal (A) roads, non-principal (B)

roads and non-principal (C) roads that are in overall poor condition GREEN

Lead Officer: Barry Wilkinson - Highways Networks Manager

www.cammsgroup.com - .




Reporting Officer: lan Bushell - Technical and Performance Manager

Aspirational Target: 8.00
Progress Comment: Scanner Surveys of the Road Condition took place between Oct 2015 and Feb 2016 and the data was made available to the Authority in April 2016. These results

show a slight improvement overall on the previous years figures.

Last Updated: 09-Jun-2016

Performance
Indicator Target
Trend

Performance
RAG

Previous Year
Actual

KPI Title

IP7.2.1M08 (WMT/009(b)) The percentage of municipal waste collected by local 55 58.49 ' 59 Jdae
authorities and prepared for reuse and/or recycled, including source segregated AMBER
bio wastes that are composted or treated biologically in another way

Lead Officer: Harvey Mitchell - Waste and Ancillary Services Manager
Reporting Officer: Danielle Richards - Area Recycling Officer

Aspirational Target: 60.00
Progress Comment: In Q4, we saw an increase in the overall tonnage of waste being sent for recycling/reuse. However, the tonnage is lower than previously predicted.

is is due to the Incinerator Bottom Ash (IBA) recovered from the residual treatment process not being recycled as anticipated. The performance for the year has improved from last

fyear thus a reduction to landfill is achieved.

D
st Updated:

n=2 ﬁRV\

Performance
. Performance
Actual Indicator Target
RAG
Trend

Previous Year

KPI Titl
itie Actual

IP8.2.1M13 CHR/002 The number of working days/shifts per full-time 10.6 10.4 ' 9.6
equivalent (FTE) local authority employee lost due to sickness absence

Lead Officer: Andrew Adams - Business Information and Compliance Adviser
Reporting Officer: -

Aspirational Target: 8.30
Progress Comment: There has been a reduction in sickness absence during 2015/16. The Council’s adherence to procedures and support to return to work have assisted this

improvement.

Performance
. Performance
Actual Indicator Target RAG

Trend

www.cammsgroup.com - .

Previous Year
Actual

KPI Title




LCL/001: the number of visits to Public Libraries during the year, per 1,000 4990.64 4535.31 ‘ 5000
population

AMBER

Lead Officer: Pennie Corbett - Principal Librarian

Reporting Officer: Paula Jones - Business Operations Officer

Aspirational Target: 5000.00

Progress Comment: The number of library visits per 1000 population has decreased from 4867 in 2014-15 to 4535 in 2015-16.

Libraries opening hours decreased by 18% . Visitor numbers decreased by 6.6%. Physical visits decreased by 8% and attendance at events by 13% reflecting the reduced hours of
opening however, virtual visits increased by 10%.

The relocation of library services at Hawarden, Mancot and Queensferry from unsustainable buildings to the new Deeside Library facility within Deeside Leisure Centre will see an
increase in Opening hours so trend should be to increase physical visits. Deeside Library opened on 29 February and has welcomed 14,416 visitors in total over the last three months
(March, April and May) into the library.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

Previous Year Performance Performance
KPI Title Actual Indicator Target
Actual RAG
Trend
% CS/002: the number of visits to Local Authority Sport & Leisure Centres during 2434.69 2436.08 ' 2434.75
Dhe year where the visitor will be participating in physical activity, per 1,000
(opulation

"I'.)ead Officer: lan Bancroft - Chief Officer - Organisational Change 1

Reporting Officer: Paul Jones - Leisure Manager Business Improvement

Aspirational Target: 9739.00

Progress Comment: The number of visits to Flintshire County Councils Sport & Leisure Centres during 2015/16 where the visitor was participating in physical activity increased from
the previous year. The counties learn to swim programme proved to be particularly popular resulting in a high increase of participants

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
Previous Year Performance

KPI Title Actual Indicator Target
Actual
Trend

PLA/006(b) The number of additional affordable housing units provided during 39.09 20.65 ‘ N/A
the year as a percentage of all additional housing units provided during the year

RAG

Lead Officer: Andy Roberts - Planning Strategy Manager

Reporting Officer: Andy Roberts - Planning Strategy Manager

Aspirational Target:

Progress Comment: Reflects a more focused approach to affordable provision and also the fluctuations in supply dependant on where housing developments are in terms of
completion and when the affordable come on stream.

www.cammsgroup.com - .




Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
. Previous Year Performance
KPI Title

Indicator
Actual RAG
Trend
PPN/009 The percentage of food establishments which are ‘broadly compliant’ 95.61 96.54 ' 93
with food hygiene standards

Lead Officer: Sylvia Portbury - Health Protection Manager
Reporting Officer: Anne Inskip - Environmental Health Officer
Aspirational Target: 93.00

Progress Comment: Target exceeded. The improvement is a demonstration of the positive impact of the mandatory display of Food Hygiene ratings.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

Performance

KPI Title Actual Indicator
Actual
Trend

@) SR/002 The average number of calendar days taken to deliver a Disabled 328.24 307.74 ' 247
Racilities Grant

Previous Year

Performance
RAG

T

Tead Officer: Niall Waller - Enterprise and Regeneration Manager

Reporting Officer: Gavin Griffith - Housing Regeneration & Strategy Manager

Aspirational Target:

Progress Comment: This performance indicator has not met target this year at 307 days however, has shown improvement on 2014/15. There are a number of reasons why this is the
case including problems around recruitment and retention of building surveyors and associated professionals. Overall satisfaction levels with the service provided is high, however it
is acknowledged that timeliness of adaptations requires improvement. A small number of highly complex adaptations have also had a detrimental impact on the annual average and
new procurement methods are being explored to try and speed up the process. Delivery timescales remain a challenge nationally and have recently been the subject of a further

review by Welsh Government and additional resource is being made available by WG in 2016/17 in an attempt to speed up adaptations across Wales. Additional staffing will be
required to meet this aim.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
. Previous Year Performance
KPI Title

Indicator Target
Trend

PSR/004 The percentage of private sector dwellings that had been vacant for 3.88 8.76 ' 6
more than 6 months at 1 April that were returned to occupation during the year

Actual RAG

GREEN

www.cammsgroup.com - .




through direct action by the local authority

Lead Officer: Niall Waller - Enterprise and Regeneration Manager
Reporting Officer: Gavin Griffith - Housing Regeneration & Strategy Manager

Aspirational Target:
Progress Comment: This figure comprises the total number of properties brought back in to use through direct advice and support including financial assistance via the Houses into

Homes and Living Over the Shops Schemes

Last Updated:

Previous Year Performance
KPI Title Actual Indicator Target

Trend

SCA/002a The rate of older people aged 65 and over helped to live at home per
1000 population aged 65+

Performance
Actual RAG

Lead Officer: Janet Bellis - Localities Manager
Reporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services

T@spirational Target:
rogress Comment: The reablement programme is helping to keep the rate of people receiving services on a day low. We report this as management information and do not set a

Parget for this measure.

NJast Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
Previous Year Performance

KPI Title Actual Indicator Target

A | RA
ctua Trend S

SCA/002b The rate of people aged 65 and over whom the authority supports in 16.02 13.2 ' 17
care homes per 1000 population aged 65+

Lead Officer: Janet Bellis - Localities Manager
Reporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services

Aspirational Target: 17.00
Progress Comment: Use of Integrated Care Fund (ICF) monies to fund the provision of short term beds has helped to keep the number of people in residential care low.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

Performance

Previous Year Performance

Indicator Target
Trend

KPI Title

Actual RAG

www.cammsgroup.com - .



SCA/007 The percentage of adults with a care plan at 31st March whose care 98.21 97.52 ‘ 98
plans should have been reviewed that were reviewed during the year. (rolling
year)

AMBER

Lead Officer: Janet Bellis - Localities Manager
Reporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services
Aspirational Target: 98.00

Progress Comment: Slight dip in performance but impacted by a reduction in the number of reviews counted, due to difficulties with receiving monitoring information from Health.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
Previous Year Performance

RAG

KPI Title Indicator Target

Actual

Trend

SCA/018a The percentage of identified carers of adult service users who were 92.27 89.88 ‘ 94

offered an assessment in their own right during the year. AMBER

Lead Officer: Lin Hawtin - Commissioning Manager

Reporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services

spirational Target: 96.00

rogress Comment: Because of the paper pilot in line with the implementation of the integrated assessment framework we have been unable to collect reliable data for carers'
ssessments / services for Quarter 4. New data collection processes are being implemented to ensure that we can capture all relevant data going forward.

st Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
Previous Year Performance

RAG

KPI Title Actual Indicator Target

Actual
Trend
SCC/002 The percentage of children looked after at 31 March who have 0 13.38 ‘ 10
experienced one or more changes of school, during a period or periods of being
looked after, which were not due to transitional arrangements, in the 12
months to 31 March

AMBER

Lead Officer: Liz Barron - Business Planning & Project Co-ordinator

Reporting Officer: Liz Barron - Business Planning & Project Co-ordinator

Aspirational Target: 10.00

Progress Comment: Professionals work to retain placement stability where possible. Only extreme personal circumstances would dictate a move.

KPI Title Previous Year Actual Performance Target Performance

Actual Indicator RAG

www.cammsgroup.com - .




SCC/004 The percentage of children Looked After on the last day of the period
who have had three or more placements during the year — SNAPSHOT on last
day of period.

AMBER

Lead Officer: Craig Macleod - Senior Manager, Children's Services & Workforce
Reporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services
Aspirational Target: 5.60

Progress Comment: Performance has improved since last year; most placement moves are planned and reasons for placement breakdown are monitored.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

Performance

. Previous Year . Performance
KPI Title Actual Indicator
Actual RAG
Trend
SCC/011a The percentage of initial assessments that took place during the year 77 85.3 ' 80
where there is evidence that the child has been seen by a qualified Social
Worker.

Bead Officer: Craig Macleod - Senior Manager, Children's Services & Workforce
(Beporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services
FAspirational Target: 85.00
Progress Comment: Annual performance was above target and a significant improvement on the previous year.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
. Previous Year . Performance
KPI Title Indicator
Actual RAG
Trend

SCC/011b The percentage of initial assessments that took place during the year 57 52.6 ‘ 59
where there is evidence that the child has been seen alone by a qualified Social AMBER
Worker.

Lead Officer: Craig Macleod - Senior Manager, Children's Services & Workforce
Reporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services
Aspirational Target: 62.00

Progress Comment: There may be a number of reasons why children are not seen alone; this information is collected and verified with managers.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

www.cammsgroup.com - .



Previous Year PELDE Performance
KPI Title Actual Indicator Target
Actual Trend RAG

SCC/025 The percentage of statutory visits to looked after children due in the
year that took place in accordance with regulations.

Lead Officer: Craig Macleod - Senior Manager, Children's Services & Workforce

Reporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services

Aspirational Target: 95.00

Progress Comment: Teams have been working to improve the timeliness of statutory visits to looked after children. In Q4, 91.7% of visits were carried out within timescales; however
performance throughout the year has been impacted by capacity within the teams. The new structure in Children's Services should result in better performance going forward.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
Previous Year Performance

KPI Title Actual Actual Indicator RAG
Trend

|SCC/030a The percentage of young carers known to Social Services who were 100 100

. . - 100
sessed in the period

Read Officer: Craig Macleod - Senior Manager, Children's Services & Workforce
I?(eporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services
spirational Target:
Progress Comment: The Service Level Agreement with Barnardos has been revised; they have increased their capacity to provide assessments and services.

o0 ﬁR"\

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
. Previous Year Performance
KPI Title

Indicator
Actual RAG
Trend
SCC/033d The percentage of young people formerly looked after with whom 88.89 100 ' 90
the authority is in contact at the age of 19,

Lead Officer: Craig Macleod - Senior Manager, Children's Services & Workforce
Reporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services

Aspirational Target: 100.00

Progress Comment: All 19 year old care leavers were in contact with the authority.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

www.cammsgroup.com - .




Performance

. Previous Year
KPI Title Actual

Performance
RAG

Actual Indicator
Trend

SCC/033e The percentage of young people formerly looked after with whom the
authority is in contact at the age of 19, and known to be in suitable
accommodation,

Lead Officer: Craig Macleod - Senior Manager, Children's Services & Workforce
Reporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services
Aspirational Target: 100.00

Progress Comment: All 19 year old care leavers were in suitable accommodation.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
. Previous Year . Performance
KPI Title Actual Indicator
Actual RAG
Trend

;ECC/O33f The percentage of young people formerly looked after with whom the 87.5 87.5 P 75

(q@uthority is in contact at the age of 19, and known to be engaged in education,

(Rraining or employment

Egead Officer: Craig Macleod - Senior Manager, Children's Services & Workforce

Reporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services
Aspirational Target: 87.00

Progress Comment: Two 19 year old care leavers were not in education, training or employment in quarter 1. This cohort included two young women who had recently given birth.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

Performance
Actual Indicator Target
Trend

SCC/037 The average external qualifications point score for 16 year old looked 358 248.22 ‘ 270
after children in any local authority maintained learning setting

KPI Title Previous Year

Performance

Actual RAG

Lead Officer: Liz Barron - Business Planning & Project Co-ordinator
Reporting Officer: Liz Barron - Business Planning & Project Co-ordinator
Aspirational Target: 423.00

Progress Comment: New LAC Co-ordinator in post to monitor progression through more effective individual data analysis.

KPI Title Previous Year Actual Performance Target Performance

www.cammsgroup.com - .




Actual Indicator
Trend

SCC/041a The percentage of eligible, relevant and former relevant children that
have pathway plans as required. SNAPSHOT on last day of period

GREEN

Lead Officer: Craig Macleod - Senior Manager, Children's Services & Workforce

Reporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services

Aspirational Target: 100.00

Progress Comment: All care leavers had pathway plans as required on the last day of the period.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

Previous Year FELBITHEEE Performance
KPI Title Indicator

Actual RAG
cHis Trend

SCC/045 Timeliness of reviews for children (incl. CP/LAC and CIN) 86.32 97.18 ' 90

Lead Officer: Craig Macleod - Senior Manager, Children's Services & Workforce

eporting Officer: Jacque Slee - Performance Lead — Social Services

spirational Target: 95.00

rogress Comment: Teams have been working on improving the timeliness of child in need reviews, which has resulted in improved performance for reviews across the board. In
arter 4, performance for all reviews was 97.2%.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

. Performance
Previous Year Performance

RAG

KPI Title Indicator Target

Actual Trend

STS/005b The percentage of highways inspected of a high or acceptable 94.43 93.19 ‘ 95
standard of cleanliness

AMBER

Lead Officer: Barry Wilkinson - Highways Networks Manager

Reporting Officer: Nic Houston - Technical Officer

Aspirational Target: 95.00

Progress Comment: Due to the subjective nature of investigation at random site specific locations within the county, it is difficult to ensure targets are met and maintained. However,
the last few years have shown significant improvement since 2012/13 when performance was 76%.

Last Updated:

www.cammsgroup.com - .




. Performance
. Previous Year . Performance
KPI Title Actual Indicator
Actual RAG
Trend

STS/006 The percentage of reported fly tipping incidents cleared within 5
working days

Lead Officer: Barry Wilkinson - Highways Networks Manager

Reporting Officer: Mark Middleton - Streetscene Operations Manager South & Structures
Aspirational Target: 100.00

Progress Comment: The target has been exceeded and improvement demonstrated since last year.

. Performance
. Previous Year . Performance
KPI Title Actual Indicator
Actual RAG
Trend
THS/007 - The percentage of adults aged 60 or over who hold a concessionary 79.47 78.8 ‘ 79
bus pass AMBER

ad Officer: Katie Wilby - Transportation and Logistics Manager
eporting Officer: -
spirational Target: 80.00
rogress Comment: Excludes disabled pass holders and companion pass holders. The number of live passes in circulation has reduced following completion of the National Fraud
itiative (NFI) data matching exercise to identify deceased pass holders and hotlist their passes on the card management system.

Last Updated: 15-Jun-2016

. Performance
Previous Year Performance

KPI Title Actual Indicator Target
Trend

WMT/004(b) The percentage of municipal waste collected by local authorities 42.28 24.24 ' 20
sent to landfill

RAG

Lead Officer: Harvey Mitchell - Waste and Ancillary Services Manager
Reporting Officer: Danielle Richards - Area Recycling Officer
Aspirational Target: 30.00

Progress Comment: 2015/16 has seen a further significant reduction in the total tonnage of MSW to landfill due to the implementation of a residual waste treatment contract.

Last Updated: 14-Jun-2016

www.cammsgroup.com - .




re aRv 1

www.cammsgroup.com |. I.




Ot abed

www.cammsgroup.com |. I.




Agenda Iltem 5

Sir y Fflint
"E!En!o%!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 21 June 2016
Report Subject Food Service Plan for Flintshire County Council 2016-17
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Waste Strategy, Public Protection
and Leisure
Report Author Chief Officer (Planning and Environment)
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Food Service Plan 2016-17 provides an overview of the Food Service. It sets
out the aims and objectives for the forthcoming year and how these are to be
achieved. The Plan also contains a review of performance of the service against
the Food Service Plan 2015-16.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1

That members approve the Food Service Plan for 2016-17.

Page 41



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE FOOD PLAN FOR FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
2016-17

1.01

Local Authorities throughout the U.K. have been directed by the Food
Standards Agency (FSA) to take the necessary action to implement the
Framework Agreement on the Local Authority Food Law Enforcement.
This Framework Agreement became operational from 1st April 2001. The
Framework has been developed to ensure consistent food law
enforcement service throughout the country.

1.02

The Service Plan has been produced by officers of the Food Safety and
Standards Team within the Planning and Environment portfolio in line with
the model format contained within the Framework Agreement. It outlines
the proposals for service delivery for the period 1st April 2016 to 31st
March 2017. It also contains a review of the Service Plan for 2015-16 with
overall performance for 2015-16 detailed in Appendix 3 within the Service
Plan.

1.03

The elements of the Food Service, namely Food Safety, Food Standards
and Animal Feed sit under two Team Leaders. The Team Leader — Food
Safety and Food Standards reports to the Public Protection Service
Manager - Business. The Team Leader for Trading Standards Compliance
and Animal Feed reports in to the Public Protection Service Manager -
Community.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

The cost of implementing the plan will be met within the existing Planning
and Environment portfolio budget.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

None required.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

The Plan follows the ‘farm to fork’ principle to ensure food is safe for
consumption by all.

5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

Food Service Plan 2016-17._

Page 42




6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 | Contact Officer: Helen O’Loughlin
Telephone: 01352 703390
E-mail: helen.o’loughlin@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | Food Standards Agency Wales - is a non-ministerial government

department supported by seven agencies and public bodies. It is the
central competent authority for the UK in relation to European Union food
legislation. In Wales, it is responsible for Food Safety and Hygiene and
Food Labelling Policy. It works with local authorities to enforce Food
Safety, Standards and Feed regulations.

Food Law Code of Practice (Wales) 2014 - the Food Law Code of
Practice is issued under section 40 of the Food Safety Act 1990 (the Act),
regulation 24 of the Food Hygiene (Wales) Regulations 2006,1 and
regulation 6 of the Official Feed and Food Controls (Wales) Regulations
2007, and sets out the execution and enforcement of that legislation by
Food Authorities. It relates to Wales only.

EU Regulation 853/2004 — is one of a set of three regulations that relate
to Food Hygiene. This specific set of regulations supports the general
hygiene requirements set out in EU Regulation 852/2004 and lays down
specific regulations for products of animal origin.

Natural Resources Wales (NRW) — is the largest Welsh Government
sponsored body. It was formed in 2013 and took on the functions of the
Environment Agency, Countryside Council for Wales, and Forestry
Commission Wales in addition to other Welsh Government functions. It is
the principal advisor to Welsh Government on issues relating to the
environment and its natural resources as well as being a regulator of these
areas.

Centre for Environment, Fisheries and Aquaculture Science (CEFAS)
—is an executive agency sponsored by the Department for Environment,
Food, Fisheries and Rural Affairs which collects, manages and interprets
data on the aquatic environment, biodiversity and fisheries.

North Western Inshore Fisheries and Conservation Authority (NW
IFCA) - the North Western Inshore Fisheries and Conservation Authority
was established under the Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 and the
North Western Eastern Fisheries and Conservation Order 2010. NWIFCA
is one of 10 IFCA managing and regulating English coastal waters. The
statutory duties of the IFCA are set out in the Act

Ship Sanitation Certificate - A Ship Sanitation Certificate is a document
that corroborates a ship's compliance with maritime sanitation and
quarantine rules specified in article 39 of the International Health

Page 43



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Quarantine
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/International_Health_Regulations

Regulations (2005) issued by the World Health Organization.

Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Act 2013 — this Act introduces a national
food hygiene rating scheme in Wales.

North Wales Feed Law Enforcement Delivery Plan (NWFLEDP) - is the
FSA Wales funded plan that was introduced in April 2015 following a
review by FSA Wales in 2014 of the delivery of feed law enforcement
across Wales. The plan is delivered regionally through the collaboration of
the six North Wales local authorities with Wrexham CBC acting as the
project lead authority to deliver against priorities that are reviewed and set
annual by FSA Wales.

The Feed Law Code of Practice (Wales) 2014 (FLCP) - sets out
instructions and criteria to which local authorities ‘the feed authorities’
should have regard when engaged in the enforcement of animal feed law.
Feed authorities must follow and implement the provisions of the Code that
apply to them. It relates to Wales only. There is separate provision in
England.

Enforcement Concordat - the Government introduced the Enforcement
Concordat in 1998 in collaboration with business and local and national
regulators. The aim was to promote good enforcement that brings benefits
to business, enforcers and consumers. The Enforcement Concordat
encourages partnership working between enforcers and businesses, and
sets out the Principles of Good Enforcement which enforcers should apply
in order to achieve higher levels of voluntary compliance.

Regulators’ Compliance Code - this Code was laid before Parliament in
accordance with section 23 of the Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act
2006 (“the Act”). Regulators whose functions are specified by order under
section 24(2) of the Act must have regard to the Code when developing
policies and operational procedures that guide their regulatory activities.
Regulators must equally have regard to the Code when setting standards
or giving guidance which will guide the regulatory activities of other
regulators.

Local Government Performance Improvement Framework — The
framework under which local government collects, compares and
publishes its own set of performance indicators alongside the Welsh
Government’s national set of performance indicators. The Performance
Improvement Framework focuses on three distinct areas:

o National Strategic Indicators (NSls): statutory indicators set by
Welsh Ministers

e Public Accountability Measures (PAMs)- local authority owned
measures designed to contribute to public accountability; and

e Service Improvement Data (SIDs)- meaningful datasets for use by
services and their regulators to support service improvement.

Local Authority Enforcement Monitoring Systems (LAEMS) - LAEMS
is a web-based system used to report local authority food law enforcement

Page 44



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/International_Health_Regulations
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/World_Health_Organization

activities to the Food Standards Agency.

Alternative Enforcement Strategy — every Competent Authority must
devise an Alternative Enforcement Strategy to determine how they will
conduct official controls duties at premises rated as low risk (i.e. rated
Category E for food hygiene and Category C for food standards)

Better Regulation Delivery Office — the Better Regulation Delivery office
oversees the Primary Authority Scheme. They are part of Regulatory
Delivery which combines policy expertise and practical experience to
ensure that regulation is effectively delivered in ways that reduce burdens
on business, save public money and properly protect citizens and
communities.

Primary Authority - the principles of Primary Authority are set out in the
Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008 (as amended), and is
overseen by the Better Regulation Delivery Office (BRDO) on behalf of the
Secretary of State for the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills
(BIS). The FSA works closely with BRDO in its work to support the delivery
of Primary Authority for food regulators.

The scheme gives businesses the right to form a statutory partnership with
one Competent Authority, which then provides robust and reliable advice
for other Competent Authorities to take into account when carrying out
inspections or dealing with non-compliance.

Home Authority Principle — is the principle which operates in situations
when a business does not have a Primary Authority partnership in place
(e.g. if a business chooses not to enter into a partnership or is legally
unable to have one), but where there remains a clear need for regulatory
activity in relation to that business to be co-ordinated. For example,
instances of non-compliance that could be geographically widespread,
potentially leading to similar but unconnected regulatory interventions by
several Competent Authorities. . It is governed by a Joint Statement of
Commitment (JSoC) signed in June 2011 by BRDO, the Trading
Standards Institute (TSI) and the Chartered Institute of Environmental
Health (CIEH.

Local Government Regulation - Local Government Regulation is one of
the six bodies that form the Local Government Group overseen by the
Local Government Association (LGA). It provides advice and guidance to a
number of regulatory services in the United Kingdom. The organisation
provides guidance notes at its website and appoints some Local Authority
experts as 'Lead Officers', contacts who will advise other officers.

UK Food Surveillance System (UKFSS) - the UK Food Surveillance
System (UKFSS) is a national database for central storage of analytical
results from feed and food samples taken by enforcement authorities (local
authorities and port health authorities) as part of their official controls.

Food Alert — a “Food Alert for Action” (FAFA) is a communication from the
FSA to a Competent Authority concerning a food hazard or other food
incident, and a “Food Alert Update” must be read accordingly. Where the
FSA requires any actions/responses by the Competent Authority, these will

Page 45



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Local_Government_Association#Local_Government_Group
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Local_Government_Association
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/United_Kingdom

be clearly specified.

Food Incident - a “food incident” is defined as any event where, based on
the information available, there are concerns about actual or suspected
threats to the safety or quality of food and that might require intervention to
protect consumers' interests.

Veterinary Medicines Directorate (VMD) - protects animal health, public
health and the environment. It promotes animal health and welfare by
assuring the safety, quality and efficacy of veterinary medicines. As an
executive agency of the Department of Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs (Defra) it contributes to Defra’s objectives to protect public health
and meet high standards of animal welfare. Its work also helps the Food
Standards Agency to protect and improve the safety of food people eat.

The Animal and Plant Health Agency (APHA) - was launched on 1
October 2014. It merged the former Animal Health and Veterinary
Laboratories Agency (AHVLA) with parts of the Food and Environment
Research Agency (FERA) responsible for plant and bee health to create a
single agency responsible for animal, plant and bee health.

Chartered Trading Standards Institute (CTSI) — is a professional
membership association formed in 1881. It represents trading standards
professionals working in the UK and overseas in local authorities, the
business and consumer sectors and in central government. It exists to
promote and protect the success of a modern vibrant economy, and to
safeguard the health, safety and wellbeing of citizens by enhancing the
professionalism of its members.

National Trading Standards (NTS) - was set up in 2012 by UK
Government as part of changes to the consumer protection landscape. Its
role is to provide leadership, influence, support and resources to help
combat consumer and business detriment nationally, regionally and
locally. Bringing together trading standards representatives from England
and Wales to prioritise, fund and coordinate national and regional
enforcement cases.

Wales Heads of Trading Standards (WHoOTS) - represents the 22
Trading Standards Services in Wales. The aim of WHoTS is to work in
partnership to provide a coordinated, consistent and improved service to
Welsh Businesses and Welsh Consumers. WHoTS was formed in
response to the demand for continuous service improvement in Wales.
The organisation acts under the auspices of the Directors of Public
Protection Wales and provides a strategic leadership role for the Welsh
Service.

Critical Control Points (CCPs) - animal health and welfare CCPs are set
by Welsh Government and are defined as being the agreed businesses,
premises or locations at which controls can be applied resulting in the
reduction in risk of the introduction or spread of notifiable disease in
England and Wales.

Continuing Professional Development - Continuing Professional
Development (CPD) is the means by which professionals maintain and

Page 46




enhance their knowledge and skills.

Food Information Regulations Improvement Notices (FIRIINs) - is an
enforcement power available to local authorities whereby they may issue
an improvement notice where there has been a failure by a food business
operator to comply with any of the provisions of the EU Food Information
for Consumers Regulations listed in Schedule 3 to the Food Information
Regulations 2013 SI.

Page 47




This page is intentionally left blank



SERVICE PLAN
2016-2017

Page 49

CYNGOR

Sir y Fflint
F!—'Iin:(shjre

IDUNTY DOUNC




FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
FOOD SERVICE PLAN 2016-17

The Service Plan relates to the year commencing 1st
April 2016 and ending 31st March 2017.

It covers the service provision for the Food Safety, Food
Standards and Feed functions of Flintshire County
Council.

The purpose of this Plan is to provide:

o Information about the scope of the Service.

o Information about the services provided.

o Infor_m_ation about the means of Service
provision.

o Information about performance of the Food

Service against Performance Targets set out in
Plan as well as against national or locally defined
Performance Indicators.

o Information relating to reviewing performance in
order to address any variance from meeting the
requirements of the Service Plan.

Service Plans will be produced annually to allow for
meaningful review and progression, in accordance not
only with the requirements of the Food Standards
Agency “Framework Agreement on Local Authority
Food Law Enforcement” but also with the principles of
the “Wales Programme for Improvement”.

This Service Plan also forms part of the Authority’s
commitment to delivering the aspirations of the Local
Service Board to provide citizen centred services and to
work in collaboration and co-operation.

Page 50



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
FOOD SERVICE PLAN 2016-17

CONTENTS Page No.
1.0 SERVICE AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

1.1 Aims and Obijectives 1

1.2 Links to Corporate Objectives and Plans 2-3
2.0 BACKGROUND

2.1  Authority Profile 3

2.2 Organisational Structure 3

2.3 Scope of the Food Service 4-5

2.4 Demands on the Food Service 5-9

2.5 Enforcement Policy 9-10
3.0 SERVICE DELIVERY

3.1 Food Premises Inspections 10-12

3.1.1 Additional Targeted Inspection/Enforcement Activity 12

3.1.2 Resources for Inspections and Additional Enforcement 12-13

Activity

3.2 Food/Feed Complaints 13-14

3.3 Primary Authority Principle 15

3.4  Advice to Business 15-16

3.5 Food Inspection and Sampling 17-19

3.6 Control and Investigation of Outbreaks and Food 19-20

Related Infectious Disease

3.7 Food/Feed Safety Incidents 20

3.8 Liaison with Other Organisations 21-22

3.9 Food Safety & Food Standards and Feed Promotion 22-24
4.0 RESCOURCES

4.1 Financial Allocation 24-25

4.2  Staffing Allocation 25-28

4.3 Staff Development Plan 28-29
5.0 QUALITY ASSESSMENT

5.1 Quality Assessment 29-30
6.0 REVIEW PROCESS

6.1 Review against Service Plan 30-31

6.2 Review of Performance Against 2015/2016 Service Plan 31-32

6.3 Areas of Improvement 2016/2017 32-33

6.4 Forthcoming Considerations 34-35

APPENDIX 1

Organisational Charts for the Service
Chart 1 — Organisation Structure of Flintshire County Council 36
Chart 2 — The Cabinet Structure of Flintshire County Council 37

Chart 3 — The Organisational Structure of the Food Team 38
within the Public Protection Service

APPENDIX 2
Profile of Programmed Inspections 2016-17 39-40
APPENDIX 3
Performance 2015-2016 41-43
APPENDIX 4
Update on FSA Action Plan 44-54

Page 51



1.1 Aimsand The aims of the Food Service are to:
Objectives
1. Promote, through education and enforcement, the
sale and/or production of food which is fit and without
risk to health.

2. Prevent and control the spread of food borne illness
through education and enforcement.

These will be achieved by:

(@) Providing a complete and holistic food law
enforcement service covering the areas of food
hygiene and safety, food standards and animal feed
in accordance with relevant food legislation and
Codes of Practice, thereby fulfilling statutory
obligations.

(b) Providing a responsive service to demand driven
elements such as food safety incidents, outbreaks of
food related infectious disease, complaints and
request for advice from both businesses and
members of the public, in accordance with the
National and locally defined performance indictors,
relevant Codes of Practice, plans and protocols.

(c) Assisting businesses to comply with all relevant
legislation by using a balance of techniques and
approaches in order to ensure the safety and well
being of the Public and of the environment in line
with the Public Protection Enforcement Policy 2010.

(d) Maintaining an up-to-date database of all food
establishments in the County so that resources can
be effectively defined and utilised to meet statutory,
national and locally defined targets of inspection,
sampling, specific initiatives and tasks set by Food
Standards Agency Wales (FSA), other agencies, or
based on local need.

(e) Providing an open and transparent Food Service

with clear lines of communication for all service
users.

Page 52



1.2 Links to Corporate
Objectives and
Plans

The Food Service links to the Single Integrated Plan and
the Improvement Plan for the Council. There are five key
priorities contained in the Single Integrated Plan, these
are:

1. Economic Prosperity
2. Health Improvement
Learning and Skills for Life

Living Sustainably

a &~

Safe and Supportive Communities

The Food Service Plan has direct links with the County
Improvement Priorities and Improvement Plan 2012 —
2017. The improvement Plan sets out the full list of the
Council's eight priorities for the period 2012- 2017. Each
year, sub-priorities are chosen which will receive
significant attention over a particular year and where we
will make a bigger impact.

The Food Service sits within the Public Protection
Service of the Planning and Environment Portfolio. Each
Service area within Public Protection writes annual
Operational Action Plans, which have been informed by a
range of external and internal drivers and through a
greater focus on robust risk assessment, intelligence led
intervention, targeting and performance management. All
team members contribute to devising the Operational
Action Plans for each Service Area.

Food Safety is a statutory duty of the Council. Targets to
be achieved are set in relation to both National
Performance Accountability Measures and Service
Improvement Data. A Corporate Performance
Management System termed CAMMS, monitors
performance of all services within the Council and these
are reported quarterly. The areas reported on are the
Performance Accountability Measure, “the percentage of
premises Broadly Compliant with Food Hygiene
Legislation” and the following Service Improvement Data:

(@) The percentage of High Risk Food Safety
inspections carried out.

(b)  The percentage of High Risk Food Standards
inspections carried out. This is reported in the
Trading Standards figure, as are (d) and (e).

(c) The percentage of new businesses inspected for
Food Safety.

Page53



(d)  The percentage of new businesses inspected for
Food Standards.

(e)  The percentage of significant breaches resolved in
relation to Food Standards.

(f)  The percentage of High Risk Feed inspections
carried out.

(@) The percentage of new businesses inspected for
Feed.

The Food Service will continue to implement
performance management systems to improve the
efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery in a
meaningful way to the citizens of Flintshire.

2.1 Authority Profile Flintshire is a Unitary Authority. The County has an area
of 43,464 hectares and a population of approximately
152,700 as per the 2011 Census. The County is made up
of a mixture of small towns and conurbations, particularly
to the south and predominately rural and agricultural land
located in the north. The population is subjected to small
seasonal fluctuations due to influx of tourists to the area.
It has a number of industrial estates on which many
manufacturers including food manufacturers are located,
as well as headquarters for several food manufacturers
including one large national food retailer. The coastal
edge of Flintshire County Council abuts the Dee Estuary
upon which cockle and mussel beds are situated and
there is a small port located at Mostyn.

2.2 Organisational The Food Service is part of the Public Protection Service
Structure within the Planning and Environment portfolio area. The

Food Safety and Food Standards functions both fall under
the responsibility of the Team Leader — Food Safety and
Food Standards. Feed is managed by Team Leader -
Trading Standards Compliance and Animal Health. The
Team Leader — Food Safety and Food Standards reports
in to the Public Protection Service Manager — Business
and the Team Leader — Trading Standards Compliance
and Animal Health reports in to the Public Protection
Service Manager — Community. The organisation
structure of the Food Service is illustrated on the chart
detailed in Appendix 1. Appendix 1 also includes the
Management and Cabinet structure of the Council.

Specialist services are provided by Public Health
England, Public Health Wales and Public Analyst
Scientific Services as the Public Analyst (See Section 3.5).

Page 3



2.3 Scope of the Food
Service

The scope of the respective component parts of the
service are detailed below:

Food Safety

The Food Safety component of the service has the
following responsibilities and service provision:

Enforcement of relevant food safety and food
hygiene legislation, in all food establishments in
Flintshire.

Registration of food businesses and approval of
premises subject to compliance with product
specific legislation (meat products, fish, shellfish,
fishery products and dairy products).
Implementation of the National Food Hygiene
Rating Act.

Investigation of food complaints that relate to fitness
of food for human consumption as well as food
complaints that relate to the nature, substance or
microbiological quality of the food, taking
appropriate action as necessary. In addition,
investigation of all complaints which relate to
hygiene matters (premises, practices, personnel) in
food businesses.

Investigation of sporadic cases of food (including
water) related notifiable diseases and suspected
cases of food poisoning.

Investigation and control of outbreaks of food
poisoning and food related notifiable diseases.
Response to Food Alerts and food related incidents
taking appropriate action as necessary.

Advice to new and existing business, responses to
plans, licensing and land charges referrals.
Providing Export Certificates to allow movement of
food from the UK to countries outside the EU.

Act as Primary Authority for Iceland Food Retail
Stores and act as Home and/or Originating
Authority for other companies where necessary.
Undertake food sampling in accordance with the
Sampling Programme.

Educational and promotional initiatives

Food Standards

The Food Standards component of the service has the
following responsibilities and service provision:

Respond to requests for consumer advice in

Pages55



2.4 Demands of
the Food
Service

matters regarding food standards, labelling and

composition.

o Undertake a pre-planned programme of visits to
food premises within Flintshire.

o Investigation of complaints relating to the nature,

quality or substance of food and complaints
relating to mislabelling of food taking appropriate
action as necessary.

o Provide advice, information and assistance to food
businesses including promotion of the use of the
Flintshire Trading Standards Information Pack.

o Undertake food sampling in accordance with the

Sampling Programme and in response to incidents.
o Undertake promotional and educational initiatives.
o Undertake duties and responsibilities as Primary

Authority for Iceland Food Retail Stores and act as
Home Authority and Originating Authority for other
food businesses within Flintshire where necessary.

Feed

The Feed component of the service has the following
responsibilities and service provision:

o Undertake a pre-planned programme of visits to
feed premises within Flintshire.

o Provide advice, information and support to feed
businesses.

o Investigation of complaints relating to feedstuffs

and sampling of feed as when required.

The Service Delivery Point for the Food Safety, Food
Standards and Feed Service is County Hall, Mold. For
all of the above, the Service Delivery Points are open
during normal office hours of 8.30 a.m. — 5.00 p.m.
There is no official “out of hours” provision. However,
there are systems in place to contact relevant staff
should an emergency situation arise via the Care
Connect Service.

There are 1326 food premises in Flintshire. Of the total
number of food premises in Flintshire approximately 944
are caterers, with the remainder being made up
predominantly by 335 retailers. The catering
establishments cover a wide range of premises varying
from restaurants, schools, hotels, pubs, residential care
homes, hospitals to mobile food vehicles.

Page 36



There are currently 44 food manufacturing and packing
businesses within Flintshire, 10 of which are approved
under EU Regulation 853/2004 as they handle products
of animal origin. These regulations place additional
control measures on these types of premises and on the
Local Authority. The number of premises which fall into
this category is due to increase this year due to the
change in interpretation of a particular clause of the
legislation by the Food Standards Agency. They have
therefore directed local authorities to implement this new
interpretation by the end of June 2016. This will raise this
number to 16 premises approved under EU Regulation
853/2004.

The types of food manufacturers within Flintshire vary
greatly in the types of processes they use to produce
food. These range from cooked meat and ready meal
manufacturers with national distribution, through to an on-
farm milk pasteuriser supplying milk locally. The diversity
in the types of manufacturers operating within the County
places a significant demand on the breadth and depth of
knowledge required by officers within the Team.

Dee Estuary

The Dee Estuary has three cockle beds falling within
Flintshire’s jurisdiction. There are also 2 mussel beds.
However neither of these are open for harvesting at
present. The shellfish beds can place significant demands
on the Team, particularly during the six month cockle
opening season. The management of the Dee accounts
for a large portion of the Sampling Budget due to the
statutory sampling of the water and shellfish.
Enforcement on the Dee involves a cross-agency
partnership working with National Resources Wales,
Wirral Council, the Centre for Environment, Fisheries and
Aquaculture Science (CEFAS), other neighbouring Local
Authorities, the North Western Inshore Fisheries and
Conservation Authorities and the Food Standards Agency
Wales.

Port Health
There is a small port at Mostyn for which the Food Team
has responsibility in relation to the ships coming into port

requiring a Ship Sanitation Certificate or a food hygiene
inspection.

Pagess7



National Food Hyqgiene Rating Act

The Council implemented the National Food Hygiene
Rating Scheme in December 2010. Since 28th November
2013, the Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Act 2013 came in
to force. The administration of this Act accounts for a
considerable volume of work for the Team. As of 28"
November 2014, the Act also applied to businesses that
operate trade to trade.

Premises Profile

The premises profile, as defined in the Food Law Code of
Practice (Wales) April 2014, is detailed in Table 1:

Table 1: Breakdown of premises profile by risk band for Food
Safety and Food Standards.

FOOD STANDARDS FOOD SAFETY
Risk Min, | NO Risk Min, | NO
of of
. 12
High 13 A 6 months| 2
months
. 12
High B months 31
Medium 2 years | 400 C 18 453
months
Low Syears | 723 | Low D 2 years | 253
E 3years | 543
OUTSIDE 15 OUTSIDE 24
UNRATED 175 UNRATED 20
TOTAL 1326 TOTAL 1326

Please note: there are 5 bands of risk for Food Safety,
with A to C being deemed to be High Risk and only 3
bands of risk in Food Standards, with only A being
deemed High Risk.

Feed

Under the EU Feed Hygiene Regulation (183/2005) feed
activities are clearly defined and are broken down in to
‘Approved’ and ‘Registered’ feed activities. Activities
requiring Approval include any activity involving the
manufacture and/or placing on the market of feed
additives including zootechnical products (the technology
of animal husbandry), with all such activities being
classed as high risk. There are currently no businesses

Page 58



in Flintshire that have an approval under the Regulation.
‘Registered’ feed activities are all other feed activities that
are undertaken of which there are 14 registerable feed
activities defined and coded by the FSA.

In Flintshire there are a total of 404 registered feed
premises which are currently registered for a total of 509
registerable feed activities. These activities are made up
as follows: 340 are registered as farms (Livestock or
arable), 18 as feed manufacturing and packing
businesses, 92 as on farm feed mixers, and 42
businesses registered for the supply of surplus food or co-
products of manufacture. The remainder of the registered
premises are engaged in storage 7, transportation and
distribution of feed 10.

The diversity in the types of feed businesses operating
and activities being undertaken within the County places
a significant demand on the breadth and depth of
knowledge required by officers within the Team.

Following a review by Food Standards Agency Wales in
2014 of the delivery of Animal Feeding Stuffs
Enforcement across Wales, with effect from 015t April
2015 the system for risk assessing feed activities was
simplified with all registerable feed activities across Wales
being broken down in to one of two categories based on
risk. These two categories are referred to as ‘Above the
Line’ and ‘Below the Line".

Above the line activities are the high risk activities and
those premises include all businesses undertaking any
‘Approved’ feed activity and those engaged in
‘Registered’ feed activities involving production,
processing, storage, transportation, sale of feed. These
activities require a ‘qualified’ and competent officer to
inspect them.

Below the line activities are the low risk activities that
include premises that are feeding animal feed stuffs to
livestock or growing straight feed crops that are to be
consumed in their natural state such as silage. This
applies to all of Flintshire’s farms.

The frequency of inspection of feed premises has since
15t April 2015 been determined by FSA Wales with the
launch of the FSA Wales sponsored North Wales Feed
Enforcement Delivery Plan. The plan for 2015/16 required
Flintshire to inspect premises across the county for a total
of 76 registered feed activities, 54 of these were above

Pagegs9



2.5 Enforcement Policy

the line with the remaining 22 being below the line. The
figures for 2016/17 are 52 above the line inspections, and
26 below the line inspections giving a total of 78 for the
year. The breakdown of the Feed premises profile is
detailed below by risk band:

Table 2: Breakdown of the premises profile by risk band for
Feed.

FEEDINGSTUFFS

No. of
registered
Risk Frequency of Inspection activities
subject to
inspection
Every 3 years.*
. * 31.5% of high risk
High inspections are curgrently being 169
conducted per annum as per
2015/2017 FSA Wales plan.
Every 14 years.*
. *7% of low risk inspections are
Low/Mediu currently being cogducted per 340
m annum as per FSA Wales
plan.
TOTAL inspectable registered activities 509

The vast majority of food business owners are English
speaking with a minor requirement for written reports in
Welsh. All advisory literature is produced bilingually in
accordance with the Welsh Language Standards of the
Council which came in to force on 30 March 2016.
Approximately 14% of residents in Flintshire are
recorded as Welsh speaking.

Approximately 4% of food businesses are of ethnic origin
(Asian, Chinese, Turkish and Greek) and once again
advisory literature is available in a range of ethnic
languages to assist in understanding.

The Food Service undertakes enforcement in
accordance with the Public Protection Enforcement
Policy which has been updated and approved by
Members in 2010. This policy has been based upon the
principles of the Enforcement Concordat adopted by
Members in September 2000 and the Regulators
Compliance Code.

Page G0




There is also an Enforcement Policy for residents entitled
“Regulation and Enforcement — Involving Local
Residents”, which was approved by Council in

September 2011.
3.1. Food Premises Flintshire County Council has one Performance
Inspections Accountability Measure detailed in the Local Government

Performance Improvement Framework 2016-17 and a
number of Service Improvement Data relating to all 3
areas of the Service for 2016/2017 which are detailed in
1.2.

The Food Service will carry out inspections in relation to
the Performance Indicator, in accordance with pre-
planned programmes drawn up annually and
commencing on 1st April each year, to coincide with the
reporting requirements for the Service to the Food
Standards Agency Wales, as part of the Local Authority
Enforcement Monitoring System (LAEMS). These
inspection programmes are based on the risk rating of
the premises/trader so that there is a targeting of
resources to ensure that those premises/traders with a
high or medium risk are prioritised for inspection.

Food Safety and Food Standards

The performance of the Food Safety and Food
Standards Team in 2015/2016 was excellent with the
Team achieving 100% of High Risk inspections for both
Food Safety and Food Standards. The target of 87% of
new businesses to be inspected for Food Hygiene was
exceeded with 87.7% actually being achieved. The Food
Standards New Business target of 75% was also
exceeded by achieving 87.4%. This was enabled by the
majority of new business inspections being undertaken
by the officers who are authorised to carry out both Food
Standards and Food Safety inspections thereby
facilitating the inspections being completed by one visit.
This also ties in with the Reducing the Burden on
Business agenda by combining the 2 types of inspection.

There is a Public Accountability Measure in place,
namely the percentage of businesses which are Broadly
Compliant with Food Hygiene legislation. For 2015-16,
this figure has improved from 95.6% to 96.4% of food
businesses within Flintshire falling into this category.

Page®l



For D risk band Food Hygiene inspections, a figure of
100% of inspections was achieved and a total of 91.3%
of E risk band premises interventions achieved. For the E
risk band premises, this was by a combination of both
inspections and alternative enforcement questionnaires
as permitted by the Food Law Code of Practice (Wales)
2014.

The key objectives for the coming year in relation to
programmed inspection and enforcement work are as
follows:

Food Safety

o Inspect 100% of High Risk (A-C risk bands) food
premises for Food Safety.

o Inspect all D risk band premises for Food
Hygiene.
o Undertake a physical inspection all E risk band

premises for Food Hygiene that fall within the
scope of the Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Act
2013 but have not had a physical inspection since
the introduction of the legislation.

o To revisit all premises receiving a Food Hygiene
Rating of 2 or lower, in line with the All Wales
Reuvisit Policy written by the All Wales Food Safety
Expert Group.

Food Standards

o Inspect 100% of all High Risk (A) risk band food
premises for Food Standards.

o Inspect all overdue Medium Risk (B) risk band
premises for Food Standards.

o To use the Alternative Enforcement Strategy on all
eligible C risk band premises for Food Standards.

o Inspect all C risk band premises for Food

Standards that fall out of the scope of being
included in the Alternative Enforcement Strategy.

o Undertake a physical inspection of all premises
that have not yet been inspected for Food
Standards.

[ ]

A full breakdown of premises programmed for inspection
2016-2017 in relation to their risk band is given in
Appendix 2. For Food Hygiene this gives a total of 648
inspections due and for Food Standards a total of 499
inspections due.

Page 62-



3.1.1 Additional Targeted
Inspection/
Enforcement
Activity

3.1.2 Resources for
Inspections and
Additional
Enforcement Activity

Feed

Following a major review of feed service delivery across
Wales conducted by FSA Wales in 2014 all feed work
across Wales since 015t April 2015 has been delivered
as part of collaborative working based on regional
delivery plans. These plans have been developed in
conjunction with FSA Wales and are based on priorities
set by FSA Wales.

Currently the FSA are specifying the level of inspection
each year as part of their plan. This has seen during
2015/16 an inspection level of 31% for high risk and
6.5% of low/medium risk. This was met in full by
Flintshire. For 2016/17 the targets set by FSA are 32%
and 7.6% respectively.

Additional targeted inspection and enforcement activity
due to be undertaken is as follows:

o Proactive sampling work on Food Standards
Authenticity. This is detailed in Section 3.5.
o Effective and professional liaison, communication

and co-operation with Iceland Frozen Foods, other
LA’s and Better Regulation Delivery Office relating
to Primary Authority (PA) matters.

o Investigation of notified food safety related fraud
incidents, such as illegal slaughter of meat,
including referrals made anonymously.

o Issue of Sanitary Certificates as appropriate for
incoming vessels to the Port of Mostyn.

o Appropriate response and liaison with other
agencies as necessary for Civil Contingency
matters.

o Assessing non-compliance with the Food Hygiene

Rating (Wales) Act 2013, in regard to mandatory
display of food hygiene ratings stickers and taking
any enforcement action, as necessary.

o Additional proactive inspection at the Urdd
Eisteddfod being held in Flint at the end of May
2016.

Food Safety and Food Standards

The programmed food hygiene inspections will be
undertaken by Environmental Health Officers (EHO) and
Food Safety Officers (FSO). A full breakdown of
resources is given in 4.2 — Staffing Allocation.

Paga63



3.2

Food/Feed
Complaints

Food Standards work will be carried by our Trading
Standards Officer, EHOs and FSOs who have completed
their Food Standards module.

One of our Food Safety Officers returned to their post as
of 15t October 2015. This officer will not be undertaking
Food Standards work until they have achieved the
additional qualification required. Unfortunately this will
not be actioned until 2018 due to the course being fully
booked until this date. The Food Standards Agency have
been asked to look at this as many local authorities are
needing their Food Safety Officers to obtain this
additional qualification.

Other areas of Trading Standards work within food
premises such as Weights and Measures will be carried
out by the Trading Standards Officer within the Food
Team. This places an absolute requirement for a fully
competent Trading Standards Officer to be within the
Team.

Feed

All aspects of feed work will be carried out by 0.2 FTE
fully qualified Trading Standards Officer and 0.2 FTE
Trading Standards Enforcement Officer.

Food complaints cover the full range relating to fitness
for human consumption, presence of extraneous matter
in foods, microbial contamination and Food Standards
issues such as: food labelling, chemical adulteration and
spoilage of food.

It is the policy of the Food Service to investigate all food
complaints reported including those made anonymously.

Food Safety and Food Standards

All food complaints are dealt with in accordance with the
Food Law Code of Practice (Wales) April 2014, having
regard to the documented Public Protection Enforcement
Policy 2010.

Based on statistics for previous years, the estimated
number of Food Safety and Food Standards complaints
is between 100 and 120 excluding Primary Authority
referrals.

Page-64-



Please note the above figures do not indicate dealing
with food complaints referred by other Local Authorities
when acting as Home, Originating or Primary Authority.

The Food Standards Agency have developed a new
Food Problem Reporting System, which has only
recently been introduced. Early indications are that the
number of complaints will increase due to this system
being introduced.

Feed

All feed complaints will be dealt with in accordance with
the Feed Law Code of Practice of (Wales) 2014, having
regard to the documented Public Protection Enforcement
Policy 2010.

The number of feed related complaints received by the
service is low, typically no more than 3 a year. This is
because the majority of transactions involving the buying
and selling of feed are business to business contracts
that are based on written specifications agreed as part of
contracts between manufacturer/seller and the buyer.

Buyers and producers/sellers of animal feed for the
agriculture industry work very closely together, feed
formulations are often made on a bespoke nature to
include ingredients for a specific purpose for use by
specific animals or groups of animals. Adverse effects of
feed on livestock are often due to how the feed has been
used rather than how it has been made, examples
investigated by officers include the wrong type of feed
being given to the wrong type of animal (poisoning), over
feeding, and incorrect or unsafe storage (inadvertent
cross contamination) by the purchaser.

Complaints received when investigated are generally
down to the user rather than the producer and the effects
are therefore limited to one premises or business. This
makes this area quite a complex one to deal with a
heavy reliance on the honesty of the buyer to be open
with officers with regard to their own acts or omissions
that may have caused illness or injury to their livestock.

Complaints are largely dealt with between the industries
themselves (feed producers and livestock producers)
and the intervention of Trading Standards Officers is
treated as a last resort to act as arbiters where the usual
protocols have failed.

Paga65



3.3 Primary Authority
Principle

3.4 Advice to
Business

Food Safety and Food Standards

Flintshire County Council subscribes to both the Primary
and the Home Authority Principle. The Food Service
acts as both Home Authority and/or Originating Authority
for approximately 50 food businesses and has entered
into a Primary Authority relationship with Iceland Foods
Ltd, the National Supermarket chain based in Deeside.

The maintenance of the Primary Authority relationship
with Iceland Foods Ltd places a pressure on maintaining
a level of expertise in Food Safety, Food Standards,
Labelling and Composition.

Flintshire is also committed to improving relationships
with business and will continue to develop relationships
with business by further promotion of Primary Authority,
where applicable, and effective business engagement at
all times.

Feed

There is currently no Primary Authority relationship
between FCC and any Flintshire based Feed Business
Operator.

The policy of the Food Service is to provide a balanced
approach between the provision of advice and
enforcement activity. The Service is committed to
providing an effective and responsive advice and
assistance service, both during inspections or upon
request, for all Flintshire businesses, including a service
in accordance with the BRDO Primary Authority Principle
and the Local Government Regulation (previously
LACORS) Home Authority Principle.

In addition, the Service provides advisory literature,
(either produced nationally or in-house) free of charge to
businesses to assist them with compliance with relevant
legislation. Training courses/seminars will be run subject
to demand, for which there is usually a fee, to also assist
businesses in compliance.

Food Safety and Food Standards

In order to maximise the use of limited resources, advice
Is targeted as follows:

o During inspections and as part of follow up

Page 66-



documentation.

o Start-up advice on request.

J Through guidance information available on the
Food Safety Teams fully revised website pages.

o Distribution of relevant food safety and food
standards material to food businesses.

o Advice and information is given to businesses
requesting guidance either by telephone, email or
post.

Based on last year’s trends, the estimated number of
requests for advice, including those proposing to start up
a food business for the forthcoming year, is anticipated to
be approximately 170 in relation to Food Safety. Advice
to businesses is provided by all members of the Team.

For Food Standards, it was anticipated the resource
required for Advice to Business was going to remain high
due to the new legislation governing Food Labelling and
Food Standards which came in to force as of December
2014, namely EU Regulation 1169/2011. However, it was
found that the majority of this advice was able to be
provided during programmed inspections rather than as
additional requests for service.

Feed

Flintshire is committed to supporting feed businesses
and working with them to enable compliance with all
regulatory and best practice standards. In order to
maximise the use of limited resources, advice is targeted
as follows:

o During inspections and as part of follow up
documentation.

o Start-up advice on request.

o Through sign posting to guidance information
available on the Trading Standards Wales and
FSA Wales websites.

o Distribution of relevant feed hygiene and
standards material to feed businesses.

o Advice and information is given to businesses
requesting guidance either by telephone, e-mail or
post.

The launch of the North Wales Feed Service Delivery
Plan in April 2015 that has now entered its second year
has led to an increased demand for business advice and
support.

Paged&/



3.5 Food Inspection
and Sampling

Food Safety and Food Standards

Sampling will be carried out in accordance with the
documented Sampling Policy for the Food Service which
was referred for Member Approval in July 2001. The
sampling programme is devised so that the procurement
of samples will follow a risk based approach. Flintshire
belongs to the North West Food Liaison Group which
devises a programme of Quarterly Sampling Surveys.
The programme will also take in to account statutory
requirements as well as the requirements of the Food
Standards Agency, the Welsh Food Microbiological
Forum and local need.

Samples taken for Food Standards issues are submitted
for analysis by the formally appointed and NAMAS
accredited Public Analyst for the Council:

PUBLIC ANALYST SCIENTIFIC SERVICES
WOODTHORNE

WERGS ROAD

WOLVERHAMPTON

WV6STQ

Samples taken as part of the Sampling Programme for
Food Safety issues are submitted for microbiological
examination by the designated and NAMAS accredited
laboratory of:

Public Health England, Food Water and Environmental
Microbiology Network (Preston Laboratory),

Royal Preston Hospital,

Sharoe Green Lane,

Preston. PR2 9HT

Each Local Authority is allocated sampling accreditation
by the Public Health England in order to undertake Food
Safety sampling. Public Health Wales also allocates a
limited resource to Flintshire for Food Safety Sampling.
This is sent to Ysbyty Gwynedd.

Food Safety samples may need to be submitted to the
Public Analyst, Public Health England or Public Health
Wales, dependent on the type of examination or analysis
required.

The Food Sampling Programme does not preclude the
need to undertake reactive sampling i.e. as a result of a
food complaint or during food poisoning investigations.
Sampling undertaking as part of an Infectious Disease
Notification or Outbreak are sent to the laboratory at

Page 68-



Ysbyty Gwynedd, Penrhosgarnedd, Bangor.

The Service took part in several successful bids for
funding for Food Standards sampling from FSA Wales in
2015-2016. These were undertaken in collaboration with
the North Wales Region. The regional grant amounted
to £25,314 in total across the region, of which
approximately one sixth was awarded to Flintshire Food
Safety and Standards Team.

The Team Leader Food Safety and Food Standards is
Chair of the Welsh Food Microbiological Forum (WFMF)
which is responsible for devising Food Safety Sampling
Surveys across Wales, based on risk assessment and
intelligence to better target resources at particular foods
or food poisoning organisms of concern within the UK.

All samples are submitted using the UK-Food
Surveillance System (UK-FSS) to better target resources
in respect of the Food Sampling for Food Standards and
by using the latest Internet-based version of the
database. This will continue to be used for Food Safety
and Food Standards sample submission during 2016-17.

Sampling Projects undertaken during 2015-2016
included:

o Acrylamide in ready to eat chips from fish and chip
takeaways

Meat species substitution in takeaways

‘Free from’ allergen claims

Allergens in non pre-packed foods

Additives — colours in sauces and seasonings
Microbiological Examination of Hot Pies and
Pastry products in hot holding cabinets

Samples were also taken as part of programmed
inspections at manufacturers and premises where
product specific legislation applies.

Proposed Sampling Projects for 2016-17 are
predominantly as part of the North Wales Trading
Standards Collaboration Plus Project. These include:

o Meat labelling for Country of Origin

o Gluten Free/Allergens

o Meat speciation in meat products and meat
preparations

o Food Supplements

Page®£9



3.6 Control and
Investigation of
Outbreaks and Food
Related Infectious
Disease

. Additives — food colours

Samples will be taken as part of programmed inspections
at manufacturers, approved premises and premises
where product specific legislation applies.

For Food Safety, there will be statutory sampling at
approved premises and taking part in regional WFMF
and Public Health England Surveys to include:

o Microbiological Examination of pre-packed
sandwiches
o Microbiological Examination of ready to eat foods

dispensed from nozzles
Feed

Sampling of Feeding stuffs during 2016/17 will be
undertaken as part of the FSA funded North Wales Feed
Service Delivery Plan (part of the North Wales Trading
Standards Collaboration). Flintshire are currently not
aware of the FSA Wales requirements for sampling of
feed during 2016/17 but have committed to participate in
any FSA Wales funded sampling projects that occur
during the year. Other than sampling directly funded by
FSA Wales Flintshire will not be in a position to take any
feed samples other than in response to complaints
received or feed safety incidents.

Investigation and control of outbreaks of food related
infectious disease will be carried out in accordance with
the Communicable Disease Outbreak Plan for Wales
was approved by Members in 2011. It has been
developed from the amalgamation of several Plans
relating to water borne incidents, food poisoning and
communicable disease outbreaks.

Investigations of sporadic notifications of food related
infections disease shall follow the existing documented
procedure within the Section. Based on previous year’s
trends, it is estimated that there will be approximately
between 190 and 230 cases of sporadic notifications and
between 0 and 10 outbreaks.

Campylobacter was the highest incidence of food-borne
illness for 2015-2016 in Flintshire, which follows a
National Trend. The reduction of the incidence of
Campylobacter is identified as a priority within the Food
Standard Agency’s Strategy 2015-2020.

Page 70-



3.7 Food/Feed Safety
Incidents

Outbreaks are characteristically resource intensive but
do not follow an annual trend, therefore the anticipated
burden on staffing cannot be predicted. However, should
they occur the impact on resources cannot be over-
estimated and would require rapid contingency planning
for maintaining the delivery of the rest of the Service.
They also involve close liaison and cross-agency working
between Public Health Wales and other Local
Authorities.

Food Safety and Food Standards

Food Alerts will be initiated and responded to in
accordance the Food Law Code of Practice (Wales) April
2014.

Responses to Food Alerts will be kept in a centralised
documented format and the contact details for the Team
and relevant Agencies (including out of hour’s contacts)
will be kept up to date. It is difficult to quantify the
resource implication of this function as it depends upon
the category of Food Alert and the extent of food or
businesses affected within Flintshire.

There were several incidents within 2015-16 which
required considerable investigation work and
enforcement action by the Team. These ranged from
serious foreign body and microbiological contamination
of food, mislabelling and undeclared allergen through to
an incident relating to stowaways found in a food
transport vehicle.

Feed

Alerts will be initiated and responded to in accordance
with the Feed Law Code of Practice (Wales) 2014.

Responses to Feed Alerts will be kept in a centralised
documented format and the contact details for the Team
and relevant Agencies (including out of hour’s contacts)
will be kept up to date. It is difficult to quantify the
resource implication of this function as it depends upon
the nature of the Feed Alert and the extent of feed or
businesses that are affected.

Pageo/l



3.8 Liaison with Other
Organisations

The Food Service as a whole is committed to ensuring
effective liaison with other relevant organisations to
enforce consistency of approach. This includes liaison
with:

o Food Standards Agency Wales (FSA Wales).

° Better Regulation Delivery Office (BRDO).

o Professional bodies such as the Chartered Institute
of Environmental Health and Chartered Trading
Standards Institute.

o Local Government Regulation, Public Health
England, Public Health Wales, National Resources
Wales, CEFAS, Animal Health and Veterinary
Laboratories Agency and other relevant
advisory/liaison bodies.

o Other Local Authorities in Wales as a whole.
Additionally, representatives from the Team attend
and actively participate on the All Wales Food
Safety Expert Group and the All Wales
Communicable Disease Technical Panel. These
Panels act as a means of optimizing regional and
countrywide consistency in enforcement and
guidance given.

o Neighbouring LA’s. The Team Leader sits on the
North Wales Regional Food and Communicable
Disease Task Group. There is also close liaison
with the North Wales Trading Standards
Collaboration Project.

o Liaison with other relevant local bodies, e.g.
Magistrates Courts, the Licensing Committee as
well as liaison with local fishermen by way of the
North Wales and Deeside Shellfish Liaison Group.

o Liaison with other Departments within Flintshire
County Council, such as the Planning Department.
A system of formal consultation with relevant
sections of the Public Protection Service has been
set up, so that prompt, appropriate advice may be
given to ensure compliance with relevant
legislation.

In addition to all of the above, liaison is also maintained
between members of the Food Team by monthly Team
Meetings and weekly Team Briefings. There is also a
weekly Team Leader meeting for Team Leaders within
the Public Protection Business Sector to keep up to date
with any pertinent matters.

The Feed element of the service is committed to

ensuring effective liaison with partners and other relevant
organisations to ensure and enforce consistency of

Page 32-



3.9

Food Safety/
Food Standards
and Feed
Promotion

approach. This includes liaison with:

Food Standards Agency Wales (FSA Wales)
Veterinary Medicines Directorate (VMD)
Animal and Plant Health Agency (APHA)
Professional bodies such as the Chartered
Trading Standards Institute (CTSI), National
Trading Standards (NTS) and the Association of
Chief Trading Standards Officers (ACTSO).
o Other Local Authorities across Wales and the UK
o Partner Local Authorities in the North Wales Feed
Enforcement Delivery Plan (Wrexham,
Denbighshire, Gwynedd, Ynys-Mon, and Conwy).
o Liaison with regional and national panels and
expert interest groups including the joint
WHOoTS/FSA Feed Working Group, WHoOTS and
UK Animal Health and Welfare Panels etc.

In addition to the above, liaison is maintained within the
Feed element of the Trading Standards Compliance and
Animal Health Team through monthly team meetings,
and 1:1’s. There is also a weekly Team Leader meeting
for Team Leaders within the area of Community
Protection and Trading Standards to keep up to date with
any pertinent matters.

Educational and promotional activities are important
components of a comprehensive Food Service.

Food Safety and Food Standards

Last year, these were achieved in the following ways:

We delivered a very successful North Wales regional
project on implementation of Food Safety Management
Systems in Poorer Performing premises with a focus on
Cleaning. This was grant funded by Food Standards
Agency Wales. We took on the role of Project Lead as
part of the North Wales Environmental Health and
Licensing Collaboration project.

We delivered 2 presentations on updates in Food Safety
legislation and guidance and on Allergen Information
Compliance at the Food and Hospitality Conference held
at Coleg Cambria in October 2015. This was a full day
event and was attended and very well received by
approximately 200 food businesses from across the
North Wales region. It

Page2/3



We delivered a presentation at the Clwydian Range Food
Trail's Annual General Meeting in June 2015 to advise
the businesses within the organisation on how to improve
their Food Hygiene Rating. The Clwydian Range Food
Trail is a consortium of local producers and hospitality
business who have come together to encourage the use
of local produce in their sector, and promote the area
locally and nationally.

We delivered Allergen Information training to Ysgol Bryn
Coch akin to that delivered to all other Flintshire schools
in 2014-15.

Promotional work programmed for this year includes:

o One of the Food Safety Officers is carrying out
Healthy Pre-school Hygiene Assessments as part
of the Healthy and Sustainable Pre-school
Scheme.

o This year's Food Safety Week theme is Food
Waste and is running week commencing 3 July.
The core message for this year is to educate
consumers on the different between Use By and
Best Before dates and to advise and encourage
the use of leftovers to reduce on food waste.

o Taking part in Allergy Awareness Week which
runs for a week commencing 25™ April by use of
Facebook and Twitter.

o Deliver a regional collaborative project on the
implementation of Food Safety Management
Systems in butchers handling both raw meat and
ready to eat foods.

o Advising businesses of the change in legislation in
relation to nutritional declaration on labels.
o Advising takeaways of the introduction of new

legislation in relation to the promotion of food
hygiene ratings on promotional material. This is a
new set of regulations which will require
takeaways to provide a bilingual statement on any
promotional material that includes both a method
of ordering and a price for food to be ordered e.g.
a takeaway menu.

Feed

Officers of the service work with the trade offering advice
and guidance on compliance with legal and best practice
standards during routine inspection work conducted on
farms, in shops, and in factories on behalf of FSA Wales
and during our work at Critical Control Points (CCP's)

Page-74-



including Mold livestock auction when carrying out
routine animal health and welfare and disease control
work. Promotion work is done as part of routine
inspection or in response to enquiries made by business
to the service.

4.1 Financial The financial allocation for the Food Service is split
Allocation between budgets provided for the Animal Health and
budgets provided for the Food Safety and Food
Standards Service.

The overall level of expenditure providing the Food
Safety

and Food Standards Service for 2016/2017 is detailed
below in Table 3.

Table 3: Budget for the Food Safety and Food Standards Team

FINANCIAL
SO ALLOCATION

(a) Staffing (total staff costs) £461,073
(b) Travel (Iump sum and mileage) £21.955

and Subsistence
(c) Equipment (including

investment in .T.%) £1,300
(d) Sampling £3,539
() Shellfish Sampling £9000
() Training £907

The allocation for Food Sampling work covers both Food
Safety and Food Standards. This is in addition to the
allocations provided by Public Health England and Public
Health Wales. Additional funding can and will be made
available should there be an incident which requires it.

Table 4 shows the overall level of expenditure for Feed
Service delivery:

Page4/5



4.2

Staffing Allocation

Table 4: Budget for the Feed Service Delivery 2016/17

COST ITEM FINANCIAL
ALLOCATION
(a) Staffing (total staff costs ) £10805.79
(b) Travel (lump sum and £2000.00
mileage) and Subsistence
(c) Equipment (including £500.00

investment in 1.T.*)

No current budget but
funding may be
available from FSA

(d) Sampling Wales later in 2016/17
for targeted project
work.

(e) Training £300.00

(f) Total £13605.78

* There are no separate costs for I.T. as I.T.
requirements are provided centrally by Central Support
[.T. Services. The exception to this is for the cost of RSA
Tags for Mobile and Agile Working which are borne by
the Food Safety and Food Standards Budget and the
Trading Standards Compliance and Animal Health
Budget.

Food Safety and Food Standards

The Food Safety and Food Standards team is made up
of the Team Leader — Food Safety and Food Standards
1.0 FTE, 5.5 FTE EHOs, 3.0 FTE Food Safety Officers
and 1.0 FTE Trading Standards Officer. All members of
the team are permanent positions.

Administrative support is currently provided by 1.0 FTE
Administration Officer, pending the Corporate-wide
Admin Review. This administration role is managed by
the Directorate Support Manager.

In accordance with the Food Law Code of Practice
(Wales) April 2014, all Environmental Health Officers in
post are qualified Environmental Health Officers,
registered with the Environmental Health Registration
Board (E.H.R.B.). Food Safety Officers are qualified to
the Higher Certificate in Food Premises Inspection and
all officers are qualified in HACCP Principles (Hazard
Analysis Critical Control Points). 2 of the Food Safety
Officers also hold the Higher Certificate in Food Control.

Page 6-



All staff are authorised appropriately for the duties they
perform. All EHOs meet the post 2 year qualified
competency requirement to use all enforcement powers
required by the Code of Practice. In addition to the
above, the Team Leader for Food Safety and Food
Standards is also a qualified Lead Assessor having
successfully completed the five-day Lead Auditor
Training Course.

The Trading Standards Officer holds the Diploma in
Trading Standards and has also successfully completed
the five day QMS Auditor/Lead Auditor training course.

The Food Standards Agency Wales require the service
plan to include an estimate of the number of Full Time
Equivalents we would require to deliver the Food Law
Code of Practice in its entirety. Due to the considerable
amount of work that was put in to addressing the Food
Safety inspection back log during 2015-16, the Food
Safety component of the service is being delivered in
accordance with the frequencies determined by the Food
Law Code of Practice.

For Food Standards, there has been significant work in
reducing the back log of inspections and we are on track
to reduce this back log in accordance with the action plan
from our Food Service Audit by the Food Standards
Agency Wales by the end of March 2017.

To best achieve this we would require all our Food
Safety Officers to be Food Standards competent.

The full breakdown of resources required to deliver the
Food Safety and Food Standards service is given below:

Pagee/-/



Table 5: Full Breakdown of Resources to Deliver the Food
Safety and Food Standards Service

Intervention Food Safety Food
Type Standards

Inspections 5.0 2.5

Revisits 0.3

Complaints 0.4

Primary Authority 0.1

Food Incidents 0.2

Food Business
advice/promotion
and other Non- 0.4
Official Controls
Interventions

C_ommunlcable 05 N/A
Disease

Sampling 0.1 0.1

Please note — this breakdown of resources includes the
0.2 FTE operational aspect of the Team Leader. The
remainder of the Team Leader 0.8 FTE is not taken
account of above as this includes the operational
management functions of this role including Corporate
matters which are not easily broken down in to the
headings provided. A further 0.1 FTE of the Trading
Standards Officer role is spent regulating other Trading
Standards legislation in food businesses such as
Weights and Measures legislation.

We are able to fulfil the inspection resource requirement
by completing the majority of inspections as joint
inspections i.e. the officer does both a Food Safety and
Food Standards audit during the same visit. This
flexibility is key to ensuring we can deliver the service
level expected based on current resources.

Feed

All aspects of Feed work will be carried out by two
officers of the service. These are currently 0.2 FTE
Team Leader —Trading Standards Compliance and
Animal Health (subject to review following recent
organisational change) and 0.2 FTE Trading Standards
Enforcement Officer.

The Team Leader is currently the only officer within the
team that satisfies all criteria as a qualified and
competent officer, this includes holding the Diploma in
Trading Standards (DTS), successful completion of the

Page 38-



4.3 Staff Development
Plan

five day QMS Auditor/Lead Auditor Training Course,
completion of CIEH accredited HACCP training, and
participation in an FSA Wales programme of feed
training in conjunction with their training provider
Campden BRI. Such qualification means that the Team
Leader is suitably qualified and will therefore undertake
all aspects of feed work, while the Trading Standards
Enforcement Officer satisfies the competency criteria
based on experience and training that enables them to
perform limited feed work on farms. Both officers satisfy
the requirements to ensure a minimum of 10 hours
relevant CPD is maintained annually.

During the forthcoming year the following training is
planned:

(i)  Support of national and regional seminars on
relevant subject matters.

(i) In-house training sessions on relevant subject
matters.

Each individual’s training requirements are going to be
set out in the Planning and Environment Learning and
Development Plan 2016-2017.

Each member of the Team will receive the required ten
hours Continuing Professional Development as required
by the Food Law Code of Practice (Wales) April 2014.

Staff will be subject to annual individual Staff Appraisals
in line with the Corporate H.R. Policy with a mid-year
review which identifies and tracks training and
development needs. All staff also have monthly One to
Ones with the Team Leader to identify and monitor areas
requiring development.

Some of the specific Food Training Courses attended by
staff during 2015-2016 include:

o Food Information Regulations Improvement
Notices

Approved Premises

North Wales Consistency Training

Enforcement Sanctions

Investigative Interviewing

Annual Food Safety Conference

Food Identification Module for the Higher
Certificate in Food Control for Food Safety Officers

Pages/9



o Dairy Processing

Attendance at the Lead Officer for Communicable
Disease Training included:

o Zoonoses Update
o Reflective Practice in Public Health
o Understanding Core and Wider Legislative Controls

Training planned for 2016-2017 includes:

Regional Consistency Training

E. coli O157 Refresher Training
HACCP Refresher Training

Micro criteria and Listeria Training

A full list of training required has been submitted to the
All Wales Food Technical Panel as they provide the FSA
with guidance on training programmes to be delivered on
an All Wales basis. This includes:

o Enforcement Sanctions

o Vacuum packing and Sous Vide processing

o Food Standards Inspections for Food Safety
Officers

o Food Standards Auditing of Manufacturers
refresher

o Nutritional Declaration

o Intelligence Gathering

Feed

Both the Team Leader — Trading Standards Compliance
and Animal Health and the nominated Trading Standards
Enforcement Officer have attended specialist training on
Feedstuffs during the period 2015-2016, and will
continue to undertake ongoing training as part of CPD for
feed during 2016/17.

5.1 Quality Assessment Food Safety and Food Standards

Within the Food Service, quality systems are in place to
ensure that work is completed and checked by a
competent person in line with the fully documented
Quality Monitoring Procedures. Documented procedures
and work instructions exist to ensure consistency of
approach with various computer report mechanisms to

Page 80



check accuracy on the APP Database. Work Instruction
is provided on Key Areas of work retained within Formal
Procedure Manuals.

The Team Leader attends the North Wales Food
Technical Panel, the All Wales Food Safety Expert Group
and the All Wales Communicable Disease Expert Group.
These forums offer the opportunity to discuss in detail a
wide range of quality and consistency issues relevant to
Food Law Enforcement.

The Service is required to submit via Local Authority
Enforcement Monitoring System (LAEMS) an Annual
Return to the FSA Wales. This details the inspections
achieved, enforcement and educational activities
undertaken.

Feed

Quality systems are also in place to ensure that work is
completed and checked by a competent person in line
with the fully documented Quality Monitoring Procedures.
Documented procedures and work instructions exist to
ensure consistency of approach with various computer
report mechanisms to check accuracy on the APP
Database. Work Instruction is provided on Key Areas of
work retained within Formal Procedure Manuals.

In addition, for the whole service external audits including
focused audits, are undertaken by the Food Standards
Agency Wales on a periodical basis (every 3 years for full
external audit). The Service received a full audit by the
Food Standards Agency Wales in October/November
2013. The revisit to this audit was carried out by 3
auditors in November 2015. The revised action plan
based on this revisit is contained within Appendix 4.

6.1 Review against The Service Plan shall be subject to annual review.
Service Plan Performance against this Service Plan is monitored by
several means:

(@) Quarterly Performance Reports to the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee detailing performance against
the Improvement Priorities and six monthly reports
on other performance data and any key issues
arising. A final yearly Performance Review Report
is also submitted.

Page®Bl



6.2 Review of
Performance
Against 2015-2016
Service
Plan

(b)  Monthly minuted Team Meetings with actions and
relevant timescales detailed.

(c) Monthly One to Ones with individual Team
Members.

(d) Weekly informal Team Briefings which set the focus
and priorities for that coming week.

As detailed in 3.0 the Food Service Team have performed
to an excellent standard achieving the target for all
Service Improvement Data. They are also in line with the
Audit Action Plan for the Food Standards Agency Wales.

Appendix 3 provides full quantitative analysis of service
delivery during 2015/16.

Food Safety and Food Standards

General achievements of note are listed below:

e Achieved 100% of High Risk Food Safety and Food
Standards inspections.

e Achieved 100% of D risk band Food Safety
Inspections and 91.3% of E risk band Food Safety
Interventions. (At the time of writing only 1 of the E
risk band food business that was due a Food Safety
inspection in 2015-16 is still overdue. This is due to
issues with access as several attempts to inspect
the premises have been made.)

e Considerable progress has been made on reducing
the back log of Food Standards inspection. This is in
line with the Audit Action Plan with the Food
Standards Agency Wales.

e  The advisory approach taken in the Poorer
performing premises project yielded good results in
improving the level of compliance in the business
and in improving the relationship between the
business and the officer carrying out the
intervention. This same effect was seen across the
North Wales region.

Page-82-



6.3 Areas of

Improvement

2016-2017

e The percentage of premises with a Food Hygiene
rating of 5 has increased from 68.6% to 71.9%.
95.7% of businesses have a rating of 3 or higher
compared to 95.2% in the previous year.

Feed
Achievements for 2015/16:
e FCC continued to work with FSA Wales and in

collaboration with the five other North Wales Local
Authorities to develop and implement the FSA Wales

funded North Wales Feed Service Delivery Plan. The

plan is to enable a uniform and consistent approach
to feed service delivery across Wales making best
use of limited financial and officer resource in
improving and maintaining feed hygiene and
standards across the industry.

e Allinspection targets for inspection of registered feed

activities for 2015/16 as set by FSA Wales were met.
This was 32% of high risk and 6.6% of low risk
activities with the full available funding allocation
being claimed from FSA Wales.

e The two feed officers attended a number of feed

training events organised by both FSA Wales and the

North Wales collaboration. These included sampling
and inspection training/refresher events and update

training on legislation. Both officers have maintained
their CPD and met the minimum requirements set for
CPD by FSA Wales.

Areas requiring focus for the forthcoming year are as
follows:

o Continue the work already put in last year to get up

to date with all overdue inspections for Food
Standards by the end of March 2017.

o Continue work on full implementation of the FSA
audit action plan in line with the stated completion
dates. These are detailed in Appendix 4.

o Follow up work was done on the non-display of
Food Hygiene Ratings and no Fixed Penalty
Notices had to be issued due to the high level of
compliance in previously non-compliant
businesses. However a further exercise will need
to be carried out this year to assess whether this
high level of compliance is being maintained.

Pages3



Feed

Prioritising E risk band premises that had been
subjected to a Food Safety Alternative
Enforcement Questionnaire for physical
inspections so that all premises within the scope of
the Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Act 2013 have a
rating sticker.

Continue as part of the North Wales Feed
Enforcement Delivery Plan Flintshire will increase
the level of feed interventions as per the
requirements of the Feed Law Enforcement Code
of Practice (FLECP) in all aspects of feed related
business conducted at premises across Flintshire
from manufacturing to storage and haulage and
through to final on-farm consumption of feed by
livestock.

Continue to improve and further develop feed
premises records systems and to improve
recording of all feed enforcement and advice work
including improved use and provision of written
inspection reports to business.

Continue to develop and implement a documented
Alternative Enforcement Strategy (AES) for use
with low risk premises and premises that have
‘earned recognition’.

Continue the further development of documented
procedures for Feed in line with the documents that
have been produced by WHoTS/FSA Working
Group for use by all Welsh Local Authorities.

Continued review and updating of the feed
premises database to be undertaken to ensure
accuracy and compliance with the requirements of
the FLECP.

The qualified officer role within the team is to be
reviewed based on the recent reorganisation of
what is now the Trading Standards Compliance
and Animal Health Team, to make best use of
available resources within the revised team which
will allow greater flexibility to achieving feed
inspections and feed work.

Page-84.-



6.4 Forthcoming
Considerations

There are several considerations which may influence or
impact on Service Delivery for 2016/17. These are
detailed below:

Food Safety and Food Standards

The Service Plan relies on the current level of staffing to
be maintained. These posts will need to remain filled for
the whole of 2016/17 for the commitments made for
Service Delivery to be met.

Further to the Food Standards Agency Wales report for
the Welsh Government titled ‘Review of the operation and
implementation of the Statutory Food Hygiene Rating
Scheme in Wales and the Operation of the Appeals
System’ in February 2015, a second report was published
in February 2016. This was titled ‘The Statutory Food
Hygiene Rating Scheme in Wales. Review of the
Operation of the Appeals System. The report made three
recommendations detailed below:

o That the system currently in place for businesses
to appeal their food hygiene ratings in Wales is
maintained and reviewed in 12 months in
accordance with the Act.

o Local authorities should ensure that all officers who
rate food businesses under the Food Hygiene
Rating Scheme continue to engage in activities
that promote consistency, including the
determination of appeals.

o Local authorities and the FSA should work
collaboratively to more effectively signpost food
business operators to relevant information on the
safeguards available to them should they not be
satisfied with the food hygiene ratings issued to
their businesses. This should include details of the
appeals process.

The Food Law Code of Practice Wales has been
consulted on and it was anticipated that it would have
been introduced by April 2016. However, this is not the
case and at the time of writing, we are unclear as to the
intended date for introduction. The draft document which
was consulted on contains significant changes to the
qualifications assessment for officers undertaking food
law enforcement duties.

Pages5



The Food Standards Agency has launched a consultation
early in 2016 regarding changing the delivery model for
Food and Feed Controls called Regulating the Future.
The objective of the programme is to ‘define and then
deliver a new regulatory blueprint for a food industry
unrecognizable from the one that existed when the
current system was designed’. The proposal is to radically
alter the blueprint of the delivery model to best support
compliance and protecting consumers’ interests in line
with the FSA’s 2015-20 Strategy of ‘food we can trust’.
The FSA are anticipating this high level vision will take
several years to fully design and deliver but have
identified that where immediate incremental
improvements can be made to consumer protection,
these will be made as part of on-going activities.

The outcome of the EU Referendum may affect the
service as the legislation enforced is predominantly EU-
based.

Feed

The new delivery model for feed service delivery on a
regional basis is now entering its second year of
operation, with targets being set by FSA Wales and all
work being paid for on completion against a fixed price
menu dependent on feed activity and inspectable risk.
Although the new delivery model appears to be working
well the FSA’s intentions are not known beyond the end
of 2016/17 with regard to expectations from Local
Authorities or any funding to Local Authorities for feed
service delivery.

Point of Special Note

Following the FSA audit in 2013, the Food Safety and
Food Standards elements of the Food Service received a
follow up audit to assess progress with the audit action
plan. This took 2 days with 3 auditors and involved an
element of re-auditing elements looked at during the initial
5 day audit. As previously stated, this amended action
plan is attached in Appendix 4. Of the original 18
recommendations, 7 have been signed off as completed.
The remaining 11 are assigned as Good Progress made.
The auditors verbally described the progress made by the
Authority as ‘exemplary’.

Page-86.-



APPENDIX 1

Chart 1

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL - ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

LY)
0 Chief Chief Officer Chief Officer
%xecutive
People Governance
(0 0]
~ And
Resources

Chief Officer

Education

and

Youth

Chief Officer

Social

Services

Chief
Community
and

Enterprise

Chief Officer
Streetscrene
and

Transportation

Chief Officer
Planning
and

Environment

Chief Officer
Organisational

Change

Chief Officer

Organisational

Change

-36 -




APPENDIX 1

Chart 2

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL - POLITICAL STRUCTURE

Standards
Committee

County Council

Cabinet

Children’s Services Forum

o
QD
Q
gDemocratic Services Planning & Audit Committee Licensing Constitution
le's) Committee Development Control Committee Committee
Committee
Corporate Community & Education & Social Care & Environment Organisational
OSC Enterprise Youth Health OSC Change
osC 0osC 0osC 0osC

-37-




APPENDIX 1

68 abed

Chart 3

PUBLIC PROTECTION - FOOD SERVICE

Chief Officer
(Planning & Environment

Public Protection Service
Manager
Community

|

A

Public Protection Service
Manager
Business

Team Leader — Trading Standards

Team Leader — Food Safety and Food

Compliance and Animal Health Standards
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
.. Environmental Trading Food Safety Officer
. T n
Trading Standards rading S_tandards Health Officer Standards Officer x 3.0 FTE
: Officer
Enforcement Officer X 5.5FTE x 1.0 FTE
46 FTE 1.0 FTE
Regional
Commissioning
and Development
Officer (Substance
Misuse)
1.0 FTE
Technical Assistant
1.0 FTE

-38 -




APPENDIX 2

Please find below a breakdown of the profile of programmed Food Safety and Food Standards inspections for 2016/2017 by Risk Rating:

Table A
PROGRAMMED INSPECTIONS - FOOD SAFETY
Risk Number Due
A 2
B 31
C 262
D 124
E 199
Unrated 30
TOTAL 648
o
Q
«Q
(9]
Tahkis B
o
PROGRAMMED INSPECTIONS - FOOD STANDARDS
Risk Number Due
A 13
B 187
C 154
Unrated 145
TOTAL 499

The Risk Rating is determined in accordance with the Food Law Code of Practice. It dictates the frequency of which the food premises must receive a
full food hygiene or food standards inspection.

For Food Safety High Risk premises are those with a Risk Rating of A, B and C. For Food Standards High Risk premises are those with a Risk Rating
of A.

-39-



Please find below a breakdown of the profile of programmed Feed inspections for 2016/2017 by Feed Business Activity:

Table C
PROGRAMMED INSPECTIONS - FEED
Registered/Approved Feed Business Activity Number Due
Manufacturer of Feed -
Co Product Producers 5
Feed Stores 1
Feed Distributor 5
o Feed Transporter 1
Q
Q
® On Farm Feed Mixers
o 33
H
Supplier of Surplus Food 6
Livestock Farms 26
Arable Farms Yet to be confirmed by
FSA (08/05/2016)
Total 78

The type (by feed activity) and number of feed inspections to be conducted during 2016/17 by Flintshire has been determined by FSA Wales. This is
as part of year two of the recently launched FSA Wales funded North Wales Feed Enforcement Delivery Plan.

-40 -



APPENDIX 3 = PERFORMANCE 2015-16

Food Safety

Risk Programmed Achieved
A ) High Risk 2 100%
B ) High Risk 34 100%
C ) High Risk 268 100%
D Low Risk 146 100%
E Low Risk 195 91.3%
TOTAL 645
TOTAL Number of Interventions Undertaken (including 919
Revisits)
o
Q
% Food Standards
S Risk Programmed Achieved
High 17 100%
Medium 245 80%
Low 120 77.5%
Unrated 100 100%*
TOTAL 482
TOTAL Number of Interventions Undertaken (including
O 564
Revisits)

e At the beginning of the year we had 301 food premises that had not received a Food Standards inspection. We had programmed to do a third of
the overdue unrated inspections in 2015-16. However, we inspected more than originally programmed. The actual number of unrated premises
that received an inspection for Food Standards was 134 with a further 48 premises having ceased trading.

-41 -



Feed Inspections (as per requirements of FSA/WHoTS Regional FLEDP 2015/16)

Risk Programmed Achieved
High 54 100%
Medium/Low 22 100%
TOTAL 76 100%
Food Hygiene Ratings
Profile of Ratings within Flintshire: April 2015
5 4 3 2 1 0
my) Very Good Good Generally Improvement Major Improvement Urgent
g Satisfactory Necessary Necessary Improvement
@ Necessary
(@)
% StPremises 71.9 19.3 4.5 2.1 2.1 0.1
Number of Requests for Rescore Visit to be undertaken 24

Number of Appeals on Rating

Other data in relation to Demands on Food Service

Food and Feeding Stuffs Complaints
Food Safety number of complaints
Food Standards number of complaints
Feeding Stuffs number of complaints

2 (rating was subsequently increased on appeal)

90
15
0 (Nil)

-42 -




6 obed

Advice to Business

Food Safety -

Food Standards -

Feeding Stuffs -

Food and Feeding Stuffs Inspection and Sampling

Food Safety -
Food Standards -
Feeding Stuffs -

160 requests for advice

99.4% responded to within 10 working days

96.3% within 5 working days

13 requests for advice

100% responded to within 10 working days

100% responded to within 5 working days

15 requests for advice — primarily regarding new registrations were received, all were
responded to within 5 working days.

34  samples — statutory and monitoring

56  samples — monitoring of which 12 were Unsatisfactory

No complaints regarding animal feeding stuffs were received during the period 2015/16
and therefore no complaint samples were taken. Sampling was undertaken across
North Wales as part of project work carried out at the request of FSA Wales as part of
the North Wales Feed Law Enforcement Delivery Plan. However, this did not require
samples to be taken by Flintshire.

Control and Investigation of Qutbreaks and Food Related Infectious Disease (Food Safety only)

Sporadic Notifications -
Outbreaks -

202 of which 136 were Campylobacter
1 found not to be food-related

Other Types of Service Requests (Food Safety only)

Water Disconnections -

Shellfish Requests for Registration Documents -

Ship Sanitation -

Export Certificates -

16
these are now administered by Natural Resources Wales on our behalf
0

4

-43 -



APPENDIX 4 - FOOD STANDARDS AGENCY WALES REVISED AUDIT ACTION PLAN

Updated Action Plan for Flintshire County Council (Excluding Feed Service?*)
Audit Date: 28 October - 1 November 2013

Follow-Up Visit Date: 26 November 2015

G6 obed

Status Key

Completed
Good Progress
Limited Progress
No Action Taken

(*) Actions arising from the audit in relation to animal feedingstuffs have not been included. A new regional feed delivery model was

introduced in Wales from April 2015.

TO ADDRESS

(RECOMMENDATION

INCLUDING STANDARD
PARAGRAPH)

to deliver the food services

3.18(i) Ensure future Food
Service Plans are developed in
accordance with the Service
Planning Guidance in the
Framework Agreement. More
comprehensive information on the
authority’s service should be
provided together with a robust
analysis of the resources required

against those available. [The
Standard — 3.1]

STATUS

PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS

PROGRESS TO
DATE

OUTSTANDING
ACTIONS

Food Hygiene / Food Standards

This recommendation relates to:-

a.) Lack of inclusion of the number
of approved premises in the
County.

b.) Lack of inclusion of the resource
requirements to deliver the Food
Service in accordance with the
Food Law Code of Practice in its
entirety.

c.) Lack of inclusion of an estimate
of the resources required to revisit
all 0, 1 and 2 rated premises and
for the inspection of new
businesses.

Future service plans will ensure that
all of the above are included and
will include an analysis of the

The majority of the
planned
improvements
agreed have been
implemented in the
2015/16 Service
Plan.

Additional
improvements
required in relation to
resource planning
have been
recognised by the
authority and are
due to be drafted
into the 2016/ 17
Service Plan, prior to
the document being
agreed by Cabinet.

Ensure that the required
resources laid out in the
service plan are accurate
for inspections and related
activity and is also
specified for advice to
businesses, sampling and
promotional work.

Revised date
for completion: 27/05/16

- 44 -




96 obed

TO ADDRESS

(RECOMMENDATION

INCLUDING STANDARD
PARAGRAPH)

PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS

PROGRESS TO
DATE

OUTSTANDING
ACTIONS

resources required to fully deliver
the food service against those
available.

5.12(i) Review and update all
officer authorisations to ensure
they are appropriately authorised
under current relevant legislation in
accordance with their level of
qualifications, training, experience
and the relevant Code of Practice.
[The Standard — 5.3]

Food Hygiene/Food Standards

All authorisations will be reviewed
and updated where necessary.
This will be maintained in line with
changes in legislation.

This has already
been implemented.
Many authorisations
updated.

Ensure that all
authorisations are updated
and further amendments
are made to address more
recent legislation.

Revised date
for completion: 27/05/16

5.12(ii) Maintain records of
relevant qualifications, training and
experience of authorised officers
and appropriate support staff in
accordance with the relevant
Codes of Practice. [The

Standard — 5.5]

6.11(i) Review, amend and
implement the documented
procedure for maintenance and
calibration. [The Standard - 6.2]

Food Hygiene /Food Standards All officers have been| Completed
asked to provide
Training records already held will copies of their CPD
be supplemented by copies of CPD | For future courses,
certificates which will be held there is a direct
electronically in a central shared instruction that all
drive. CPD is scanned on
to the shared drive in
addition to being
written in the register.
Food Hygiene The procedure has Completed

The procedure on calibration of
thermometers needs to be
amended to accommodate the
observation that the written
procedure did not make specific
mention of the tolerance for the

been reviewed and
has been amended
to include specific
reference to the
tolerance of 0.5°C in
the written

-45 -




/6 abed

TO ADDRESS

(RECOMMENDATION

INCLUDING STANDARD
PARAGRAPH)

Food Hygiene
7.19(i) Ensure that all food

premises hygiene
interventions/inspections are
carried out at the minimum
frequency specified by the Food
Law Code of Practice. [The
Standard -7.1]

7.19 (ii) Carry out hygiene
interventions/inspections of lower
risk premises in accordance with
the Food Law Code of Practice
and centrally issued guidance.

STATUS

PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS PROGRESS TO OUTSTANDING
DATE ACTIONS
calibration of temperature probes. procedure

Although this was cited on the
record forms it was not included in
the written procedure.

This relates to the recommendation
that all inspections should be
carried out within 28 days of being
due. Whilst FCC has consistently
achieved 100% of the High Risk
inspections due each financial
year, some High Risk inspections
have not been carried out within 28
days of being due, although they
have been done within the annual
programme in which they were
due.

Planned Improvements:-

All High Risk inspections due this
year are to be completed within 28
days of becoming due. This will be
monitored by the Team Leader at
monthly one to ones.

Any deviations from this 28 day are
to be documented on the electronic
database.

The authority has
instructed all officers
to ensure that
interventions are
completed in date
order and
improvements have
been made in the
intervention lists to
enable officers to
prioritise their
workload.

Improvement in rate
of inspections of all

risk categories done
at correct frequency.

Ensure more timely food
hygiene inspections to
meet the 28 day
requirement.

Revised date
for completion: 27/05/16

a.) All overdue D rated inspections
and D rated premises due this year
are to be completed this financial
year. This equates to 175
inspections.

FCC has
implemented an
Alternative
Enforcement
Strategy since the

Completed

- 46 -




86 obed

TO ADDRESS

(RECOMMENDATION

INCLUDING STANDARD
PARAGRAPH)

STATUS

[The Standard -7.2]

7.19 (iii) Ensure that observations
made and/or data obtained in the
course of an inspection is
recorded in a timely manner. [The
Standard — 7.5]

PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS PROGRESS TO OUTSTANDING
DATE ACTIONS

b.) D rated inspections due this | audit was

year are to be done within 28 days | undertaken.

of being due.

c.) An Alternative Enforcement Improvements to

Strategy (AES) is to be devised process of

and implemented to pull in all approvals, risk rating

overdue E rated premises withina | & revisits.

2 year period.

This recommendation relates to the | Officers have been Ensure further

auditors view that insufficient
information was being provided by
officers in some instances on the
aide memoir that is used to assist
officers during their inspections.
Planned Improvements:-

Officers are to complete the aide
memoir to sufficient detail to enable
other officers to make the
necessary assessment to inform
risk-based, graduated action.

directed to complete
as much of the aide
memoir they need
to, to ensure the
next inspecting
officer can ascertain
the level of practices
in place at the time
and the assessment
of whether those
practices etc were
adequate. The
Internal Monitoring
procedure already
included an
assessment of this
form being filled in
comprehensively,
prior to the FSA
audit.

Some improvements

improvements to capture
of officer observations
during food hygiene
interventions including
assessments of HACCP,
cross contamination and
training compliance and
checking of ID marks for
incoming food.

Revised date
for completion: 27/05/16

-47 -




66 abed

TO ADDRESS

(RECOMMENDATION

INCLUDING STANDARD
PARAGRAPH)

Food Standards

7.34 (i) Ensure that food
standards interventions are
carried out at a frequency not less
than that determined under the
intervention rating scheme set out
in by the Food Law Code of
Practice and assess the
compliance of establishments and
systems to the legally prescribed
standards. [The Standard -7.1 &
7.3]

STATUS

PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS

PROGRESS TO
DATE

OUTSTANDING
ACTIONS

made.

This relates to the recommendation
that all inspections should be
carried out within 28 days of being
due. Whilst FCC has consistently
achieved 100% of the High Risk
inspections due each financial
year, some High Risk inspections
have not been carried out within 28
days of being due.

Low and Medium Risk Premises
There is a back log of premises that
are overdue their food standards
inspection.

The authority has
instructed all officers
to ensure that
interventions are
completed in date
order and
improvements have
been made in the
intervention lists to
enable officers to
prioritise their
workload. The Team
Leader had already
identified this was an
issue in the 2013/14
Service Plan prior to
the audit and had
devised an Action
Plan.

All EHOs have been
allocated Food
Standards
inspections to do at
the same time as
they carry out Food
Hygiene Inspections
as of March 2014.

Ensure food standards
interventions are carried
out at the required
frequency.

Original date for
completion: March 2017.

-48 -




00T abed

TO ADDRESS

(RECOMMENDATION

INCLUDING STANDARD
PARAGRAPH)

7.34(ii) Carry out
interventions/inspections and
register establishments in
accordance with the relevant
legislation, Codes of Practice, and
centrally issued guidance. [The
Standard -7.2]

STATUS

PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS

PROGRESS TO
DATE

OUTSTANDING
ACTIONS

Since the audit, 2
Food Safety Officers
are completing the
Food Standards
module to enable
them to be
competent to carry
out food Standards
work.

The Team has all
been bought together
in to the same office
which is

assisting in
communication,
monitoring of work
being undertaken
and aligning work

culture and
processes.

Food Standards Inspections are to be | Ensure further
unannounced, improvements to food

This recommendation relates to
announced Food Standards
inspections taking place but the
reason for the visit being
announced, (rather than

unannounced) not being recorded.

unless there is valid,
documented reason
for the visit to be
announced.

Improvements in
inspection coding.

standards intervention and
intervention records to
capture information on
announcement and ensure
consistent risk rating.

Revised date

=49 -




TO ADDRESS STATUS PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS PROGRESS TO OUTSTANDING

(RECOMMENDATION DATE ACTIONS

INCLUDING STANDARD
PARAGRAPH)

for completion: 27/05/16

This recommendation relates to the | A revisit policy / Completed
Reuvisit Procedure not mentioning procedure has been
Food Standards revisits in it. written for Food
Standards.

7.34 (iii) Set up, maintain and
implement a documented food
standards revisit procedure. [The
Standard 7.4]

Planned Improvement:-

A Reuvisit Procedure / Policy for
Food Standards will be written.

TOT obed

An aide memoir is to be produced EHOs undertaking Completed
for Food Standards inspections that | Food Standards

is used by all officers undertaking work have been
Food Standards inspections. recording findings on
their aide memoir in
the relevant Food
Standards section.
This has not been
done by the TSO
and TSEO. A draft
form has just been
produced and has
been sent to the
team for comment.

7.34 (iv) Record observations
made and/or data obtained in the
course of an
inspection/intervention in a timely
manner to prevent loss of relevant
information. [The Standard 7.5]

In light of the auditors view that the | The procedure has Ensure that food hygiene
Complaint procedure for Food been amended to and standards complaints
Hygiene and Food Standards had include reference to | are processed without
not been followed in all instances, | an investigating significant delays.

this procedure will be amended to | officer being able to
allow deviation from it in deviate from the Revised date
circumstances when it is not procedure as long as | for completion: 27/05/16
appropriate to investigate a they record the
complaint. A clear policy on when a | reason for this

8.12 (ii) Investigate complaints
received in accordance with the
Food Law Code of Practice,
centrally issued guidance and its
own policy and procedures. [The
Standard — 8.2]

-50 -



TO ADDRESS STATUS PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS PROGRESS TO OUTSTANDING

(RECOMMENDATION DATE ACTIONS

INCLUDING STANDARD
PARAGRAPH)

complaint should not be deviation on the
investigated will be set out. complaint file and
this deviation can be
justified on public
health grounds.

Some improvements

20T abed

in complaint

investigations.
12.12(ii) Review, update where Food The Food Hygiene Ensure unsatisfactory food
necessary, maintain and The Food Hygiene Sampling Sampling Procedure | standards samples are
implement the documented Procedure will be amended to has been amended | followed up appropriately

cover specific instructions on the to include this
storage of food samples following additional safeguard. | Revised date for
sampling. This was already in place completion: 27/05/16.
at the time of audit for the Food Food procedures
Standards Sampling Procedure. amended.

The Food Sampling Palicy already
sets out the information on|.
procurement of samples.

sampling procedures in respect of
the procurement and preservation
of samples (food), in accordance
with the relevant Codes of
Practice and centrally issued
guidance. [The Standard - 12.5]

14.8 (i) Ensure the feed incidents
procedure includes out-of-hours
contact arrangements and
guidance for officers on
responding to feed alerts notified
by the FSA and the procedure for
responding to food safety
incidents is suitably amended to
include the back-up

Procedure to be reviewed in line Recommendation Completed
with FSA’s comments. There are no | completed in relation
formal out of hours arrangement in | to Food Safety
place. However, details of current
out of hours arrangements (as per
animal health/disease incidents
dealt with by AH&HP Team)
through Call-Connect to be
shared with FSA.

-51 -



€0T obed

TO ADDRESS

(RECOMMENDATION

INCLUDING STANDARD
PARAGRAPH)

arrangements.. [The Standard —
14.1 and 14.4]

15.14 (i) Ensure that food hygiene
law enforcement is carried out in
accordance with the Food Law
Code of Practice, centrally issued
guidance and the authority’s own
documented procedures. [The
Standard -15.2 & 15.3]

15.14(ii) Ensure all enforcement
decisions are made following
consideration of the authority’s
enforcement policy and the
reasons for departure from the
policy are documented. [The
Standard -15.4]

Food Hygiene
16.7(i) Record, with reasons any

deviations from set procedures.
[The Standard — 16.1]

STATUS

PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS

PROGRESS TO
DATE

OUTSTANDING
ACTIONS

a) The team are to attend
Enforcement Sanctions training in
May 2014.

b) Explanations to always be
recorded on premises file when
procedure has been deviated from.

Review has been
undertaken of
detailed points raised
by the FSA audit and
corrective measures
put in place where
necessary.

Ensure Hygiene
Improvement Notice is
appropriate course of
action and that compliance
is confirmed in writing in all
cases.

Ensure the service of
Remedial Action notices is
on the correct food
business operator in all
cases.

This recommendation relates to
there not being explicit explanation
as to why a food business operator
had not been prosecuted instead of
being served with a hygiene
improvement notice.

The aide memoir
form had already
been amended prior
to the audit to
include a section on
enforcement action
and rationale.

Ensure decisions on
enforcement actions are
escalated in accordance
with the enforcement
policy or reasons given for
departure from the policy.

This recommendation relates to
instances of audit reports being
sent out after 14 days to the food
business operator but there being
no explanation for the delay in it
being sent recorded on file. In
future deviations on the reports

The Team Leader
had already
introduced a system
for identifying when
reports are being
sent out to ensure
that reports were

Completed

-52.-




0T abed

TO ADDRESS

(RECOMMENDATION

INCLUDING STANDARD
PARAGRAPH)

Food Standards

16.15(i) Maintain up to date and
accurate records in retrievable
form on all food establishments in
its area in accordance with the
Food Law Code of Practice and
centrally issued guidance. These
records shall include reports of all
interventions/inspections, the
determination of compliance with
legal requirements made by the
authorised officer, details of action
taken where noncompliance was
identified, details of any
enforcement action taken, and
relevant food registration
information.

[The Standard -16.1]

STATUS

PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS

PROGRESS TO
DATE

OUTSTANDING
ACTIONS

being sent out later will be recorded
on file.

being sent out within
14 days in
compliance with the
Food Hygiene
Rating Scheme. Any
deviation on reports
going out is
recorded on the
database.

This recommendation relates to:

a.) Paper-based premises files
not being available for all
premises in relation to Food
Standards.

b.) The database records not
being comprehensive.

c.) Inspection report forms not
giving a breakdown of legal
contraventions and what
was only recommendation.

d.) The report of inspection form
did not have all the
information on it that it is
supposed to have.

Improvements:-
a.) Merge premises files
between Food Hygiene and
Food Standards.
b.) Database records to be
comprehensive by scanning

All team members
are now in the same
office. This has
allowed the merging
of premises files to
start. Food Safety
already had a file for
each premises and
so Food Standards
information is being
put on to these same
files. All documents
are being scanned
on to the database
as part of the new
Mobile and Agile
working practice.
Prior to the audit,
documented
instruction had been
given to ensure

Ensure food standards
reports / records
distinguish clearly
between contraventions
and recommendations and
clearly  specify the
legislation.

Revised date
for completion: 27/05/16

-53 -




TO ADDRESS

PARAGRAPH)

(RECOMMENDATION
INCLUDING STANDARD

PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS

PROGRESS TO
DATE

OUTSTANDING
ACTIONS

o
QD
Sucggnarv (excluding feed)

on all documents as of
February 2014.

c.) Provide a clear distinction

between legal contravention
and recommendation.

d.) Devise a new report of

inspection form for Food
Standards and set up a
template letter for use,
similar to Food Hygiene
templates.

there was a clear
distinction between
legal contravention
and
recommendation.
This is also being
monitored by the
Team Leader.

Quotes have been
requested for the
alterations to be
made to the Food
Standards
Inspection Form.

TotaFlRecommendations 18
Comileted 7
Good Progress 11
Limited Progress 0
No action 0
Total Outstanding 11

-54 -




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Sir y Fflint
"E!m!o%!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 21 June 2016
Report Subject Project Closure on Review of Corporate Administration
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management
Report Author Chief Officer (Governance)
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The review of Corporate Administrative functions began in October 2013. Job
Evaluation Questionnaires (JEQ'’s) produced for single status were analysed to
identify the profile of posts that could be classes as “administrative”. At that time
there were 278 across the council as a whole. Work then began to identify the
tasks undertaken by those posts. Where these tasks duplicated corporate council
systems they were stopped. If the tasks were overly complex or bureaucratic then
the processes were streamlined. In addition the project has produced a generic
JEQ for the administrative team members and team leaders. This promotes
flexibility, increases equity across the organisation and reduces the risk of
employees seeking salary regrading based on comparison with other posts
undertaking similar functions.

At the same time the posts, which were often widely dispersed, were brought into
teams that served each portfolio (with a single team serving the whole of corporate
services). The final stage (which is the subject of a separate agenda item) is to
bring the remaining portfolio teams into a combined service that serves the County
Hall and Flint offices with an additional central team at the Alltami depot.

Overall the number of administrative posts has reduced to 66 as at June 2016.
This has saved a total of £1.133m.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That Cabinet notes the savings and benefits delivered by the project.

2 That Cabinet endorses the steps to close the project.

Page 107



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLANINIG THE PROJECT

1.01

In October 2013 there were approximately 278 administrative posts with in

the council based on analysis of single status JEQ'’s (it must be stressed

this figure had not been verified). Over the course of the project some

posts have been taken out of scope for the following reasons:

e single status appeals meant they were no longer defined as
administrative;

e the Street scene employees formed a separate project; and

e grant and HRA funded posts because they would not generate any
savings

e posts that were so specialised or technical that it would not make
sense to separate them from the team they support

1.02

In order to reduce the need for administrative support there was a parallel
review of processes. Where tasks duplicated corporate processes they
were simply stopped. Also, a number of key corporate processes were
streamlined and automated as follows:
1. staff with an IT account input their own mileage claims directly onto
Trent rather than paper forms being manually input by admin staff;

2. Absence forms can be completed electronically and emailed to
managers rather than completing paper forms;

3. Staff that use Etarmis to record their time can now use it to monitor
their leave rather than admin staff having to keep team records; and

4. EDM has been introduced in a number of service areas such as
Human Resources, Licensing, Neighbourhood Housing in order to
streamline the way we hold information.

1.03

Within each portfolio generic administrative posts were brought into a
single team enabling an overall reduction in posts and increasing overall
resilience. All these posts have already been put on to a generic
Business Support Assistant JEQ so that they have the same duties and
also the same salary, thereby increasing equity and removing some
inequality in grading.

1.04

The final stage of the project is to bring the portfolio teams together under

a single manager and this is the subject of a separate report on the

agenda. If the proposals in that report are agreed then there are a

number of key actions to close the project as set out below:

¢ HR related tasks associated with bringing together a single team under
a single manager

e Budgetary realignment so that the necessary funding follows the
employees

D 1. N0
Page 106




e Capturing savings and ensuring that they are not double counted
e A programme of training and experience sharing is required to ensure
that the combined team is able to provide a more resilient service

1.05 |There is a project team which contains both HR and finance
representatives. The project team has drawn up an action plan for the
completion of the tasks outlined above. Project management support and
chief officer oversight are available to resolve problems and ensure that
the action plan keeps to timetable.

1.06 | Although this particular project will be closed, the service will not, of
course, remain static. The review of customer service that is currently
underway might have an impact on the reception duties of the
administrative team. Likewise, the creation of the Integrated Transport
Unit could lead to travel booking being centralised. Lastly, there is also a
commitment in the Council’s organisational change policy to review all
restructures after 12 months to ensure that they are functioning as
intended.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | The project has generated the following permanent savings, which are net
of project management costs.

Financial Saving (£)
TOTAL 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18*
1,133,342 193,875 584,492 301,000 43,610 10,365
*The 2017/18 savings relate to the full year effect of the positions identified
in 2016/17.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | All affected employees and their unions have been consulted.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | The project has a risk register that is routinely updated. A larger
centralised administrative team is more resilient and so is able to provide
greater guarantee of service continuity in case of absence. The risk of skill
loss can also be mitigated through a programme of sharing skills and
experience with team members.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | None

Page 109




6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 | None
Contact Officer: Gareth Owens, Chief Officer (Governance)
Telephone: 01352 702344
E-mail: gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | Job Evaluation Questionnaire (JEQ) — the document used to draw up a

profile of each post as part of job evaluation analysing the skKills,
knowledge, experience necessary for and the demands placed on the post
holder by the role.

Page 110



mailto:gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk

Agenda Item 7

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%!z.ire

CABINET MEETING
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 21 June 2016
Report Subject Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 12)
Portfolio Holder Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Corporate Finance Manager
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This regular monthly report provides the latest revenue budget monitoring position
for 2015/16 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account. The position is
based on actual income and expenditure as at Month 12, and projects forward to
year-end. Work is underway to close the 2015/16 accounts and the Final Outturn
will be reported to Cabinet on 19 July 2016.

The projected year end position is as follows:
Council Fund

e Netin year expenditure forecast to be £1.372m lower than budget
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2016 of £4.258m

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

e Netin year expenditure forecast to be £0.093m lower than budget
e Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2016 of £1.330m

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Note the overall report and the projected Council Fund contingency sum
as at 31st March 2016.

2 Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue
Account.

3 To agree the carry forward requests as stated in Appendix 6.

Page 111



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | THE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING POSITION FOR MONTH 12
- 2015/16
1.01 | Council Fund Latest In Year Forecast
The table below shows the projected position by portfolio.
In-Year
TOTAL EXPENDITURE Original | Revised | Projected | Over/
AND INCOME Budget Budget Outturn | (Under)
spend
£m £m £m £m
Social Services 59.696 59.113 59.171| 0.058
Community & Enterprise 12.598 12.917 11.818 | (1.099)
Streetscene &
Transportation 27.782 28.478 29.368 | 0.890
Planning & Environment 4.887 5.420 5498 | 0.078
Education & Youth 13.760 12.069 12.242 | 0.173
Schools 82.670 84.331 84.331 | 0.000
People & Resources 4.595 4.624 4.495 | (0.129)
Governance 8.689 8.711 8.785 | 0.074
Organisational Change 9.569 9.613 9.424 | (0.189)
Chief Executive 3.296 3.087 2.965 | (0.122)
Central & Corporate
Finance 23.915 23.094 21.988 | (1.106)
Total 251.457 251.457 250.085 | (1.372)
1.02 | The reasons for the projected variances occurring to date are summarised

within appendix 2 with movements between periods summarised in appendix
1.

1.03

Significant budget movements between original and revised budget

There have been no significant budget movements in month 12.

1.04

Streetscene and Transportation

The overall overspend within Streetscene & Transportation has increased
slightly from a projected £0.880m overspend at Month 11 to £0.890m as at
Month 12. The projected overspend within the service is due in part to the
delay in the implementation of a number of efficiencies. In addition fluctuations
in recycle sales due to a volatile market has led to an increased pressure on
income projections which have resulted in a shortfall of £0.375m. Full details

of movements are explained{n Appendijx 2.
.—agé Iz



1.05

Programme of Efficiencies

The 2015/16 budget contains £12.874m of specific efficiencies which are
being tracked.

1.06

Appendix 3 provides detail on the latest position where there is a variation to
the level of efficiency achievable compared to the budget.

1.07

This shows that it is currently projected that £10.612m (82%) will be achieved
resulting in a net underachievement of £2.262m. The underachieved
efficiencies are included within the projected outturn figure.

1.08

Inflation

Included within the 2015/16 budget are provisions for pay (£1.304m), targeted
price inflation (£0.421m), non-standard inflation (£0.102m) and income
(£0.254m).

1.09

For 2015/16 the amounts for non-standard inflation (NSI) include an allocation
for food (£0.064m) and an allocation for Non Domestic Rates (£0.038m).

1.10

There is an amount of £0.240m remaining from 2014/15 which is also being
held centrally. Areas subject to NSI increases will be monitored throughout
the year and allocations made to portfolio areas only where a critical funding
need is evidenced.

1.11

It is anticipated that the £0.064m for food inflation will not be required. In
addition to this there is a surplus of £0.061m remaining from inflation set aside
for pay. Therefore £0.125m is now projected to underspend. The balance of
the 2014/15 inflation and £0.110m from the in-year inflation have been
included as an efficiency within the 2016/17 budget.

Reserves and Balances

1.12

Unearmarked Reserves

The 2014/15 outturn reported to Cabinet on 14" July 2015 showed
unearmarked reserves at 31 March 2015 (above the base level of £5.769m) of
£4.746m.

1.13

Taking into account previous allocations and the current underspend at Month
12 the balance on the contingency reserve at 315t March 2016 is projected to
be £4.258m.

Page 113




1.14

Earmarked Reserves

The Council has adopted a reserves protocol which was considered by Audit
Committee and approved by County Council on 24t September 2015.

This sets out the principles around how the council will determine, manage
and review the level of its reserves and includes reference to regular reporting
of the latest position to Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.

The next updated position on earmarked reserves will be included in the
outturn monitoring report.

Housing Revenue Account

1.15| On 17 February 2015 the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) budget for 2015/16 of £30.776m. The budget provided for a closing
balance of £1.396m.

1.16 | The 2014/15 Outturn Report to Cabinet on 14 July 2015 showed a closing
balance at the end of 2014/15 of £1.510m.

1.17 | The Month 12 monitoring report for the HRA is projecting in year expenditure
to be £0.093m lower than budget and a projected closing balance as at 31
March 2016 of £1.330m, which at 4.3% of total expenditure satisfies the
prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

1.18 | Carry Forward Requests
Various requests to carry forward funding into 2016/17 have been identified.
Details of all carry forward requests are shown in appendix 6 and are
recommended for approval.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | The Budget Monitoring Report reflects the planned use of the financial

resources of the Council for the current financial year and details the
variations occurring to date.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | None Required.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | As we are nearing the closure of the 2015/16 accounts it is not anticipated

that there are any significant risks to the Final Outturn which will be
reported to Cabinet on 19 July 2016. The summary of in-year risks are not
included as in previous month’s reports as they have now been projected

Page 114




| through to year end.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 11 — Appendix 1
Council Fund — Budget Variances — Appendix 2

Council Fund — Programme of Efficiencies — Appendix 3

Council Fund — Movement on unearmarked reserves — Appendix 4
Housing Revenue Account Variances — Appendix 5

Council Fund — Carry Forward Requests — Appendix 6

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None required

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson

Finance Manager
Telephone: 01352 702287
E-mail: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Budget: a statement expressing the Council’s policies and service levels
in financial terms for a particular financial year. In its broadest sense it
includes both the revenue budget and capital programme and any
authorised amendments to them.

7.02 | Council Fund: the fund to which all the Council’s revenue expenditure is
charged.

7.03 | Financial Year: the period of twelve months commencing on 1 April.

7.04 | Housing Revenue Account: the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a
local authority account showing current income and expenditure on
housing services related to its own housing stock. The account is separate
from the Council Fund and trading accounts and is funded primarily from
rents and government subsidy.

7.05 | Projected Outturn: projection of the expenditure to the end of the
financial year, made on the basis of actual expenditure incurred to date.

7.06 | Reserves: these are balances in hand that have accumulated over
previous years and are held for defined (earmarked reserves) and general
(general reserves) purposes. Councils are required to regularly review the
level and purpose of their reserves and to take account of the advice of the
Chief Finance Officer.

Page 115



mailto:sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

7.07

Revenue: a term used to describe the day-to-day costs of running Council
services and income deriving from those services. It also includes charges
for the repayment of debt, including interest, and may include direct
financing of capital expenditure.

7.08

Underspend: when referring to expenditure the actual expenditure
incurred is less than budget. Shown as a —ve. When referring to income
the actual income achieved exceeds the budget. Shown as a —ve.

7.09

Variance: difference between latest budget and actual income or
expenditure. Can be to date if reflecting the current or most up to date
position or projected, for example projected to the end of the month or
financial year.

7.10

Virement: the transfer of budget provision from one budget head to
another. Virement decisions apply to both revenue and capital expenditure
heads, and between expenditure and income, and may include transfers
from contingency provisions. Virements may not however be approved
between capital and revenue budget heads.

Page 116




COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16

o FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
F Siry Filint
Flintshire Budget Monitoring (Month 12)

Summary of Movement from Month 11

Month 11

Portfolios

Central and Corporate Finance
Varlance as per Cabinet Report

Month 12

Portfolios

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Directorate Returns

Change Requiring Explanation

Social Services

Services For Adults
Resources & Regulated Services - Disability Services - over payment to a care provider and also
an under accrual of the debtor for outstanding joint funding income

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
Learning Disabilities / PDSI

Older People (Provider Services)

Older People (Purchasing)

Mental Health Services

Subtotal: Services for Adults

Other minor changes of less than £0.025m.
Good Health team

Deputyship team

Management & Support

Commissioning

Subtotal: Development & Resources

Children's Services

Professional Support - contribution to cost of Emergency duty team £0.029m plus other minor
movements £0.002m

Qut of County Placements - additional placement costs
Other minor variances -of less than £0.025m

Flying Start

Subtotal: Children’s Services

Total: Social Services

£m

(0.486)
(1.088)

£m

(0.266)
(1.106)

(1.574)

(0.137)

0.004
0.005
0.005
0.023

(1.372)
0.202

0.007
0.001
0.014
0.000

{0.100)

0.031

0.272

0.002

0.022

Page 117

0.305

0.227

Appendix 1



Appendix 1

Community & Enterprise

Revenues & Benefits

e Further underspend on the Council Tax Reduction Scheme provision (0.060)
¢ Increased surplus on Council Tax Collection Fund due to bad debts being less than anticipated (0.213)
¢ Housing Benefit subsidsy pressure lower than expected (0.100)
Subtotal: B & Benefi (0.373)

Minor changes of less than £0.025m.

e Council Fund Housing 0.013

e Regeneration (0.004)

e Revenues & Benefits 0.024

¢ Housing Programmes 0.002
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m 0.035
Total: Community & Enterprise __ lo.338)

Streetscene & Transportation Portfolio

Highway Network
* Movement in area teams due to additional patching works 0.023
Subtotal: Highway N k 0.023

Transport & Logistics
¢ Reduced cost of school transport commitment (0.018)

Subtotal: Transport & Logisti {0.018)

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

* Ancillary Services & Performance 0.008

o Highway Network 0.010

« Transport & Logistics (0.013)
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m 0.005
Total: Streetscene & Transportation 0010

Page 118



Appendix 1

Planning & Environment Portfolio

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

e Business 0.025

e Community (0.007)

*  Access (0.008)

e Shared Service (0.013)

e Strategy 0.014

e Administration (0.008)

* Vacant Posts (0.003)
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m 0.000
Total: Planning & Environment 0.000

Education & Youth

Inclusion Services

o Out of County Placements - additional placement costs 0.193
Subtotal: Inclusion Services 0.193
Access - School Planning & Pr

. Access _School _Provision -Variance' change due to higher personal injury claims than predicted. 0.033
Qther minor variances also effect this.
Sut I: A - School Planning & Provision 0.033
Minor variances of less than £0.025m

s Primary School Services 0.003

e Secondary School Services 0.010

¢ Ragional Services 0.004

e Adult & Community Education (0.004)

e Community Centres 0.001

s Youth Justice Service 0.001

* Youth & Community Service 0.003

o Commissioning & Performance - Business Support 0.023

e School Management Information (0.018)

s Regional Capita One 0.005
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m 0.028
Total: Education & Youth 0.254

Page 119



People & Resources

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

HR & OD

Corporate Finance

Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: People & Resources

Governance

Business Support

A carry forward request for £0.038m was agreed in the month 11 report to fund work for the
creation of an electronic mail room. This is now reflected in the month 12 outtumn figure. Minor
vanances account for the balance.

s Ruei I "y
PROI

IcT

A realignment of software renewal dates has resulted in a reduction in expected outtum by
£0.040m. There were minor variances resulting in reduced outturmn of £0.012m.

Subtotal: ICT

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

Legal Services

Democratic Services

Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: Governance

Organisational Change

Valuation & Estates
Unachieved income from industrial unit rent.

sub 1: Val &E

Facilities
A carry forward for £0.100m was approved in the month 11 report. £0.021m is due to
minor variances.

Subtotal: Facilities

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
Public Libraries & Arts, Culture & Events
Museums Service

County Archives

Leisure Services

Property Design & Consultancy

Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: Organisational Change

Chief Executive

Minor vartances of less than £0.025m

A carry forward request was agreed in the month 11 report for promotion and advertising of the
URDD Eisteddford for £0.025m. This amount was not reflected in the outtum until month 12.
There were minor variances of £0.011m.

Total: Chief Executive

Central & Corporate Finance

Pension Deficit Portfolio Recharges

Carbon Reduction Commitment lower as a result of reduced emissions
Minor variances

Total: Central & Corporate Finance

Total Changes

Page 120

(0.007)
(0.014)
(0.021)
(0.021)
0.028
0.028
(0.052)
(0.052)
(0.014)
(0.004)
(0.018)
(0.042)
(0.004)
(0.004)
0.121
0.121
(0.008)
(0.002)
0.001
0.003
(0.017)
(0.023)
0.094
0.036
0.036
0.014
(0.035)
0.003
(0.018)
0.202

Appendix 1



‘sainssaid
sSsalppe 0] 3dIAIBS Ul aIBYmas|@ spuadsispun
asn 0} sjuswysnipe juawubieas 196png puswwoday

‘sainssaid
ssaippe 0} JIMABS Ul [IBYMas|@ spuadsiapun
asn 0} sjuawisnipe juswubieas Jobpng puawiwoday

"S30IAaS JOLIO
pue aJes Aeq UM (WZ90°03) 18U € 0) JUNOWE SBJUBLIEA JOUIW JaYIQ
J3po

‘(se01nBg pajenfay pue S321N0SaY) Juswsjgeay
¥ 9)EJU| WO SIINED0T OJul PaLBJSUBL SBY UOIUM Wea) YO
[e120S jeydsoH ayy o} Buneids (weLL'03) Jo [E10) B SIpNouUl Yolym
‘SaIDUBIRA JONIOM [B120S 0} anp Buiyels o} ssjejal yoiym (Wiyyz 03) 40
puadsiapun pajosfoid [B10) B S 219y "SWEes) SaI)I[e20T Bale au} Uiyim
uoddns jeuoissajoid ayy si puadsiapun jueoyubis Jo ease Jayuny y
poddng Jeuoissajoid

‘Buisinu a3y 10} (Wseo 03) Buipnioul 126png anoge
awWodUl Ul saseasdul Jayuny snid ‘awooul pajejal Apadoud Jo [aAs] ay) ul
aseaJoul ue o} anp (W /g 03) 40 puadsiapun ue ‘siopiacid awoy aled
0] sjuswded uo (wQpg03) Jo puadsiopun ue ‘sapnoul yolym ‘aled
[enuapisas uo (wgg/ 03) Jo puadsiapun pajoeloid e Aq Jasyo uey)
asow Buiaq s1 ased Aseloiuiog uo puadsiano pajoaloid ueoyubis ayy

aJe?) |enyuapisay

-abeyord xa|dwoo auo Jo uonessad ay) A pasusnjul Ajued
uaaq sey Yolym ‘w/ g 03 Jo uolisod WINiNO G /7L OZ SU) Wolj paonpal
Apueoyiubis sey yolym WeEGG 03 SI puadsiono pajosfoid Jo [9A8
juaund ayy epuswap yum ajdoad jo sisquinu Buiseassul pue psau
10 Auxsjdwoo paseasoul ‘ajyosd onesoowsp Bubueys syy yuswajqesl
1sed |nyssaoons Bumojjo} aa1Aas ay) 0) Buiuinas syusio Aq pasuan)jul
Buieq us sI yoym ‘aien Aeoiwoq SI ainssaxd Jo ease uew
ay| -ease sy} u) saoueuea Bunesuadwo? uesyubls awos ale aay |

(sanje00)

ase) Leyoiwog|(g150) (815°0) JAd% A" S99'vL swea| AyesoT
SadAIRS [BI20S
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
painbay uonoy soueueA Jofe Jo asnen ww..._h__.“ﬁ aIuBUBA uﬁuwmvwn_ www_d“.m_ L ITNETS

Z xipuaddy

AYVNNNS - 21 HINOW

Page 121



*SUN0J 10 uosLd Woly 810U
yoys Je Sspuewsp pue siaquinu jualo ul sabueyd

(e21u8g
asns||\ asueysgng
2 UjjeaH [ejuaiy)

o} anp Aymejoa |eguajod - malnal sopun desy '91/G10z 40} sabeyoed aied Juauno sposyay|(GLL'0)  |(SLL'0)  |2020 L1€0 196png oisuaio4
(soiuag
asnsiy aoueisqng
2 U)edH [BJUBIN)
's}s02 abexyoed mau [euonippe 2o1A19g AuenoiwoQ
‘malnal 1apun deay|episbuoje  sabexoed Aeloiwo@ pue [enuspisay Ul Sasealou||0/g 0 0/£0 €81l €180 pue [enuaplisay
*SaWO02)N0 PasiAal
pue mainas ao1ues Bumoljoy paonpal Apueoyiubis uaaq mou aaey
SJasn 9JIAISS JOj S)S00 pajoadxa JO SWId) Ul SJUSWHWIWOD SNoiAald (seo1uas Ajigesia)
"SIUBI[D UOIISUBJ) [BUOHIPPB/M3U JOJ JUSWHWWOD PIsiAaL B Sapnjoul ao1nas Ajigesiqg pue
‘MaIABS Japun daay{mou uopoalold eyl "91/510¢ Joj sabexoed ased jyusund s)osjRY|(z0g 0) (zoc0) 166°L 6622 S)Npy 2jqessunp
"JOBIIUOD 320|g MaU B 0 oedwl ay)
pue sJasn aoialas mau Buipniour ‘Buia] papoddng papiaoid Ajleuwssixa
uiyum aied Aeiojuiop JO S)S0D  |euonippe O} 8lela) puadsiano
pajoaloid ayy ul SaSRaIdUI JURDaI "s1aIed Aojdwa oym SISSN SDIAISS 10)
syuawAied soueinsul Ayjigel) Jakojdwa puny o) suonebiqo Joy pue siasn
ao1n9s 0) sjuswAed ay) sbeuew o) papasu Ajoedes uonensiuiwpe
-sainssald|jeuonippe a8y} o} uonejas ul si uswaR Buewsas syl -Aocuaioe (ssanuasg Ayjigesiq)
Ssalppe 0] 821A19S Ul 3JBymas|e spuadsiapun|yo auo e se ajelodiod pue jeauad o) (471) puny Buia Juspuadapu| s301M3G paje|nbay
asn 0} syuaw)snipe yuswubieal 1a6png puswwioday |ay) 0y uoneas ui 196pnqg jo Jajsuel) ay) Bundsajjas mou si 8a1A8S SIYL|EEL 0 2090 1¥8'SL 6€2°GlL Y S90IN0SSY
wawaalbe diysisuped g¢ uonodag ay) uofNQqUUod
uiyIm sluawsabuele [eiouBulY B} Jo maiAa) Bumojio) diysieuped ay) juswdinb3y
0} uonNQUIUOD S,1UNEY 3y) Jo Buipuny Joj Jusiainbal ul uononNpaX |(#80°0)  |(#80°0)  |Z6£°0 9.v°0 Agunwwo)
-pasyin Bulaq Buipuny HHD [euoHIppe pue ‘asuapuadapul (Juswajqeay
aieg yesH bBunuguoy 6bBupowoid MBS JBYOUEB O} IS0 pue ayeju|)
"‘Malnal Japun daadj|ue Jo uoneooleal ay) 0} anp Aulew si puads Japun pajaalosd ay) |(6220) (622°0) 0020 62¥°0 S30IAIBG JUBWS|qeay
{urz) (w3) {w3) (w3)
L1 Yiuoiy wnyno 18bpng
painbay uonoy asueue Jofey Jo asned soueLiEA 9oUBUEBA peyefoid posiney ERITVETS

Z Xipuaddy

AYVWANS - 2L HLNOW

Page 122



‘salouaiolya ajqissod
pue Buiuueid aininy UWLOJU [IM PUB  PaISPISUOD

"slaled ay}
1o} aouemojje Buiobuo ue Joeipe Ajgeueaul yoiym siapio diysueipienc
|e10adg pue a2uapisay 10} SISPI0 UNOJ o Jaquinu Buiseasou

Buleg SI yolym JO BWOIN0 3y} ‘uIyeuapun|ayl O} anp Os|e Si SIY} JO Led "9SS Y} ulyIm sjuswadeld aied Ja)so) (s@21u8G s,uaip|iy))
usaq sey Wea| JuswWwade|d Ajjwed ayl Jo MaIAl Y 10 Jaguunu ay) Ul 8SBaIdU| Ue JO YNsal B S| puadsiano w/yg 03 a4l |be 0 20 vive 122t Juswaoeld Ajiwe4
(s1ebaibbe)
S9OUBHEA S32IN0SaY
"Jualindal 8q 0} pajoadxa Jou Jng MaIARL 0) SNURUOY) *S9OUBLIBA JOUIW SNOWBA |{(600°0) €100 (Ko ar TR ard B yuawdojaaaq ay10
‘paxnbai |aA3) ay) 0} dn do} 0} USENSPUN SEM SIS
[e120g ulyum Juawubieas woy ebpnq e L Yuow ul (damos)
Jjuel9 awwelboi4 juswdoPAs@ 22IOPHOA BIBD [BID0S BY) 10y
suoiIpuod jueib ay) 19aw o} palnbai j9Ast ay) mojaq uajje) pey 18bpnq
ay} Jo waswad Buipuny ysjew ay) aouanbasuod e Sy ‘SUoheUIWISIaP
HAMAT pue sswoono sniels 9buis jo oedwn  pauiquod
"Jua11N231 8q 0} pajoadxa J0U JNg MBIARL 0} aNURUOD |3y} Jo douanbasuod B se Paonpal pey 321ASS SiY) Joj 18bpng aseq ayl [z£00 2€0°0 910 Ze1°0 Buiues )
‘sainssald awoou|
SSoJppe 0} BIMASS Ul IBYMIS|9  spuadsiapun yaam Jad 093 0} ¥oam sad 667 wouy ded abieyd wnwixew Koljod Buibieyn
asn 0} sjuaunsnipe juswubieas 126png puawwoosay|ay) JO |9A3] Y} Ul WBWULIBA0S) US|9M Ag aseasour ue jo joedw||(+0Z°0) ($0Z°0) (228°1) (£49°1) - S9DIAJDG ssauisng
‘aidoad
19p|0 40) uofisod winpno pajosfold JuaunNd By} U0 paseq SaAIaSal (a1eba.166e)
wioJj UMOP umelp aq o} palinbal jou si ajdoad Buuoddng wouy Buipuny S30UBLEA S)iNpyY
“JuaunJas aq 0} pa)aadxa Jou JNq MBIASS 0) anupuo)|ajgejieae |equsiod aul ‘gl pouwad SoUIS "SSJUBMBA Joulwu snouep{(0vL0) (601L°0) 68201 868701 10} S92IAIBS JBUIO
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
L1 tauop wnyno j8bpng
be
pasinbay uoyoy asueuep Jofey Jo asned soueLEA aJueuep pejosfoid pesiey ELITVETS

Z Xipusddy

AYYAIWNS - 21 HINOW

Page 123



(691°0) 850°0 LLL'6S £11°6S S90IAI3S Je100g [E10L
(s1eb21668)
S30UBLEA UBIPIYD
‘JUS.LINJ31 8q 0} PJIadXa JOU JNg MBIASI O} SNURUOD *S3OUBLIEA JOUIW SNOWBA| /6070 6600 6152 ocv'e 10} §801AIBS JBUIO
sjuawade|d
‘MalAa1 Japun daay '91/510g Joj sebexoed aied Jua.nd s1o3)aY [(80Z°0) ¥90°0 08v'e 9lv'e Awnog jono
‘Wwea} uonuanau| Aliwe4 ayy ulyim Buigels uo pusdsispun
weoyubis e Bupnpul ‘woddng [BUOISSBJOId SIIIMBS  SUBIPIYD
ulyIm alaymasia (wgyl Q3) Jo spuadsiapun jau Bumesyo ase alayl
‘wes) Aing Aouabisw ayy jJo 1S02 By} 0} WEZO'03 JO uonnguuod
e S| asey| ‘sapuedea o) anp spebpng Aed jsuiebe spuadsiepun
Bujasyo swos ym ‘w/0’03 Hodsuel] pue wgll 03 Jo Ssiapiaosd
Jeussixe 0} sjuawded uiypm sainssaid 0) anp S syl (LSYAD) wes)
uoddng synpy BunoA pue susipiiyd syi 0} sajejdl Yolym weil o3
j0 aunssaid Jaypny e s| asey] “podss HBuuoyuow jebpng s Yo
ay) Buuspisuos uaym Jauige) Aq panoidde se smssals Aouabunuoo
syl wou wooL'03 jo uonesoje ue jo Aem Aq palebyiw Aped ussq
‘sainssald|sey puadsiano sy "801A8s By} JO BaIER SIY} UIUIM SHSL A9) SSalppe 0}
ssalppe O} 80IAI8S Ul 2JBUymasd  spuadsiapun|yels Aojdap o} paau ay) 0} anp S! YaIym ‘wes} Juswssassy g ing ay)
asn 0] syusunsnipe yuawubieal 196png puswwosay [uiyum sisoo Aed Aouabe uo wgeg L 03 Jo puadsiano pajosiosd e sialayt | 1910 2610 622'S 1€0°S yoddng |euoissajoid
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
L1 Yyuol wnyng 19bpng
pasinbay uonoy asueueA Jofel Jo asned) soueLEA asueueA poyoofoid posmey ERITNETS

Z Xipusday

AYVYAWNS - 2L HLNOW

Page 124



(19.°0)

(660°1L)

818'LL

Ll6'CL

asudiajug
® Ajunwwo) g0

(wgeo'03F) awoou uelb
J0 uonesiulixew pue sabieysal yers ‘910z ysiew Agq aus uo aq yloq
JIm yoiym Aenp s,Ueuuo) ‘|ooyds asnoH Wojsny pue jull4 ‘syepn syl
uo sawayos Jo juswdojarap Jualpadxa ay) pauoddns sey aunypuadxa
siy] -soedg Buary salepn ymm Juawsaiby eba Buiyouy JoaQ
ay} Jo Juswdo@Asp au) Yyim piemuo) aaow o} (dHvHS) swuweibold
Jemauay pue BuisnoyH oibajens ay) sjqeus o} wggL 03 Jo aunyipuadxy

¢.00

200

9rL’0

¢l00

sawwelboid
BuisnoH

"(wgL0"03) Jo sedueneA Joulw JaylQ (wezZL 03} dMa
woyy Buipuny suaping maN [eUOHIPPY "WIQ.Z 0F 40 (lejuoys pajabpng
Apisgng Wauag BuisnoH (Wwgoy'03) SWwayss uononpay Xe| |1sunod)
ay} Joj uoisinoid pajabpng ayy uo pusdsiapun pajoaloid (WSO 03)
sBuines Buyels -pajewnss Ajleniul ueyy Jaybly (wyOg03) 18 Spuels
Ajuaund pund uonpdajo) XeJ] [ouno) ayy uo snidins pajedionuy

(z610)

(1¥8°0)

0646

1E9°01

S)yauag g SanuUaAay

(wiLo03)
saoueLeA Joulw Jayl0 (Wip003) 2wodu| JuBiS) jO uonesiwixew
pue s)s02 jo uopnesiendes Jayund °sjed swes 3y} Je paseasdul
jou aAey sableyo aseym ‘Jeak yoes uonepul yum aul ul Buisealoul
sjobie} awooul 0} anp si9yJeWw Ul WEEO'03 JO (BjHOYS pajewnsy

{010°0)

(#10°0)

89G°0

2850

uoljesauabay

‘WGLQ'03 SeoUeleA Jouiw
J1aY10 (Wwpgz 03) 2o1muag poddng uonepowoddy paseqg Alunwiwo)
ay) Jo 10adsal ul sbuines |euonippy "wig9Q 03 luawdinba 81e23(9)
JO Juawaind0ld ‘w9003 pajedidnue uBy] JSMO| aWOdUl 3Jed3JD |

{(so10)

{z60°0)

(5zZ1°0)

(e€00)

BursnoH
pung jounod

"W 100’03 SaouBUeA Joulw 3O (w/z0'03) puadsiapun
Jeak-ul  pieoquoymsg (we0'03) uoisiaoud  @dIAleS  SJoBUU0D
anysjund 8yy uo puadsispun  (WeyQ03) Aouaoye Jeuonippe
sajua) AJuNwWwoD) ‘WeZo 03 pajedionue uey) Jomoj saoueg poddng
Aunwwon jo adsas ul abieyosay ‘(WzZeD'03) UOHEPOWILLIOIDY
SS9|BWOH Jo Joadsal ul paynuspi Aouspoiye JeaA-ul  [BUOIPPY

(92Z°0)

(92Z°0)

6EY’L

G99'L

I IVETS
BuisnoH g Jawioisny

asudiaug
» AHunwwo)

painbay uopoy

aoueueA Jofep jo asned

(w3)
i1 YJuoN
souBLBA

(w3)
@jueleA

(w3)
wnyno
pajosfoid

(w3)
1ebpng
pasiaay

LTTNET

Z Xipusddy

AYVANWNS - 2L HLNOW

Page 125



"M3IARI PUE JOJIUOW O} BNURUOTD

‘abuajjeyo uswywwos
yuawsidw pue saanes B saliddng Joyuoy

AlBuipioooe suonaaloid
puswe pue Aso|o Jaylews BuioAoal Joyuop

“JaoBIL
Aouapyy pieog aswwesbold ybnoiyy papodey

JavjoRl]
Aouapyg pieog swwesbold ybnoayy pspoday

"Juswabuele Juswabeuew MaU PUE Sj|3M UOIOBIXS

‘GL/L0/LE
Wwoi) Pasead Yoiym sajeoyiua) uondwaxg AA3T U} JO [BMEIPUIM BY)
0] anp me| ul abueys e 0) anp spuny jeuolppe Bupsanbal JojoeNUOD
alsem pooj 8y ‘9)SEM POo4 gnH JN o} Bunejas aseasoul Jo wQLo 03

YaIe IsLE 3yl
0} ybnouy) Wey 03 Jo sabeuuo) Judwleal) S)Sem PaJBLLISS Ul 9Sealoul
pue aseyoind yaswdinba pue sjsod Buiyios aAnosioud ‘ausS DHH
piayuaaig e sjpaoys Guipeol Jo aaiy 4o} WO 0F JO SISO [euonIppY

“Jeak |ejpueuy
£1/9102 3y} |nun pjayusaig je sanyioes Bunsedwod ayy buisn aq jou
lm Aauy se (186png w9Q'03) DO anysybiquaq Wolj paaiadal usaq

sey awooul }sodwod oON "WG, e 03 Saniea ales ajoho-al Bunemonjj
yum pouad ajie|joa e o} anp 1axJew 6uljpAoal oy} ul JUSLWBASIYOR Japun

"WGZO 03 UIq aisem puodas Joj abieyd Jo uononposul pue woso 03
SIBUIRlUOD BJSEM 10} @0Bs AisAllep Jo uoneuaws|dwl padelaq

‘wiQg " 03 Jo Aouatoys payabpng ay) uo
Jlejuoys pajoalosd |B10] B Ul JNSal [(IM SAYIS JUil{ pue Aenp s,yeuuo) 1e
sawn Bunesado mau jo uoonpoul pajoadxa uey) Jaie| ay) 0) sabueys
‘uonippe uj "anuad Buyokoal adoH jo ainsojo pasodoid ay) 0) uoneas
Ul U2YBLIBPUN UONE)YNSUOY pue pasapisuod Buieq ase suondo Jayung

‘w9l 03
1e pPajewwNSa Mou Si uonoexa seb Jo sjaAa) Builenion|y pue umopyealq

uonas(iod
a)sep g |esodsiqg
9JSEAA - 9oUBWIONSd

mau [[elsuapesbdn 0} Jusw)SaAul Joj [enualodfuswdinba Bumoloy ssulbue seb woly ssjes AJouoale paonpay|(606°0 12670 612 2659 9 S20IMBS AuejjIouy
uonepodsuel]
12 BUADSIPANS
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
11 Yuo wnipno 1ebpng
paiinbay uonoy aoueueA Jofey jo asnen soueLEA aoueUeA persfoid pesiAey ERLITNTT

Zxipusddy

AYVANNS - 21 HLNOW

Page 126



uonepodsues ]

088°0 0680 89¢£°62 8.¥'8¢Z 'p BUIISIVANG |EJ0L
Sa0UBLEBA JBY)O
"MB3iA3J 0} anupjuo) ‘3oueleA ON|000°0 0000 161°0 161°0 - YlomaN AemybiH
‘gouBUdUIBW
J2um uiyim (Wso'03) Jo puadsisapun ue aq (|im assy) sjedionue
‘L | pouad Je papodas asueuep S1)1 '910Z Yole Jo pua ayy 0} dn sajuim abesane mojaq ayj o} an(
¢l pouad je
‘M3IAB] 0) anunuog | pauodal ale abewep pooj) Buimo||o) HEOF JO SIom Buiyojed [euonippy
(wop0'03) sebieyoal Yels [euonippe pue 3iom paje|al
's)s07) aakojdwig Jo)uop JauIm oju| uolysues) Buimoijo) suonesado YoM PUNOIS) PaINPay
uayoes| ‘w0 03 Buusnl uo adsuels|o) 018z
Aousoyg pieog awweibold ybBnosy papoday| pue spiepuels Buisueajd paonpal ay) jo uonejuawaidus ay) ui AepQq
PENLIETTE ‘woeo 03 Bumno abpay Jo) awooul [euolippe NIOMIBN
fouspyg pieog swweibold ybnolyy papodsy| awos Aq 1asyo asaias Bumno sseub Jo uones)ieussixa jiny ay) ul AeQq |80 0 2110 €252 90V’ g AbBajens shkemybiH
SaouBUBA
Javoel | 18410 - sansibo
Aouadiyy pieog swuwesbold ybnoayy pspoday gL 3 JusW)WWod pyodsuel) jooyas Jo 1s0d paonpay |((620°0) (oz10) 6vv'8 6958 2 uofjeyodsues |
*sa[o1yanA Jo abesn juaioiys alow pue 19314 - saoINRS
"MaIAB) 0} anunuo)|sadud |any Buonpal o) anp 'S)S09 |any [enuue ul uopanpal pajoasioid ({080 0) (020°0) IELY 108V 90Inosay g soysibo
SaouBlLBeA
“1ayoel] 18410 - @oueWIONSd
fousioy3 pleog swwelbold ybnowy) papodsy "saoueleA JoulN|(zo0'0)  [(£00'0)  [915°0 6160 g S80IMIBS Aleyjjlouy
CERITVETS
*M3IAR] pUB JojuoLW O} SNURUOD) ‘134 8y} Jo Jauenb )se| ay) 10} $33) |euNg Ul SWOdUI pasealau][(9€0°0) (ovo0) ovZ 0 0820 Juswanealeg
JuaWaoIog
‘AJUN0?) 3y} SSOJOB JUBWB2IoUd (NDd) » Buppeyq
‘ABup.ioooe suonoaloxd aonopN abiey) Ajjeusd pue sabieys Bupped Jed jo uonejuswalduwi - 9oueuLIOHad
puswue pue Aj@soj2 awoou} Bupped Jed Jojuop ay} ui sAejap Buimoi|oy siesodoid Buluue|d ssauisng wouy lejuoys|+80°0 6400 €610 yLL0 9 S80IM9G Ase|(1ouy
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
L1 Yiuoly wnyng 19bpng
paiinbay uopoy asueuep Joley jo asnen souBLEA aJueuBA pojosfoid posiAey LRIV T

Z Xipusddy

AYVNNNS - 21 HLNOW

Page 127



juswuoIAUT]

8100 8.0°0 86¥°S 0ey's g Bujuueid jejol

‘9jqIssod asaym aAoWaIRoNPaL -ainypuadxa pajoalold S32UBLEA JBY)0 JO

pue ainypuadxe PaRILILIOD JOHUOLW O} dNURUOD| aINin} 0 anjeA/|aA3] 8y} Bulonpal ul [nyssaoans abusjieyd Juswywuio) [(y50°0) (L20°0) 200°¢ £10°€ a)ebaibby oijojuod

SaDUBLEA

ajqissad asaym aAowaiRoNpal ‘ain)ipuadxs pajoaloid Jay1o jo a)ebaibby

pue ainypuadxa PajiWLLIOD JOJUOLW O} aNURUOD| aIniny Jo anjea/|aAs| ay} Bulonpal ul |nyssasans abuajieys Juswywwod (620 0) (cz0'0) 8010 €EL0 - Juawdopaaq
‘pajoadxa uey} Jaybiy Buieq swoou| 994
uonediddy Buluue)g aid JO [9A3] BY) YIIM JOSHO SEM SIY] 'SOIDUSIDIS
Buluue|d ssauisng Ul pajoajjal pue 10z ‘|udy 10) pasodoid

‘pasoyuow | Aleuibuo sem syt |ig (ssjean) Buiuueld sy Japun 610z ‘18qojoQ Jun jusasiog

Alesolo agq |m s@As| aswooul 994 Buluueld| %G1 Aq paseasoul Buleq jou se9) uoneslddy Buluueld woyj |efuoys|yoL-0 €010 (0£0'0) (£€10) % 1onuo) Buuueld

‘9)1q1ssod a1aym aAowWaL/2oNpPal pajedionue se S30UBLEA JaUJ0 JO

pue ainypuadxe PaPILWOD JOJUOW O} BNURUOD|pPapIAcLd Jou SBm 91/GL0Z Wouy uolonpas Buipuny 196pnq sjonuoo poo4[{5£0°0) (010°0) Sit'L S8l 2)ebaibby - ssaulsng
‘Aouaby splepue)g pood ay) Wolj Wy 1003 JO Juels) 8218
*/1/910Z wouy 8sead [Im| pasd |ewiuy ay) Jo ydieoal ayy AQ 19syQ "921A19s aul uiyim Buiulews)

Buipuny 210} se Juswubijeal 126png |epuajod ybnoay) 126.8) aWooU 8y} pue G| 0Z Jaqwadaq ul Buipus DgD weyxalp eyaq

19618} awoou| jJuels 9onpas o) shem ajebiysanu| yum diysseuped auy ul Bunnsal ‘Buipund Juels yy43Q paonpay|620°0 6200 GSL°0 9zZ1°0 2 Y)|eaH |ewiuy

Sa0UBLBA

‘g|qissod ajaym anowal/aonpal ‘alnypuadxa pajoalosd 184)0 J0 91ebaibby

pue ainypuadxa PaPILILIOD JOJUOW O} anunuod| aimny jo anjea/iaAs) aul Buonpal u) Nyssaaons abus|ieyd WsWWWoD |0v0 0 €€0°0 210 1690 - Alunwwo)
‘gjeudoidde se suonosfoid 11/9102

awooul jsnipe pue papiacsd S32IAISS JO [2AS] JOHUON OlU! V|d B SE pJemIO) PalLIed SWwodu) aouadl| Jeak ¢ pue Jealk €(200°0 9000 800°0 2000 Buisuaoi

‘aleudoidde se suofoaloid uapIep

aWwodul }snfpe pue papiAcLd S30IAISS JO [9AB] JOYUOW ‘uolyisod Buroueuy J1as ay) ul jlejUoys (epuslod|zL0'0 €100 9800 £¥0°0 Boq |onu0) 1s3d

JUBWIUOIIAUT

w9 Bujuueld

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
L1 Yyuol wnyno 19bpng
pasnbay uonoy asueueA Jofey jo asne) souelEA asueUeA peyosfoid pesiney LTS TS

AHVYNINNS - 21 HLINOW

Page 128



yInoA

(180°0)  [eL10 (444" 690°Z1L 3 uogeanpg [ejoL
‘uonepodsuel] yum paaibe
u23aQq MOU dABRY S)S00 AIB|BS PaJByS "Oj|0jHO0d YINOA PuUB uoneanpg Wwea] uoneuwuou| g
‘M3IARJ 0] 9NURUOD yum ainjonisay Juawabeuepy Joiuag e Buimoljoy sBuines Asuedep |(£50°0) (990°0) 9zZL0 Z61°0 yuawasbeuepy |00YsS
"01j0jUOd UINOA pue uonesnp3 aouBULIOHad
"MaIARS 0] NUNUOD UM ainjonsay juawsbeuepy Joluas e Bumoljoy sbuiaes Aouesep |(6€0 0) (910°0) 62€°0 SPE0 g Bujuolssiwwo)
“M3IABI 0) 8nuguoD "SasueLeA JOuIN|{1710°0) {(€10°0) ver'lL AN A S90IAJBS YINOA
“MalAl 0} anuuo) ‘ajuelieA ON|000°0 0000 9610 9610 sjooyog Amuag 1s1g
“S|U} 1038 OS[B SUBUBA JOUIW JBYIO (uoisinoid g Buuueld
‘MalAa) 0} anupuon| “pajaipasd uey) swied Anfu jeuossad Jaybiy o) anp abueys asueueA [(550°0) (zz0'0) 98y°0 8050 |00YyoS) SS90y
ERITVETS
yleaH a4} yum suoissnosip Buiobuo ale asay) - sjuawase|d 1sod ybiy
10} Aed o} Aluoyiny ayy jo Aiqel| auy Buipsebal uonnjosal aanbai ysiym
sauanb Jo Jaquinu y “puewap Jo Ajjigejaipaldun pue syuswaoe)d
1502 yBiy Joy |enuajod ay) pue 321AISS 3Y) JO SINJEU J|IE[OA 3Y)
"MB3IA3I 0} aNUNRUOD 0} anp Quoyine ay} 0} )su Jo eale ue ale suawadeld Auno) Jo INO{960°0 682°0 Sv./ oSt/ S3IAI3S UOISN|OU|
uoyeanp3 Buinuuo)
"M8iAB) 0} anunuop "saauelen Jouin|(600°0) 5000 cl0'L 290°L 2 6171 ‘Aiepuodsag
uoneonpg SIesA
"M3IAB] 0} 3NURUOD ‘SeouBleA JOUINI(200'0)  |(+00'0)  |¥98°0 898°0 Aue3 g Arewud
YInoA g uojieanpy
(w3) (wz) (w3z) (w3)
paiinbay uopoy asueLEA Iofel Jo asnen ww_”w_.““" ajueUeA v.“:gg Wn_ NMMH“M RIINETS

ZXipuaddy

AIVWIAINS - 21 HLNOW

Page 129



S32IN0SdY

(g8oL0) [lezr0) [sepy veoy % aydoad ejoL
"wgpO 03 JO SadueLeA
puadsiano Joulw ale alayl (WEZL'03) Jo spuadsispun S2J0pUOM
“Aluo Jeak-ul ase spuadsiapun 32JoppoAA “1eak xau|Aeiodwa) Aq 1osyo Buiag si Sy "WEL0'03 JO JIBJHOYS B UM paAdlyoe
Iny Ul panaiyoe aq o) paloadxe ale saloualoyle ayl |Alleued Buleq se papodes Buisq s) Aousioye 196png 91/510Z v|[(zg0'0)  |(960°0)  |S9z'2 19€°C @oueuld ajesodiod
(WZ10°03) Jo seoueueA puadsiapun Jouiw ale asay] (wssL 03)
10 spuadsiapun aolopom Aq josyo Ajeiped Bulaq ase spusdsiano
9sayl "WQZ0'03 4O 21emMYoS pue WeEEQ'03 Jo ddiAeS Buplegsig 9
*Ajuo Jeak-u) ase spuadsiapun 32JOPUOAA "JBIA 1XaU[2Ins0]0SI Y} UC puadsIaAD UB S! 213U} SiUl 0} uolippe Ul ‘sjqeasiyoe
in} Ul paAsiyoe aq 0) pajoadxe ase sapusYe ay] [jou se pspodas Buleq si wgQL 03 Jo Aousoye 186png 91/510Z v[(920°0) {(e€00) 0egee £92'¢ aosydH
saosnosay ' ajdoay
0000 000°0 LEEV8 LEEVS sjooyag jejoL
“Malaa1 0} anuuo) ‘aoueleA ON|000°0 0000 1E6°C 1€6'¢ $30IAJAG Uoisn{oy|
uoneonp3g Buinunuo)
“M8lAB1 0} snuuoy ‘3JuelieA ON|000°0 0000 £88°6€ £88'GE ? 611 ‘Aiepuodag
. uonEONP SIES A
"M3IA31 0} anUUoD ‘@duelieA ON|000°0 0000 LLSvY LISV Aue3 g Aewud
s|ooyss
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
L1 Quo wnung jabpng
paimnbay uonoy asueuep Joley Jo asned soueen asueuep pejosfoig pesiaoy ELITVETS

Z Xipusddy

AYVNWNS - 21 HINOW

Page 130



9LL°0 v.0°0 S8.°8 LL'g BIURUIIAOY |B30L
‘Jua.IN2a1 aq 0} pajoadxa Jou SI puadsionQ ‘saouelUEA JOUIN (81070 ($€0°0) 269t 9zZLY 191
juawsabeuepy
‘JuaLINdal 9q 0) pajoadxa jou s| puadsianQ ‘sasueuep JOUIN|0LO0 0100 6810 G/10 splooay
"JuaLINoas aq 0} Pajoadxa jou S| puadsiapun saoueueA Jouln [(960°0) (820°0) 1120 6€2°0 yoddng ssauisng
-Jeak
1Xau [N} Ul paAaiyoe aq 0} pajoadxa sI Aoualdiys (W00 03) Jo puadsiapun Jouiw B pue g1/GL0Z UIYIM WwaL L 0F
8y ‘Jualindal aq o} payoadxe Jou si puadsianQ|jo Aousioyle Ue JO JUSWSARIYOE-UOU 3yl 0} anp SI puadsieno SIUL|GLL 0 SLLO €520 8€L0 JUsWIAIN20IH
JuaLIndal 3 0} pajoadxa Jou si puadsiapun ‘saoueneA JOUIN|(900°0)  |(900°0)  |0LP 0 9L¥'0 UpNY ewsu|
*S9OUBLIBA JOUIW 0} anp SI (WZE0'03)
Jeak|jo puadsispun uy 196png GLAZLOZ SYl ulyum paalbe sem yolym
IXau ||n} Ul paAsiyde aq o) paroadxa si Aousioye au] [wQ) ) 03 Jo Aocusioyse ue Bumalyoe ul Aejep e anp Si puadsiano ay1|zZ80 0 8070 G86°L 106°1 $3921ABG njeIJoWSqg
‘WLE0 03 JO S8oueLeA JoUlW 3B 31y ] “sabieyd sa9) yoless
(¥9717) Jeisibay sabiey) pue [e207 JO Spunjal Joj ssjuedwod yaleas
jeuosiad woyy swieP ypm Bueap ul paunoul SISCO 0) UOHNQUIUOD
‘JuaINdal aq 0} pajdadxa Jou si puadsiapun [e se (WzZe0'03) 10 PapIEmME USSG SBY JUBWLIBAOD YSISA\ wodj Juelb v|(/+0°0) (190°0) 6750 0L90 s301M3g [efan
BIUBUIBAOD
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
11 QiuolN wnpno 18bpng
paiainbay uonoy asueueA Jofep Jo asned eouelEn osueUeA peyoafoid BOSIAGY ELITVETS

Z xipuaddy

AYVWNNS - 2L HLNOW

Page 131



abueyn

(egz0) [(6810) [v2Z¥'6 £19'6 feuonesiuebig [e10L
(ws60°03) Jo
s|eaw [00Y2s Ul 3xeidn pasealdul woly 1a6ie) SWodul SACHR pue JOAD
"M3IABI 0] SNUNRUOD pajedionue awooul |euonippe pue suoisiaoid Jo Buuojiuow |nyased|(912°0) (560°0) 65S°L ¥59°L S30|AIBG Saljioe
"M3IARJ 0] aNUPUCD ‘aouenep oN|000°0 0000 0000 000°0 saoinag bunsauibug
-Jeal |eroueul) JUSLIND 3y} Ul SaA1asal Ul sa9) ubisaq
10 40Z1°03 dn uanib sey aoinies ayy Buibieyo
93} JO poyiaw mau e uj Bulnsal ‘ainjonisal
B 0} }03([gns si 89|AJ3s 3y} 0S|y "3jqeabieyd
UOU 3JE YOIYM PBUOISSILLLIOD USS( SABY SHIOM * Buipuny aaeusaye ybnoy)
Aljiqises; a1ow se |leploys e aq Ajiejusiod |im a1ayy| 1ow uaaq sey 2910 Aend) SYBUUOYD) JO uchowap 8yl o) Buneyas s)sod
183 1XaU Janamoy ‘uoneloadxe awoou; papaoxa| pajoalold Jo (wz 0'03) "Paynuapl usag aaey Jabie) awooul parabpng Aoue)nsuo)
aney ubisaq pue asueuajulely JeaA [ejoueuly Sy | ay) JaA0 sa3) soueuajulely pue ubisaq jeuonippe Jo (wsy0°03) ({001 °0) (Z1vo) rAN A 6292 g ubisaq Apadoid
‘Maiaal 0} snujuedy "SWOJUI [ejual 8jelsa [elisnpul ul jlejuoys WOEo'3{e0'0 0€00 (€84°0) (€18°0) Sajejs3 g uohenep
"MBIABJ 0} anuluo) ‘SsduelieA 10UIN|S00°0 5000 €200 8100 sjessy Aunwwo)
(wg/0°03) Jo sBuines 1soo sanddns
‘malnal o) anunuon | sasiwaid Agq 1esyo ainssaid awooul uu B3] apIseag WOL0'03{(800°0) (500°0) /10 [44'h 4 S32IAG 3INSI9
"MBIABI 0} 3anuuUa) “aouepeA oN|(100°0) 0000 9920 9920 S8AIYoLY Aluno)
*M3IA3J 0} aNUNUOD ‘goueueA ON|Z00°0 0000 +90°0 #90°0 9OIAIDG SWINISNN
*/1/9102 Buunp pajuawaldu
aq (M YoIym SIBJSUB} | YO YIM PajeIdosse S)S0D Jjo SjuaAg
-3u0 Jo yoadsal ul weyQ' 03 plemioy Aed 0} isenbay B 3IN)NY ‘SUyY
“Malasl 0} enujuo) “SaouUBUBA JOUIN|L00°0 (£00°0) 992°L €Ll '3 Saljesqri algnd
abueys jeuopesiuebio
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
T 1L tauon wnyng | 39bpng
paimnbay uonoy asueue Jofey jo asne) eouelen oouUBLBA pejoafoid pesinay LTV ETS

Z xipusddy

AYVNNNS - 21 HLNOW

Page 132



(gsi0)  [(zzi'0) |s962 180°¢ SaANN2ax3 JAID (B10)
‘wov0°03 j0
S8OUBLIEA PUSSIBAQ JOUIW 3JB 313U "S}USLUIAIoUI paje|ss soueultopad
10y pasnbai 196png a8yy o) bBugels (wgp('03) Jo pusdsispun
‘Aluo Jeak-ui sqlue s) asay] (wgzo'03) jJo suswsaiby Buipung 210D ul uononpal

0] payoadxa ase (Wwge0 03) Jo sbunes askojdws ayj (e osie pue (wWzen 03F) Jo sbulaes aoiopiom 0) anp s puadsiapun ay |(861°0) (zz10) G962 180°€ SaAIIN23XT JSIUD

S3ANNIDXT JaIYD

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
11 Yiuol wnpnQ 18bpng
pasinbay uopoy asueueA Jofel Jo asned soueLEA aJueleA perefoid posiney ELITVETS

Z xipusddy

AYVWANNS - 2L HLNOW

Page 133



(ris'1)  |(zLe'L)  |s80'0Se 1SY°1ST V101

aosueul4 ajesodio)

(8g0't)  [(o01'L) [e86'LT ¥60'€T %9 [enua) |ejoL
"MOIARI Japun daad ‘Wz 10°03 JO SSOUBLBA JOUIN
‘a)Is YouoApues - py] S|ednng Jowuoy
‘maiAaL Japun daayj|o) uonejas ul woge 03 4O SIS0 pajebpnqun ‘pajwl swy / Yo suQ
"(w2v003) J0 9L/SL
*MBIAB 0} @NURUOD|UI SUOISSIWS Paonpal jO JNSal B SB S8JUBMOjlY UogJe) paosnpay
(wz¥0°03)
sabieyn ueg slelodioo 0) uonel ul Jeak ayy jo sispenb sauy)
uo abieys ou panladay "adO NPNY SISIBA UM MBIABL Japun SI SIy}
‘malnal Japun daa)jt (Wwee0 03) 1°96png ueyy Jamoj aq o) psjedidiue ale s394 JIpny |euwsalx3
"(wi61°03)
‘BuLLIND3J-UOU S BWODUI SIU | [J9A8|IUN 10} MBIABY 1UaY JO JNSal B se awodul pajosfoid uey) JaybiHy
“(37) pung Buian
-ssa004d 196pNnq /£ 1/910Z 10 Ued se passalppy |luspuadapu| ay} o} uoneal ul (WQOE 03) SaIouaIdIs paliuspl Yo sup
Jeah u|
‘ssao0ud 126png /1/9102 J0 Wed se passalppy|ajgeAalydeun passapisuod WOQE 03 JO Aousioiy] 92J0I0AN pajewils]
‘M3IAR) 0] aNUUOD "WRZO 03 Jo puadsiano 91/G510z pajoaloid sisuoi0)
‘M3IABJ Japun daay| ‘WES1 03 punj uoisuad o) uoiNgUIUoI Jo AuaA02al-1apun pajaafold
‘suonnNquUuo?
jeuoippe jJo sisod  psjediojue ueyy Jemol 0} enp (wgzle'03)
‘suond@ Buroueul{ ajeiodion |malnay |euenjoy uoisuad (weszl'03) Jeak juaund pue (WOyzZ 03)
‘ABaje.lg aouBUI4 WD} WNIP3 Jo Led se pamainay|leak snonaid WOy UONelju] pJepuels UON pasnun jo sodueleg
"186pnq ay) ol Jjing S1S0 Jsaisiul woly sbulaes wis) woys ul Buynsal
‘pauueld uey} Jaje; st aunppuadxa jeuded se ‘Jeak |elouBUY SILY) MOLIOG
0} Paau ou S| 18y} JSABMOH W09 03 Aj9lewixoidde Jo saousdye

Ul uoponpal e 0} sajenba siy} suondwnsse |eulbuo ||e uo paseg °19s aoueuld

uomsod siyi pateBiiuw sey viND 40 Mainay|sem 196png ay) saye pabueyo Junowe Juswayes ay| - Buueuld wyH|(880°)) (901}  [886°LE ¥60°€Z 8jel0dio 3 [eAUs)

aoueul

ajesodio) g [ejuUa)

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
LI Yiuo wnyno 1abpng
pasnbay uopoy asueLeA Jofey jo asned ST aJueueA peyoafoid DesIAGH ERITNET

Z Xipusddy

AYVYWWINS - ¢l HINOW

Page 134



2015/16 Efficiencies Month 12 - Under or Over Achieved

Portfolio

People & Resources

Review of specialist finance functions to identify efficiencies in process
Ensure continuation of grant maximisation opportunities identified in
201415

Review of specialist human resources functions to identify efficiencies in
process

Appendix 3

Total People & Resources

Governance
Procurement Supplier Charging

Central and Corporate Finance
Workforce efficiency proposal
Central Loans and Investment Review

Total Central & Corporate Finance

Social Services
Develop means testing approach for minor adaptations
Review model/costs contracts for catering

Rationalise the number of sites where In-House short term care is
provided

Develop a ‘progression’ model for Supported Living
Review commissioning with Action for Children
Regional approach to advocacy

Review and realign funding to voluntary sector

Total Social Services

Community & Enterprise

Close the personal answering service for main switchboard telephone
Welfare Rights Team Review

Community Centres

Community Based Accommodation Support Service
Telecare Charging

Stopping sending remittance advices to Landlords
In-house bailiff service

Removal of Post Office as payment option

Review Single Person Discount

Senior Management Restructure

Total Community & Enterprise

Streetscene & Transportation

Introduce non-generic Streetscene roles (3 year plan)

Rationalise HRC Sites

Removing the Waste Containers delivery service

Introduce Charge for 2nd Garden Waste Bin

Develop Energy Production at Landfili

Cease real time information system at bus stops

Charge Maintenance of Bus Shelters to Community & Town Councils
Remove Demand Responsive Transport & review all other subsidised roul
Externalise grass cutting service

Reduced Street Lighting resource

Remove second grass cut for highway verges

Car Parking Charges

Part night street lighting in residential areas

Winter Maintenance (Car Parks and standard)

Reduce Cleansing standards zero tolerance litter

Total Streetscene & Transportation

Planning & Environment

Staffing & Management Restructure (incl. all vacancies)
Staffing & Collaboration

Animal & Pest Control

Increased Planning Fees (15% WG increase)

Increase in number of Planning Applications

Additional elements of charging (discharge of conditions)
Total Planning & Environment

Total 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies
Total Projected 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies Underachieved
Total Projected 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies Achieved

- . . (Under)/Over
Original Efficiency Revised Efficiency Achievement
2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
£(m) £(m) £(m)
0.170 0.166 (0.004)
0.100 0.081 (0.019)
0.105 0.000 (0.105)
0.375 0.247 (0.128)
0.116 0.000 (0.116)
0.116 0.000 (0.116)
0.300 0.000 (0.300)
1.830 1.230 (0.600)
2.130 1.230 (0.900)
0.100 0.000 (0.100)
0.050 0.000 (0.050)
0.075 0.110 0.035
0.250 0.145 (0.105)
0.075 0.015 (0.060)
0.053 0.000 (0.053)
0.203 0.065 (0.138)
0.806 0.335 (0.471)
0.099 0.125 0.026
0.020 0.035 0.015
0.048 0.096 0.048
0.030 0.090 0.060
0.200 0.139 (0.061)
0.054 0.013 (0.041)
0.100 0.070 (0.030)
0.028 0.017 (0.011)
0.150 0.270 0.120
0.100 0.074 (0.026)
0.829 0.929 0.100
0.080 0.115 0.035
0.400 0.240 (0.160)
0.150 0.100 (0.050)
0.050 0.025 (0.025)
0.050 0.000 {0.050)
0.020 0.025 0.005
0.005 0.000 (0.005)
0.075 0.050 (0.025)
0.075 0.025 (0.050)
0.050 0.038 (0.013)
0.030 0.025 (0.005)
0.400 0.290 (0.110)
0.020 0.030 0.010
0.150 0.170 0.020
0.150 0.060 (0.090)
1.705 1.193 (0.513)
0.295 0.207 (0.088)
0.024 0.040 0.016
0.030 0.007 (0.023)
0.135 0.050 (0.085)
0.060 0.030 (0.030)
0.050 0.025 (0.025)
0.594 0.359 (0.235)
% £
100 12.874
18 2.262
82 10.612

Page 135



Page 136



APPENDIX 4

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2015

Less - Base Level

Total Reserves above base level available for
delegation to Cabinet

Less - Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve for the costs of the speed limit review

Less - Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve for the contribution to meet the
estimated increase in levy required to meet
past and future claim liabilities in relation to
the former Municipal Mutual I[nsurance
company

Less - Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve to meet the resource requirements
for specialist social work for child protection
Less - Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve to renew invest to save finds to
support organisational change

Plus projected underspend as at Month 12

Total projected Contingency Reserve as at
315t March 2016

Page 137

£m

10.515

(5.769)

£m

4.746

(0.210)

(0.800)

(0.100)

(0.750)

1.372

4.258



Page 138



‘ueid

ssauIsng YyH ay) ul sanuoud
au) Jo auo s1 syt ‘Bunpayos

qor jo uonejusiua|du

*S8I0USIDIYS JOUIW JBY)o 0} sajeas (wogo 03) buluiewsas ay],

‘sseak snowald yym aul w (wZ | 1'03) Aq puadsiapun o] }as aie sabieyosay
‘WGS90 03 AQ pasealoul Sey aAIasay SOUBINSU|

"W/ Z0°03 1509 0} pajoaloid si wyH Joj Juawdinba Bupjiom ajiby
‘puadsiapun

(wpzZL'03) e pasieal Sey SaolAes pue sjuswpedap SSCIOE SBUE|ES JO uonNquIsIpay

yoddng

ay) puny 0} /1/910Z 0} 'S80US.BJU0D puB ADUB)INSUOD O} Saje|al puadsiapun pajoafoid ey Jo (WEZ0 03)
pJemioj palued aq |Im WyyZ 03 "puadsiapun (WgEQ 03)

40 uoyeoojie Jo6png 91/51.02 Vv B S9SE8jaJ 99IMSS UBWApURH ay) Buuaaljap 104 uchoalord ay) Jo |eroway|(712°0) {(ovz'0) 1812 lzv'e poddng » aoueuld
*S3OUBLIBA JOUIW 0)
sejejal wglLo 03 Bulnewsl ay] sabieydals awooul paAsIydeUN 0) Salefd) Wi .0'03
*S1S00 }93)) pue Hodsuel) uo ainssaid e 0} saleRs Wey0 03
‘puadsiapun siy} 0) paynquiuod sey Buuoyuow Jnyased pue seaA ise| o) bunejas
aJseys Woud weEzo 03 ‘sleuslew o} sajejas puadsiapun pajoafoid au) Jo (w/80°03)
"aeos jo doj ayy je Bunabpnq pue sajuedea

ieak-ul Jo )Nsal e se saue|es 0} sajejas puadsiapun pajosfoid sy Jo (wyze 03)|(GLE0) (922°0) 8L1'8 ¥6€'8 aoueusjuiep g slieday
"Sa[0UaI01j@ JOUTW Jay)0 0} SajeRJ (WZ L0 03) Bululewal sy
'S90|AJ9S UapIES) U0 ainjipuadxa [BUOpPE O} S3jejR) WOED 03
‘puads |ENJoB SA PaIBA0D3I UG SBY JEUM UO
paseq wgL0'03 Aq asu 0) pajoadxa aie snidins JBJEm 3y} L)m pa)eIsoSSE SJS02 8y |
‘g Jauenb u uonoasfoid saied
ue o} pasedwiod pua Jeak je se Jgap pabe jo unyno |euy sy} uo paseq 3Wodu|

Juay Joj uoisiroid Jgap peq pajdadxa ay) Ul Juawsnipe ue o) sejelRl (WesZ 03)[(022°0) (czz0) (009°62) (£2£°62) aLwoou| juay
‘S3OUBLIEA JOUIW JBUJO O} sajejal wg L0 03 Bululewss ay|
(w/10°03) Jo Bunes e pajngquiuod Sey awayds SAjUdIU| SJUBUd |
*58010AUI JO JuawAed uou 0} anp wELO 03 Jo ainssaid e ajeald sxyiom ajqesbieyssy
(wgso°03) Jo puadsiapun ue panguuod aaey sabieyd 0Ji) pue s)sod UnNoH
*s)s00 Bunuud uo puadsispun ue o} sajefal (WwzL0'03)

'$}$00 AJB|es uo puadssapun ue o} sajejas (w/g0'03)|(S01L°0) (€LL0) 126°L PEQ'L juawabeuey sjeis

(w3) (w3) (w3) {w3)
asnbay uo 8JUBLIBA JO asne SMwo 2 asueye wnuno 19Bpng CLITVES
pasnbay uofjoy HBA § bo) muﬂ_u_“_.; eA pajosfoid pasiaey |AJog

§xipusddy

Z1 poliad - Hoday asueleA Jolew vaH

Page 139



{c60°0) (£60°0) Lo $£2'0 1[eol
‘pasijeuy ale sjuswabueue Buipuny aduo abueyd Aew asuejeq sy
‘pud JeaA Je pajoadxa sabieyoas Bupueul4 [elided paosnpal sy} o) salel (w81 03)
‘sabieyo s)saisjul
Alessaoauun spioAe pue syjuow z| 1oy Bumouioq sAeep Aem siyy sisod Buipung
"Julj4 Ul S8)iS SET PUB SHIEAA BUj) JOJ SISOD LONIOWSP SPJEemO) 8lNqUIU0D (IM SIYL (a1eb2.668€)
"ain)ipuadxe [e)ides spJemo) pajnqLIuoo aodue|jeq |BUORIPPE au} 0) saleld) W 1/'03]|025°0 25’0 86291 v.2°9l S8ouBlEA JBUI0
"Apisgns Buisnoy o) Buneje. usunsnipe ypne jsod e o} sejeja) wzzl 03|22l 0 Z2cl0 445\ 0000 Apisans vyH
'5)502 Jeak (|ny Jo 1dieoal uo (wgpQ 0F) Ag pasnpal sey auiy djoIusA
*40M 10}0BNU0D ybBnoiy)
w0 03 Jo anssaid Jeak-ul ue Ul pajNsal SeY S}SOD ESIE [BUNWILLOD JO MBIASI Y
*S]S02 J0JOBIUOD
13MO| pue sajueoeA Yels o} anp (W90 03) Aq Juadsiapun aaey sabiey) uapies
1509 pajoadxaun
ue sem Yoiym wge0 03 0 JUnowe ay} ul abieyo B panlaoal aney pun4 |IDUNOD Wwolj
vHH 341 ojul Jybnoiq sanuad AJunwwos ay) 104 s3sod Ain pue sabieyo Buiues|nlelLL 0 6LL°0 1L00°L 2880 $S30I1A18S plojpuen
(w3) (w3) (wz) (w3)
tuow wnyno 1ebpng
paiinbay uopay asuelBA JO asne) Jse CLITETT-T Y ELITVETS
souBpEA pajosfoid pasiasy

§ Xipusddy

Z1 polad - Hodey eoUBLEA JOleNy ViIH

Page 140



Appendix 6

CARRY FORWARD REQUESTS 2015/16
GOVERNANCE

ICT — Education ICT - to contribute to the funding of enhanced communication links commitment given
to schools (£0.003m) (in addition to the amount agreed in the month 10 report)

ICT = Public Sector Broadband Aggregation — To safeguard against the risk of historic infrastructure
costs (£0.220m)

ICT - Investment Costs - Balance remaining from Business Plan investment requirements to fund
organisational change in 2016/17 (£0.227m)

Democratic Services — to fund the final instalment for the translation of the Council’s Constitution
(£0.008m)

Democratic Services —in relation to improvements to Members ICT systems (£0.032m)

ICT — Capita One - this is a regionally funded service whereby any balance {which forms part of the
regional service delivery) is required to be retained by the project (£0.090m)

ICT — Digital Print — to fund specialist IT technical expertise to implement additional self-service
modules and migration form design (£0.003m)

ICT - Communication lines - for new lines to be installed to reduce the cost of calls (£0.010m)

ICT - Public Sector Broadband Aggregation — due to implementation delays linked with the
introduction of Learning in Digital Wales (LiDW) project (£0.310m)

COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE

Council Fund Housing — delays caused by negotiation of costs will mean the purchase of alarms will
be made in 2016/17 (£0.025m)

Housing Programmes - in respect of ongoing works at Travellers sites which will continue into 2016/17
(£0.027m)

ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE

Public Libraries & Arts, Culture & Events — to contribute to one off costs associated with Community
Asset Transfers (CAT) which will be implemented during 2016/17 (£0.043m)

STREETSCENE & TRANSPORTATION

School Transport - in addition to the £0.040m approved in the month 10 report (£0.090m)

Local Transport Grant - for carriageway improvement works which have taken place in April 2016
(£0.020m)

Page 141



Appendix 6

Street works — to fund any further expenses the Authority may incur relating to a historic claim
(£0.010m)

SOCIAL SERVICES

Social Services — to support the provision for Social Enterprise initiatives across the portfolio
(£0.069m)

Page 142



Agenda Iltem 8

Sir y Fflint
"E!Emg!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 21 June 2016
Report Subject Business Rates - Write Off above £25,000
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management
Report Author Chief Officer (Community & Enterprise)
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Financial Procedure Rules (section 5.2) requires debts in excess of £25,000
considered for write off are referred to Cabinet for approval.

In the case of a commercial organisation known as White Self Storage Ltd, there is
a requirement for Cabinet to approve the write off of a business rate debt
amounting to £38,146 on the basis that the company is no longer trading, has no
assets and has been struck off the register at Companies House.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Approve the write off of the business rate debt, amounting to £38,146.39

Page 143



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE BUSINESS RATES - WRITE OFF ABOVE £25,000

1.01

White Self Storage Ltd owned and managed a number of commercial
storage units at Glendale Avenue, Sandycroft from 2012 to 2015, although
the business rates assessment was designated as a single rating
assessment, encompassing all individual storage units, and based on a
rateable value of £36,250. Their business model centred on the
commercial letting of steel storage containers to individuals and
companies for storage/lock-up purposes.

1.02

The company had a track record of not engaging with the business rates
section and the Council needed to take action through the Magistrates
Court on two occasions in an attempt to secure payment of unpaid
business rates.

1.03

The Directors of White Storage failed to make any attempts to pay and
external debt enforcement agents/bailiffs were engaged to enforce
payment of the court orders

1.04

All attempts to secure payment proved unsuccessful and there were no
assets or goods to take control of belonging to White Self Storage, since
the business operating model was only providing storage facilities to third
parties.

1.05

White Self Storage also operated across other local authority areas, and in
view of ongoing difficulties in securing payment, officers also co-ordinated
efforts on a regional basis to explore options, including ‘winding up’ the
company in an final bid to secure full payment.

1.06

In 2015, the Directors of White Storage Ltd, made a proposal to remove
the company from the register at Companies House, although the Council
objected to the proposals until such time as the business rates were paid
in full.

1.07

Measures to ‘wind-up’ the company were considered throughout the
recovery process, but in view of the costs involved in applying to ‘wind up’
the company, together with the minimal prospect of successfully
recovering business rates, it was not considered to be a realistic way
forward.

1.08

The Council continued to follow up enquiries with the Investigations Team
at Companies House but on the 9t February 2016, despite the Councils
previous objections, the company was finally wound up and ceased
trading.

1.09

There is now no prospect of recovering the £38,146.39 unpaid business
rates since the company has already been removed from the Companies
House Register and is no longer operating from the Glendale Avenue
premises under the name of White Self Storage Ltd.

Page 144




2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | There are no direct financial implications for the Council or local taxpayers
as business rates which are collected (or not collected) are borne by the
National Collection Pool for Wales. As the Collection Pool is supported by
Welsh Government, non-payment of rates does though have a wider
impact on the Welsh taxpayer.

2.02 | Writing off this debt, amounting to losses of £38,146.39 is being
recommended as a last resort and only on the basis that there is no
prospect of successfully recovering this debt.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | All Write offs must be approved by the Corporate Finance Manager, but in
the case of write offs over £25,000, Cabinet must be consulted before a
decision is taken to write off debts.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | For those that fail to pay, recovery action is always taken to secure
payment. Measures include the use of enforcement agents/bailiffs to take
control of goods, and on occasion, steps are taken to ‘wind-up’ companies
who fail to pay.

4.02 | On some occasions, the cost of taking action such as ‘winding-up’ a
company in the High Court is not appropriate on the grounds of the cost to
the public purse, especially when there is little prospect of recovering the
outstanding debt.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | None.

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Financial Procedure Rules (section 5.2)

Contact Officer: David Barnes, Revenues Manager
Telephone: 01352 703652
E-mail: david.barnes@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 145



mailto:david.barnes@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Business Rates: is a property based local tax on businesses calculated
on the rateable value of the property. Although the rate of tax is set by
Welsh Government, rates are administered and collected locally and paid
into a national collection pool.

National Collection pool for Wales: All Business Rates are collected and
paid into the Welsh Government's Non-Domestic Rates Pool. They are
then redistributed to local authorities as part of the local government
revenue settlement grant each year.

Companies House: is the United Kingdom registrar of companies and is
an executive agency and trading fund of Her Majesty's Government. It falls
under the remit of the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills
(BIS).

Debt Enforcement Agents/Bailiffs: are sometimes used as a further debt
enforcement option in order to collect outstanding Business Rates by
either collecting payment in full or taking control of goods to be offset
against the debt.

Company “winding up” is a legal process taken submitted by the party or
parties to liquidate a company. This may be done by the directors of the
company or a third party such as a creditor who is owed money by the
company.

Page 146




Agenda Item 9

Sir y Fflint
"!i!i.ra!o%!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 218t June, 2016
Report Subject Recommendations from the School Transport Task &
Finish Group
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Education
Report Author Member Engagement Manager
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A decision was made by the Education & Youth Overview & Scrutiny Committee
on the 17t September, 2015 to establish a School Transport Task & Finish Group.

The Group has met on three separate occasions to consider the outcome of the
diagnostic work carried out to identify savings within the Integrated Transport Unit
(ITU).

This report sets out the recommendations of the Group, for consideration by
Cabinet if approval is given for areas of discretionary transport provision to be
considered for further policy development work in the future.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That if approval is given for areas of discretionary transport provision to be
considered for further policy change in the future, Cabinet agrees to
support the recommendations of the School Transport Task & Finish
Group.

Page 147



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE WORK OF THE TASK & FINISH GROUP

1.01

The School Transport Task & Finish Group was established in September
2015. The Membership of the group is as follows:-

Clir Paul Cunningham
Clir Peter Curtis

Clir Andy Dunbobbin
Clir Nancy Matthews
Clir Carolyn Thomas
Mr David Hytch

Mrs Rebecca Stark
Mr Bernard Stuart

1.02

Meetings of the Task & Finish Group were also attended by lan Budd,
Chief Officer (Education & Youth), Katie Wilby, Transportation & Logistics
Manager and Gill Yates, Pupil Support Service Manager who provided
specialist advice.

1.03

Following Cabinet approval in May 2015, it was agreed that an ITU should
be established for the Authority to ensure an integrated approach to
service delivery and operational management. Budget management and
eligibility assessment for mainstream home to school transport has also
transferred to the ITU within the Streetscene and Transportation portfolio.
Policy setting for school transport has remained within the Education &
Youth portfolio.

1.04

In May, 2015, Cabinet also approved the engagement of a suitably
qualified business partner (JMP Consultants) to assist with the
assessment and delivery of the financial benefit that will be derived from
the ITU. This has resulted in a diagnostic review of all transport operations
across the Authority in order to identify any savings opportunities and
efficiencies within the current operating arrangements.

1.05

JMP consultants have identified the following areas of discretionary
education transport policies as ones that could be considered for further
policy development work and consideration by the Local Authority:

e Denominational School Transport
- Removal of free transport
- Charge a nominal fee
e Concessionary Spare Seats
- Increase the fee for spare seats
- Withdraw concessionary spare seats
e Post-16 Transport
- Removal of free transport
- Charge a nominal fee
¢ Remove Benefits Entitlement
¢ Investigate aligning school times
- (cost-benefit analysis required)

Page 148




1.07

At its meeting held on the 14" March, 2016, the Task & Finish Group
considered the breakdown of information for each policy change option as
identified as part of the Integrated Transport Unit Diagnostic review.

1.08

Following a detailed presentation, the Task & Finish Group recommended
that in considering any policy changes, Cabinet should:-

e Carefully consider the business cases and implementation plans for
any change;

¢ Undertake equality impact assessment in relation to any proposed
policy change at an early point in the process;

e Consider/mitigate the impact of any charges on families with more
than one child;

e Consider the impact of any changes on low income families; and

e Promote independence for learners (travel training) and alternatives
(where appropriate) to individualised transport provision.

1.09

The Education & Youth Overview & Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on
281 April, 2016 considered the recommendations of the Task & Finish
Group. The Committee resolved to support that the recommendations of
the Group be presented to Cabinet with the addition of the following two
recommendations:-

e That Cabinet consider the impact any policy changes would have
on the existing school network; and

e That if Cabinet agree to take forward any of the proposed policy
changes, the Committee be consulted on the changes with all
necessary information.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

The savings identified within the diagnostic review could only be made
through policy change. The Cabinet has no current plans to authorise
consultation and implementation of changes to entitlement policies.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

Statutory consultations and notifications would need to be undertaken prior
to adoption of any changes in policy entittements. Statutory consultations
on policy change options would have to be considered and authorised by
the Council's Cabinet. The Council’s Cabinet has no current plans to
authorise consultation.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

An equalities impact assessment will be required for any approved policy
changes.

Page 149




5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 None.

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None.

Contact Officer: Ceri Shotton

Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator
Telephone: 01352 702305
E-mail: ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Denominational School Transport — is transport where a child attends a
specific school for denominational reasons.

7.02 | Concessionary Spare Seats — where spare seats are available on a
school bus, these can be sold to pupils who are not entitled to free
transport.

7.03 | Post-16 Transport — transport for post-16 students to a place of education
or training.

7.04 | Benefits Entitlement — free transport for people who are in receipt of

benefits who reside in Flintshire.

Page 150



mailto:ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk

Agenda Item 10

Sir y Fflint
"E!Emg!z.ire

CABINET

Date of Meeting

Tuesday, 21 June 2016

Report Subject

Public Rights of Way Maintenance Standards

Cabinet Member

Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment

Report Author Chief Officer (Planning and Environment)
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report sets out the standards of maintenance that Flintshire County Council
should apply to public footpaths and bridleways throughout the Council in
accordance with its statutory duties under the Highways Act 1980 and relevant

case law.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 For the Cabinet to endorse the County Council’s approach to the
maintenance of Flintshire’s public footpaths and public bridleways (public

paths).

Page 151



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE ISSUES

1.01

All public paths are highways, nearly all of which are maintainable at the
public expense (the only exception being ones that have come into
existence since 1959 from long usage and there appears to be only one
example in Flintshire).

1.02

Under section 41 of the Highways Act 1980 (the 1980 Act), it is the duty of
the County Council, as Highway Authority, to maintain all highways that
are maintainable at the public expense. There is no further guidance in the
1980 Act as to what constitutes maintenance, though the 19t century case
of R v High Halden provides some clarification. It held that the state of
repair must ensure that the highway is ‘reasonably passable for the
ordinary traffic of the neighbourhood at all seasons of the year.’

1.03

In circular 5/93 concerning public rights of way, the Government confirms
that is impractical to recommend standards of maintenance, but advises
that the main consideration in determining the level of maintenance for
public rights of way is that ‘[paths or ways] should serve the purpose for
which they are primarily used...’

1.04

The level of maintenance will therefore depend on the circumstances, one
relevant factor being the type of traffic that uses the particular path. A
public footpath, for example, is maintainable to a standard suitable for
pedestrians, whereas a public bridleway is maintainable to a standard
suitable for pedestrians and equestrians.

1.05

Many public paths throughout the County are also used by motorised
vehicles, usually by those exercising private rights to gain access to
properties along such paths.

1.06

In recent years the County Council has received a growing number of
complaints about the condition of public paths from residents using them in
a vehicle. When they have been subsequently inspected they were almost
invariably considered to be in a suitable condition for members of the
public who would be exercising a public right over them. In other words,
the County Council had fulfilled its statutory requirements in relation to
them.

1.07

Remedies are available to anyone who alleges that a way that is
maintainable at the public expense is out of repair through the service of a
notice on the Highway Authority, under the provisions of section 56 of the
1980 Act. This could be determined by the Magistrates’ Court, which may
require the Highway Authority to put the way into proper repair.

1.08

However, the Court would have to be satisfied that the way was out of
repair for the public who were entitled to exercise rights over it. If it was a
public footpath it would be not considered to be out of repair if it was

passable by pedestrians even if vehjcles might have difficulty in using it.
Page 152




1.09 | Whilst the level of maintenance of public paths might not be sufficient to
satisfy residents exercising private rights over such ways, those residents
might be liable themselves to maintain them to a standard suitable for
vehicles. Indeed, there are examples of footpaths and bridleways
throughout the County that have been surfaced by residents so that they
can be used as a vehicular access to their properties.

1.10 | Although the County Council might have maintained some public paths to
standards suitable for vehicles in the past, there has never been a legal
requirement to do so. A clear and consistent approach would leave the
public in no doubt as to the standards of maintenance they should expect.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | This approach will ensure that resources are deployed more effectively in
that the Council will carry out maintenance to a standard that it is
statutorily obliged to do.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | The Local Access Forum has been consulted and has endorsed this
approach.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 No identifiable risk.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | None.

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Contact Officer: Stephen Bartley Senior Rights of Way Officer
Telephone: 01352 704622
E-mail: steve.bartley@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Public footpath - a highway over which the public have a right of way on

foot.

Public bridleway - a highway over which the public have a right of way on

Page 153



mailto:steve.bartley@flintshire.gov.uk

foot and on horseback. Cyclists also have the right to use bridleways.

Public path — a highway which is either a public footpath or a public
bridleway.

Page 154




Agenda Item 11

Sir y Fflint
"E!Emg!z.ire

CABINET

Date of Meeting

Tuesday, 21 June 2016

Report Subject

Public Rights of Way Priorities

Cabinet Member

Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment

Report Author Chief Officer (Planning and Environment)
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report makes recommendations for the introduction of a hierarchical approach
to rights of way maintenance; responding to complaints; and the review of the
definitive map, which should ensure that resources are deployed more cost-

effectively.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 For Cabinet to endorse a hierarchical approach to:

. processing definitive map modification and public path orders;
. public rights of way maintenance; and
. responding to complaints.

Page 155



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY PRIORITIES

1.01

Welsh Office Circular 5/93 on public rights of way recommends that the
County Council periodically publish a statement setting out how it will bring
and keep up to date the definitive map and statement. There is no further
guidance on what information this statement should contain.

1.02

Although no such statement has yet been prepared by this Council or its
predecessor surveying authority, Clwyd County Council, there is a wealth
of information on progress with the review of the definitive map contained
in the Rights of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP) published by Flintshire
County Council in October 2008.

1.03

The review of the definitive map is effected incrementally through the
making of Definitive Map Modification Orders (DMMOs). The County
Council also has important powers to divert, create, or stop up public
footpaths and bridleways.

1.04

The ROWIP identified a large backlog in many aspects of this work and
recommended that additional staff be recruited to address this, over and
above the two additional staff who were appointed in 2002 to assist in the
implementation of the Countryside & Rights of Way Act 2000. The ROWIP
also identified similar backlogs in relation to the County Council’s
responsibilities for public rights of way maintenance and the removal of
obstructions.

1.05

As one means of addressing the backlog, the ROWIP confirmed that the
County Council would conduct a review into how the various elements
involved in the management of public rights of way would operate. This
review was concluded in January 2012, and new structures are now in
place in which there is an integrated approach to public rights of way
management.

1.06

Progress with the implementation of the ROWIP is monitored by a group
comprising County Council officers and members of organisations such as
the Ramblers and the British Horse Society, which meets quarterly. The
ROWIP is due to be formally reviewed next year, but is updated on an
annual basis.

1.07

In addition to the measures outlined in paragraph Nos. 1.05 and 1.06
above, it is imperative that the Council manage its public rights of way
work in the most effective way within its existing resources, so that when
the public apply to divert a path on their land, or make a complaint about
an obstructed right of way or one that is out of repair, they are aware of
how the County Council will prioritise this work.

1.08

The hierarchy recommending the relative importance the Council should
accord each aspect of this work is set out in Appendices 1, 2 and 3 to this
report.

Page 156




1.09 | There is a sound basis for a hierarchical approach to public rights of way
management, particularly at a time of limited resources.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | The rights of way service has a revenue and capital budget to deal with
work on the public rights of way network and this report will assist in the
prioritisation and delivery of activity on Flintshire’s rights of way network.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | The Local Access Forum has been consulted and has proposed
amendments to the order and wording of some of the priorities, which have
been incorporated into the appendices to this report.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 None.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 - Definitive map modification and public path order priorities
Appendix 2 - Public Rights of Way maintenance priorities
Appendix 3 - Public Rights of Way complaints priorities

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Contact Officer: Stephen Bartley Senior Rights of Way Officer
Telephone: 01352 704622
Email: steve.bartley@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | (1) Definitive map and statement of public rights of way — the official

record of public rights of way held and kept up to date by the County
Council, as surveying authority.

(2) Definitive map modification order — an order made by the County
Council to amend the definitive map and/or the statement.

(3) Public path order — an order to create, divert or to extinguish
(permanently close) a public footpath or a public bridleway.

(4) Rights of Way Improvement Plgln_(,ROWIP) - a statutory document
Page 1o/



mailto:steve.bartley@flintshire.gov.uk

prepared by the County Council, setting out how it intends to deliver
improvements to the rights of way network.

Page 158




Appendix 1

Definitive map modification and public path order priorities

Introduction

The hierarchy setting out the relative importance the Council will attach to public path and
definitive map orders falls into seven categories, with number one the highest priority, No. 2
the second highest and so on. It was devised to rank highly those issues that were likely to
be most urgent: hence, the highest priority given to paths that are in imminent danger of being
‘lost’ through development and schemes that have been targeted for grant-aid. Also ranking
highly are those paths that have been obstructed by long-term residential development. The
footpaths may have not been open to the public for many years, but they still legally exist and
can act as a blight on any potential property sale.

More consideration will be given to ways that, once opened, will lead to wider improvements
to the rights of way by, for example, making a greater length of PROW available to the public
or by increasing accessibility for other classes of users, such as horse-riders and cyclists and
those with mobility problems.

Priority Response/Action
No.
1. Ways that are in danger of being lost through imminent

development (i.e. at the planning application stage).

2. Orders affecting ways that are targeted for external
funds, whose expenditure is time-limited and where the
proposals are achievable within that time frame.

3. Path(s) that are obstructed by housing, which require an
order or orders to resolve the situation.

4, Applications for modification orders.
5. Mapping anomalies.
6. Public path orders that are wholly or primarily in the

public’s interest.

7. Public path orders that are wholly or predominantly for
the benefit of private individuals.

Page 159



Appendix 2

Public Rights of Way maintenance priorities

Introduction

The hierarchy sets out the relative importance that the Council will accord this work, falling
into 10 broad categories. It was devised to rank highly those issues that were likely to be most
urgent. hence, the highest priority given to paths where a serious injury has occurred or is
likely to occur. Also ranking highly are those paths that are well used by the public, including
Offa’s Dyke National Trail and other well-promoted routes such as those featured in the

publication Rural Walks in Flintshire.

Priority Issue
No.

1. Health and Safety Issues.

2. Volume and degree of usage and potential usage, especially National
Trails, national and promoted footpaths and published trails, eg Clwydian
Way and the Wales Coastal Path.

3. Ways that are suitable for those who are less agile, wheelchair users and
the visually impaired.

4, Multi-use and bridleway circular routes and those identified in liaison with
the British Horse Society.

5. Walks, rides and other activities for health.

6. Link Paths off the National Trail and promoted trails.

7. Paths published by community councils, including accesses to school.

8. Circular and other routes published by Flintshire CC, including accesses

to school.

Page 160




Appendix 3

Public Rights of Way complaints priorities

Introduction

The hierarchy falls into six broad categories. It was devised to rank highly those issues that
were likely to be most urgent: hence, the highest priority given to paths where there are health
and safety implications. Also ranking highly are those paths that are multi-purpose routes and
those that have been the subject of a large volume of complaints from a variety of different
sources. Health and safety complaints will typically be investigated on the day of the complaint
and measures put in place to mitigate the problem, which might involve an emergency closure.
Ploughing and cropping complaints will be investigated within five working days of the report
to ensure compliance with the timetable set out in the Highways Act 1980.

Priority Issue
No.

1. Health and Safety implications

2. Time-dependent problems such as ploughing and cropping, hedge trimming
and tree pruning.

3. Wilful, unnecessary and determined obstructions.

4. Obstructions on routes that have been the subject of a high volume and wide
variety of complaints, including bridleway and multi user routes, the Offa’s
Dyke National Trail and other promoted routes.

5. Obstructions and problems on routes that would lead to obstruction-free,
access to all ways.

6. Obstructions whose removal would lead to a significant improvement to the

rights of way network

Page 161



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS — DECISIONS TAKEN

Organisational Change
e Bare Land Auction of Various Sites — The disposal of parcels of vacant
pasture at:

» Land at Stryt Isa, Hope
A rectangular parcel of pasture extending to approximately 3.28 acres

» Land adjacent to “Bryn Isa”, Wrexham Road, Hope
An irregular parcel of pasture with an access gate of Wrexham Road
extending to approximately 1.09 acres

» Land adjoining Cornist Hall, Flint
An irregular parcel of pasture extending to approximately 0.9 acres

» Land adjoining Bryn Garth School, Penyffordd
A gently undulating parcel of pasture extending to approximately 13.72
acres

» Land at Berth y Mean, Trelogan
An undulating parcel of pasture extending to approximately 9.41 acres

e Community Asset Transfer of Mancot Library
The transfer of Mancot Library including land to Mancot Community Library

group.

Education and Youth
e Gronant Youth Centre
To request that the Gronant Youth Centre be declared surplus to requirements
of the Education and Youth Service.

Copies of the Delegated Powers reports are on deposit in the Team Manager’s
Room, Committee Services.

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS
COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
JUNE 2016 TO NOVEMBER 2016

Reform and the cost to the
Council.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
June
Community and | 8 June 2016 Community and Approval of lending to NEW | Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise Homes to fund a for Housing
& Scrutiny development of 62
Oommittee Affordable New Homes on
o The Walks, Flint
D To seek support to develop
= affordable housing on The
A Walks, Flint as part of the
Council’'s Strategic Housing
and Regeneration Programme
(SHARP)
Community and | 8 June 2016 Community and Welfare Reform — Including Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise Universal Credit for Housing
& Scrutiny To update Members on the
Committee impact and risks of Welfare

Al e ¥

Xauuy puaby



Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

To provide Members with a
summary of learner outcomes
across primary and secondary
schools

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)

Community and | 8 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme

Enterprise Overview To consider the Forward Work

& Scrutiny Programme of the Community

Committee & Enterprise Overview &

Scrutiny Committee.

Social & Health | 9 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Betsi Cadwaladr University Cabinet Member
Gare Overview & Health Board and Welsh for Social
gcrutiny Committee Ambulance Services
o)) Service.(Presentation)
= For the Committee to receive a
g presentation from Betsi

Cadwaladr University Health
Board and Welsh Ambulance
Service
Education and | 9 June 2016 Education and Youth Learner Outcomes Operational Cabinet Member

for Education




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Education and | 9 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Youth Overview & (Education & Youth)
Scrutiny Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Education &
Youth Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
Education and | 9 June 2016 Education and Youth Skills Shortage Operational Cabinet Member
Youth Overview & To enable the Committee to for Education
§crutiny Committee review what measures schools
Q have in place to reduce the
@ skills shortage
|-
ﬁrganisational 13 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | 2015/16 Year End Reporting

Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

and Data Submission,
Improvement Plan
Monitoring & Chief Officer
Performance Reports
(Organisational Change)

To enable Members to fulffil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE

REPORT TYPE

PORTFOLIO

the Commission, and its
recommendations, and invite a

Council response to be
submitted to both the
Commission and Welsh

Government.

PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Organisational 13 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Change Overview & (Organisational Change)
Scrutiny Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the
Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
Oabinet 14 June 2016 Chief Executive's Improvement Plan 2016/17 Strategic Cabinet Member
g To approve the draft plan prior for Corporate
) to endorsement by County Management
= Council.
[@))
qglintshire County | 14 June 2016 Chief Executive's Improvement Plan 2016/17
Council To endorse the Improvement
Plan 2016/17 prior to
publication at the end of June.
Flintshire County | 14 June 2016 Chief Executive's LG Finance Commission
Council To present the final report of




Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

Transportation

Council's Car Parking
Strategy

To review the car parking
strategy agreed by Cabinet in
April 2015

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Flintshire County | 14 June 2016 Community and Policy Amendments -
Council Enterprise Minimum Revenue Provision
& Prudential Indicators
Amendments to policies
associated with lending to
NEW Homes to fund the
building of affordable homes in
Flint.
nvironment 15 June 2016 Streetscene and Update on North Wales Strategic Leader of the
verview & Scrutiny Transportation Waste Project Council and
chJommittee To receive a progress update Cabinet Member
N every 6 months for Finance
%nvironment 15 June 2016 Planning and Progress Report on the Operational Deputy Leader of
Overview & Scrutiny Environment Clwydian Range and Dee the Council and
Committee Valley Area of Outstanding Cabinet Member
Natural Beauty for Environment
To receive a report on the
recent work of the Clwydian
AONB.
Environment 15 June 2016 Streetscene and 12 Month Review of the Operational Deputy Leader of

the Council and
Cabinet Member
for Environment




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE

REPORT TYPE

PORTFOLIO

Governance portfolio.

PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Environment 15 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Overview & Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
Corporate 16 June 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring Leader of the
§esources Overview 2015/16 (Month 12) Council and
% Scrutiny To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
ommittee latest revenue budget for Finance
[ monitoring  information  for
S 2015/16 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
expenditure as at month (insert
month no.) and projected
forward to year-end based on
the most up to date information
available
Corporate 16 June 2016 Governance Establishment Structure in Operational Cabinet Member
Resources Overview Governance for Corporate
& Scrutiny To comment on changes to the Management
Committee establishment structure in the




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 16 June 2016 Governance Project Closure on Review of | Operational Cabinet Member
Resources Overview Corporate Administration for Corporate
& Scrutiny That Committee  provides Management
Committee comments on savings and
benefits delivered by the
project and the proposed steps
to close the project.
Corporate 16 June 2016 Governance Review of Corporate Operational Cabinet Member
esources Overview Administrative Functions for Corporate
é Scrutiny To comment on the proposed Management
chJommittee functions and structure to
— Cabinet for consideration at its
~ meeting on 21 June 2016.

AN

—




Scrutiny Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 16 June 2016 Finance Council Fund Revenue Strategic Leader of the
Resources Overview Budget 2017/18 Council and
& Scrutiny To update the Committee on Cabinet Member
Committee the financial forecast for the for Finance
2017/18 financial year and
presents
(1) the budget pressures and
proposed efficiencies for
Y corporate financial stewardship
Q
(@] and
® (2) the budget pressures and
':, proposed efficiencies corporate
N services for 2017/18 as the
third and final year of the
current  portfolio business
planning cycle.
Corporate 16 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Resources Overview To consider the Forward Work
& Scrutiny Programme of the Corporate
Committee Resources Overview &




Enterprise

above £25,000

Approve the write off of a single
business rate debt above
£25,000

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 June 2016 Chief Executive's Performance Report 2015/16 | Strategic Cabinet Member
To receive the 2015/16 Year for Corporate
End Improvement Plan Management
monitoring reports for the
period 1 April 2014 to 31 March
2016.
Cabinet 21 June 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
2015/16 (Month 12) Council and
To provide the latest revenue Cabinet Member
;? budget monitoring information for Finance
-8 for 2015/16 for the Council
= Fund and Housing Revenue
~ Account based on actual
w income and expenditure as at
month 12 and projected
forward to year-end based on
the most up to date information
available
Cabinet 21 June 2016 Community and Business Rates - Write Off Operational Cabinet Member

for Corporate
Management




Environment

Priorities

To endorse a hierarchical
approach to: processing
definitive map modification and
public path orders; public rights
of way maintenance; and
responding to complaints.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 June 2016 Streetscene and Highways and Car Park Operational Deputy Leader of
Transportation Inspection Policy the Council and
To review the Council's Policy Cabinet Member
on highway safety inspections, for Environment
intervention criteria and
response times.
Cabinet 21 June 2016 Planning and Food Service Plan for Operational Cabinet Member
o Environment Flintshire County Council for Waste
o 2016-17 Strategy, Public
D To seek approval for the Food Protection and
= Service Plan 2016-17. Leisure
"Babinet 21 June 2016 Planning and Public Rights of Way Operational Deputy Leader of
Environment Maintenance Standards the Council and
To endorse the approach to the Cabinet Member
maintenance of Flintshire’s for Environment
public footpaths and public
bridleways
Cabinet 21 June 2016 Planning and Public Rights of Way Operational Deputy Leader of

the Council and
Cabinet Member
for Environment




Governance

To approve changes to the
establishment structure in the
Governance portfolio

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Recommendations of the Operational Cabinet Member
School Transport Task & for Education
Finish Group
To consider the
recommendations of the
School Transport Task & Finish
Group
Cabinet 21 June 2016 Governance Corporate Admininstrative Operational Cabinet Member
Review Project - Closure for Corporate
;? Report Management
-8 To receive a closure report on
. the corporate administrative
~ review project.
Cabinet 21 June 2016 Governance Review of Corporate Operational Cabinet Member
Administrative Functions for Corporate
To provide details of the review Management
of corporate administrative
function and the savings
released so far.
Cabinet 21 June 2016 Governance Establishment Structure in Operational Cabinet Member

for Corporate
Management




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 27 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | 2015/16 Year End Reporting
Care Overview & and Data Submission,
Scrutiny Committee Improvement Plan
Monitoring & Chief Officer
Performance Reports (Social
& Health Care)
To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
;AJU performance monitoring.
~c%ocial & Health | 27 June 2016 Social Services Progress report on the Operational Cabinet Member
KSare Overview & development of the North for Social
crutiny Committee Wales Safeguarding Boards Services
April 2016
To enable the Committee to
fulfil their scrutiny role in
relation to performance and
Assurance  governance  of
collaborative services.
Social & Health | 27 June 2016 Social Services Mental Health Services Operational Cabinet Member
Care Overview & To receive an update on for Social
Scrutiny Committee Mental Health Services Services
Social & Health | 27 June 2016 Social Services Annual Council Reporting Operational Cabinet Member

Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

Framework
To consider the draft report

for Social
Services




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 27 June 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Care Overview & (Social & Health Care)
Scrutiny Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
July
ducation and | 7 July 2016 Education and Youth Regional School Strategic Cabinet Member

outh Overview &
®crutiny Committee
H

\l
\l

Effectiveness and
Improvement Service (GWE)
To receive an update on
progress with the development
of the regional school
effectiveness and improvement
service, to include a
presentation from the Chief
Officer of GwWE.

for Education




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Education and | 7 July 2016 Education and Youth 2015/16 Year End Reporting
Youth Overview & and Data Submission,
Scrutiny Committee Improvement Plan
Monitoring & Chief Officer
Performance Reports
(Education & Youth)
To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
g-? performance monitoring.
Q
19
teducation and | 7 July 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
%outh Overview & (Education & Youth)
crutiny Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Education &
Youth Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
Organisational 11 July 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme

Change Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

(Organisational Change)
To consider the Forward Work

Programme of the
Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny

Committee.




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community and | 13 July 2016 Community and Deeside Plan Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise To enable the Committee to for Economic
& Scrutiny consider the Deeside Plan Development
Committee
Community and | 13 July 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | 2015/16 Year End Reporting
Enterprise Overview and Data Submission,
& Scrutiny Improvement Plan
_80mmittee Monitoring & Chief Officer
Q Performance Reports
-8 (Community & Enterprise)
To enable Members to fulfil
= : ) : :
~ their scrutiny role in relation to
© performance monitoring.
Community and | 13 July 2016 Community and Discretionary Rate Relief Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise To consult with the Committee for Corporate
& Scrutiny on the proposed new policy for Management
Committee 2017-18 and future years

following the review of the
affordability of the current
policy of rate relief for charities,
voluntary groups and not for
profits organisations.




Statement
For the committee to consider
and approve the draft Annual
Governance Statement (AGS)
for 2015/16.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community and | 13 July 2016 Community and Hardship Rate Relief Policy Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise To consult with the Committee for Corporate
& Scrutiny on the proposed Hardship Rate Management
Committee Relief Policy for 2016 - 17 and
future years
Community and | 13 July 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Enterprise Overview (Community & Enterprise)
K] Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
gommittee Programme of the Community
) & Enterprise Overview &
5 Scrutiny Committee.
o
Audit Committee 13 July 2016 Governance Consultancy Follow Up
To inform members of the
results of the audit into the new
system for managing the use of
consultants.
Audit Committee 13 July 2016 Governance Annual Governance




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Audit Committee 13 July 2016 Governance Internal Audit Annual Report
To inform members of the
outcome of all audit work
carried out during 2015/16 and
to give the annual Internal
Audit opinion on the standard
of internal  control, risk
management and governance
within the Council.
gudit Committee 13 July 2016 Governance Internal Audit Progress
Q Report
[0
5udit Committee 13 July 2016 Governance Action Tracking
H
Audit Committee 13 July 2016 Governance Forward Work Programme
Corporate 14 July 2016 Chief Executive's Welsh Language Standards Cabinet Member
Resources Overview Advise members of the for Corporate
& Scrutiny proposed new Welsh Management
Committee Language Standards for
Flintshire and seek

endorsement of the Council's
approach.




performance for 2015/16 and
an overview of priorities for the
Public Service Board.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 14 July 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2015/16 (Outturn)
& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
Committee latest revenue budget
monitoring  information  for
2014/15 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
;AJU expenditure (subject to Audit)
~c%)orporate 14 July 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | 2015/16 Year End Reporting
HResources Overview and Data Submission,
Scrutiny Improvement Plan
Committee Monitoring & Chief Officer
Performance Reports
(Corporate Resources)
To enable Members to fulffil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring
Corporate 14 July 2016 Chief Executive's LSB and Strategic Operational Leader of the
Resources Overview Partnerships Performance — Council and
& Scrutiny End of Year Report Cabinet Member
Committee To provide a summary of for Finance




Enterprise

The report sets out the
Hardship Rate Relief policy to
be adopted for 2016 - 17 and
future years.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 14 July 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Cabinet 19 July 2016 Chief Executive's Welsh language Strategic Cabinet Member
To agree the Welsh language for Corporate
;? annual monitoring report for the Management
(@] period 2015/16 prior to
© publication on the Council's
Fo website.
w
To provide and update on
progress to implementing the
Welsh Language Standards
Cabinet 19 July 2016 Community and Hardship Rate Relief Policy Strategic Cabinet Member

for Corporate
Management




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 19 July 2016 Chief Executive's Strategic Equality Plan Strategic Cabinet Member
2016/2020 for Corporate
To agree the Council’s equality Management
objectives and Strategic
Equality Plan (SEP) 2016/
2020.
Cabinet 19 July 2016 Community and Discretionary Rate Relief Strategic Cabinet Member
o Enterprise Policy for Corporate
g To implement a new policy for Management
) 2017-18 and future years
= following the review of the
% affordability of the current
policy of rate relief for charities,
voluntary groups and not for
profits organisations
Cabinet 19 July 2016 Social Services ACRF (Annual Council Strategic Cabinet Member
Reporting Framework) for for Social
Social Services Services
Cabinet to accept the Annual
Council Reporting Framework
and approve publication
Cabinet 19 July 2016 Finance Capital Programme 2015/16

(Outturn)
To provide Members with the
outturn  capital programme

information for 2015/16.




Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

Environment

To inform members of the
rogue traders app available to
members of the public in
Flintshire

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 19 July 2016 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
2015/16 (Outturn) Council and
To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
latest revenue budget for Finance
monitoring  information  for
2014/15 for the Council Fund
and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and
expenditure (subject to Audit)
gnvironment 19 July 2016 Streetscene and Review of Highway Operational Leader of the
(Dverview & Scrutiny Transportation Inspection Policy and Council and
&ommittee Highway Structures Cabinet Member
00 Inspection Policy for Finance
o1 To review the Council’s policy
on highway safety inspections,
intervention criteria and
response times.
Environment 19 July 2016 Planning and Rogue Traders App Operational Cabinet Member

for Waste
Strategy, Public
Protection and
Leisure




Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

(Environment)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Environment 19 July 2016 Planning and Renewable Energy Operational Deputy Leader of
Overview & Scrutiny Environment To receive a report outlining the Council and
Committee the developments to include Cabinet Member
the responses received for Environment
following consultation.
Environment 19 July 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | 2015/16 Year End Reporting
Overview & Scrutiny and Data Submission,
Oommittee Improvement Plan
o Monitoring & Chief Officer
D Performance Reports
= (Environment)
% To enable Members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring.
Environment 19 July 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme




Youth Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

(Education & Youth)

The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Education &
Youth Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 21 July 2016 Social Services Comments, Compliments Operational
Care Overview & and Complaints
Scrutiny Committee To receive a report on the
compliments, representations
and complaints received by
Social Services for the year
April 2015 — March
Social & Health | 21 July 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
are Overview & (Social & Health Care)
crutiny Committee To consider the Forward Work
-8 Programme of the Social &
- Health Care Overview &
o) Scrutiny Committee.
August
September
Education and | 8 September 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE

REPORT TYPE

PORTFOLIO

council properties

PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Organisational 12 September 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Change Overview & (Organisational Change)
Scrutiny Committee The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the
Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny
U Committee.
&
@ommunity and | 14 September 2016 | Community and Strategic Housing and Strategic Cabinet Member
Henterprise Overview Enterprise Regeneration Project for Housing
Scrutiny (SHARP)
Committee To review progress on the
Strategic Housing and
Regeneration Project (SHARP)
Community and | 14 September 2016 | Community and Housing Regeneration Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise Programmes for Housing
& Scrutiny To update the Committee on
Committee the Housing Regeneration
Programmes
Community and | 14 September 2016 | Community and Purchase of Ex Council Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overview Enterprise Stock for Housing
& Scrutiny To consider proposals and
Committee criteria for the repurchase of ex




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community and | 14 September 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Strategic
Enterprise Overview (Community & Enterprise)
& Scrutiny The Committee is asked to
Committee consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Community
& Enterprise Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
nvironment 14 September 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
éverview & Scrutiny (Environment)
chJommittee The Committee is asked to
= consider, and amend where
[e'0) necessary, the Forward Work
© Programme for the
Environment  Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Corporate 15 September 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny The Committee is asked to
Committee consider, and amend where

necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.




To consider the proposed
changes to the Democratic
Services structure.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 15 September 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Care Overview & (Social & Health Care)
Scrutiny Committee The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Social &
Health Care Overview &
. Scrutiny Committee.
J
gabinet 20 September 2016 | Community and Purchase of Ex Council Strategic Cabinet Member
[0 Enterprise Stock for Housing
= To consider proposals and
8 criteria for the repurchase of ex
council property.
Flintshire County | 26 September 2016 Establishment Structure in
Council Democratic Services

October




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 13 October 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny The Committee is asked to
Committee consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
ducation and | 13 October 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
;§outh Overview & (Education & Youth)
%crutiny Committee The Committee is asked to
= consider, and amend where
O necessary, the Forward Work
= Programme for the Education
Organisational 17 October 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational

C
S

hange Overview &
crutiny Committee

(Organisational Change)

The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the
Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.




Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

(Environment)

The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the
Environment  Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)

Community and | 19 October 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Strategic

Enterprise Overview (Community & Enterprise)

& Scrutiny The Committee is asked to

Committee consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Community
& Enterprise Overview &

. Scrutiny Committee.

J

gocial & Health | 20 October 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational

@are Overview & (Social & Health Care)

KScrutiny Committee The Committee is asked to

8 consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

November

Environment 2 November 2016 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational




C
S

hange Overview &
crutiny Committee

(Organisational Change)

The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the
Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 10 November 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny The Committee is asked to
Committee consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
ducation and | 17 November 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
;§outh Overview & (Education & Youth)
%crutiny Committee The Committee is asked to
= consider, and amend where
O necessary, the Forward Work
w Programme for the Education &
Youth Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
Organisational 21 November 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational




@are Overview &
gcrutiny Committee

AN

(Social & Health Care)

The Committee is asked to
consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community and | 23 November 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational
Enterprise Overview (Community & Enterprise)
& Scrutiny The Committee is asked to
Committee consider, and amend where
necessary, the Forward Work
Programme for the Community
& Enterprise Overview &
. Scrutiny Committee.
O
gocial & Health | 24 November 2016 | Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme Operational




Agenda Item 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 201



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Performance Report 2015/16
	Enc. 1 for Year End Improvement Plan Monitoring Report

	5 FOOD SERVICE PLAN FOR FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 2016-17
	Enc. 1 for FOOD SERVICE PLAN FOR FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 2016-17

	6 Project Closure on Review of Corporate Administration
	7 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 12)
	Enc. 1 for REVENUE BUDGE MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 12)

	8 Business Rates - Write Off above £25,000
	9 Recommendations of the School Transport Task & Finish Group
	10 Public Rights of Way Maintenance Standards
	11 Public Rights of Way Priorities
	Enc. 1 for Public Rights of Way Priorities

	12 EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS
	 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION
	13 Review of Corporate Administrative Functions
	14 Establishment Structure in Governance

